Contract ¥ 027219

CONTRACT DECLARATIONS & EXECUTION

TITLE OF CONTRACT: Administrator Support Program Presentation REFP #: n/a

CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy Inc

PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES:
ADDRESS: 4518 Court Square, 3™ Floor CITY, STATE, ZIP: Long island Gy, NY 11101
PHONE: 718-752-7363 EnEAIL:

BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Bernadett Pizzufro
BUSINESS CONTACT EMAIL: bpizzurro@nycieadershipacademy.org

STATE OF IOWA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DE), Division of Policy and Communications
DE PROGRANM CONTACT: Lora Rasey

EMAIL; lora.rasey@iowa.gov

PHONE: 515-725-0646

DE BILLING CONTACT; Szndra Hockett
EMAIL: sandra.hockett@iowa.gov
PHONE: 515-281-3505

; CONTRACT PERIOD: | Service Begins: December 16, 2018 | Sarvice Ends: January 31, 2619 # of Yearly Extensions: O

The DE has received either Federal funds from the United States Department of Education, or State
CONTRACT PURPOSE: | funds from the State of lowa to execute this Contract. The parties have entered into this Contract
for the Contractor to provide the Scope of Weork as detailed in Exhibit 1.

COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms within this Contract.

TOTAL CONTRACT AMIOUNT NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SﬂOWN ON THIS LINE

500,00
® {see attached budget in Exhibit 2 for detailed information)

Payment requests should be submitted to the attention of: Sandra Hockett, Internal Administrative Services, lowa
Depastrment of Education, Grimes State Office Buliding, 400 Fast 14% Street, Des Motnes, 1A 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY*

FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG CBJ PROG AMOUNT I VENDOR NUMBER
Qa1 282 2138 2465 5B00.00 00003078678
282 $0.00 VENDOR DUNS NUMBER
282 50,00
282 $0.00 CFDA NUMBER
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 5B00.00

Erery & gruee 7 Eep Tt TS
DEEARTRIENT L8
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Contract# 022216
“TERMS AND CONDITIONS ' '

1. DEFINITIONS . .
" The fotlowing words shall be defined as set forth below:

“Acceptance” means that the Agency has determined that one or more Deliverables satisfy the Agency’s Acceptance Tests.
Final Acceptance means that the Agency has defermined that all Deliverables satisfy the Agency’s Acceptance Tests, Non-
acceptarce means that the Agency has determined that one or more Defiverables have not satisfied the Agency’s
Acceptance Tests, '

“Acceptance Criteria” masns the Specifications, goals, performance measures, testing results and/or other criteria
designated by the Agency and against which the Deliverables may be evaluated for purposes of Acceptance or Non-
acceptance thereof.

“Acceptance Tests” or “Acceptance Testing” mean the tests, reviews and other activities that are performed by or on
behalf of Agency to determine whether the Deliverables meet the Acceptance Criteria or otherwise satisfy the Agency, as
determined by the Agency in ils sole discretion.

“Bid Proposal” or “Proposal” means the Coniractor’s proposal submitted in response to the RFP.

"Contract” means the coliective documentation memorializing the terms of the agreament between the Agency and the
Confractor identified on the Contract Declarations & Fxecution Page(s) and includes the Special Terms, these General
Terms Tor Services Contracts, any Special Contract Attachments, and all other attachments to the Contract Declarations
& Exacution Page{s) as signed by ali parties.

“Contrack Dedlarations & Execution Page{s)” means the doturnent that contains basic information about the Contract
and incorporates by reference these General Terms for Services Contracts, the Special Terms, and all other attachments
to the Contract Declarations and Executions Page{s).

“Deficiency” means a defect, flaw, anomaly, failure, omission, interruption of service, or other probiem of any nature
whatsoever with respect to a Deliverable, including, without limitation, any failure of a deliverable to conform to or meet
an applicable specification. Deficiency also nchudes the Jack of something essential or necessary for completeness or
proper functioning of a Daliverable. '

“Deliverables” means all of the goods, products, services, work, work product, items, materials and property to be
created, developed, produced, delivered, performed or provided by or on behalf of, or made available through,
Contractor {or ahy agent, contractor or subcontractor of Contractor} in connection with this Contract.

“Documentation” means any and all technical information, commentary, explanations, design documents, system
archifecture documents, datahase layouts, test materials, training materials, guides, manuals, worksheets, notes, work
papers, and all other information, documentation and matefials related to or used in conjunction with the Deliverables,
it any medium, including hard copy, electronic, digital, and magnetically or optically encoded media.

“RFP” means the Reguest for Proposals of Request for Bids {and any Addenda thersto) idertified on the Contracts
Dectarations and Execution Page(s) that was issuad to solicit the Deiwarables that are subject o the Contract.

“Special Contract Attachments” means any attachment to this Contract indicated on the Contract Dedarations &
Exacution Pagels).

“Special Terms” means the Contract attachment entitied “Special Terms” that contains terms specific to this Comtract,
incioding but not limited to the Scope of Work, contract payment terms, and any amendments {o these General Terms
and Conditions for Services Contracts. Iif thare is a corflict between the General Terms for Services Contracts and the
Special Terms, the Special Terms shall prevail, ‘
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[ Contract # 022219

“Spetiﬁcaticns” means all spacifications, requirements, technical standards, performance standards, representations
and other criteria related ta the Deliverables stated or expressed in this Contract, the Documentation, the RFP, and the
Pfdposal. Specifications shall inctude the Acceptance Criteria and any specifications, standards or criteria stated or set
forth in any applicable state, federal, foreign and local laws, rules and reguiations. The Specifications are incorporated
into this Contact by reference as i fully set forth in this Contract,

. “State” means the State of lowa, the Agency, and all State of lowa agencies, boards, and comsmissions, and when this
Contract Is available to politicat subdivisions, any political subdivisions of the State of iowa.

2. AVAILABILITY OF CONTRACT TO OTHER ENTITIES

All other agencies of the State of iowa and all political subdivisions of the State of lowa may make purchases pursuant to
the Contract as permitted by the Competitive Bidding Document.

3. DURATION OF CONTRACT
The term of the Contract shall begin and end on the dates specifiad an the Contract Dedarations & Execution Page(s),
unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with the termination provisions of this Contract. The Agency may, in
is sole discretion, exercise any applicable extension by giving the Contractor written notice of the extenslon dedision at
least sixty {60) days prior to the expiration of the inftial term or renewal term.

4, SCOPE OF WORK
The Contractor shall provide Deliverabies that comply with and conform te the Specifications as set forth in Exhibit ..

. COMPENSATION
5.1 Pricing

The Contractor will be compensated in accordance with the payment terms outlined in the Contract Payment
Terms and Scope of Work described in the Special Terms.

The Contracior shall submit, on the frequency established on the Cortract Declarations & Execution Page(s) an
invoice for Deliverables rendered in accordance with this Contract. The invoice shall comply with alt applicable rufes
concerning payment of such claims. The Agency shall verify the Contractor's performance of the Deliverables
outlined in the invoice before making payment. The Agency shall pay all approved tnvaices in arrears and in
conformance with lowa Code BA.514, The Agency may pay in less than sicty (60} days, but an election 1o pay in less
than sixty (6C) days shall not act as an implied waiver of lowa Code § 84,514,

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any other payment
or compensation from the State for any Deliverables provided by or on behalf of the Contractor under this Contract.
The Contracior shell be solely responsible Tor paying all costs, expenses and charges it Incurs in connection with its
performance under this Contract.

5.2 Reimbursement Expenses
The State has established rules for limitations on reimbursement expenses, Please reference Department of

Adranistrative Services - State Accounting Enterprise Procedure 210-245 {accessible on the internet) for limits on
traval expenses,

5.3 Wirhholding Payments
In addition 1o pursuing any other remedy provided herain or by law, the Agency may withhold compensation or

payments 1o Contracior, is whole or in part, without panalty to the Agency or work stoppage by Contractor, in the
avent the Agency determines that:

5.3.1 Contractor has failed to parform any of its duties or obligations as set forth in this Contract; or

5.3.2 Any Deiverable has failed to meet or tonform to any applicable Specifications ar corttains or is expariencing
& Deficiency. ‘
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No interest shall acerue or be paid to Contracter on any compensation or other amounts withheld orretained hy
the Agency under this Contract.

Setoff Against Sums Owed by the Contractor )
in the event that Contractor owes the State any sum under the terms of this Contract, any other contract or

"agreement, pursuant to a judgment, or pursuant to any law, the State may, in its scle discretion, set off any such

sum against:
5.4.1 Anysum invoiced by, or owed to, Contractar under this Contract, or

5.4.2 Any Delfiverable has falled to meet or conform to any applicable Specifications or cortains or is experiencing
a Deficiency.

The Contractor agrees that this provision constitutes proper and Himely notice under any applicable laws governing
setoff,

6. TERMINATION

6.1

' 6.2

Immediate Termination by the State
The State may terminate this Contract for any of the following reasons effective immediately withaut advance

notica:

6.1.1 Inthe event the Contractor is required o be certified or licensed as a condition presedent to providing
goots and services, the revocation or less of such ficense or certification will result in immediate
termination of the Contract effective as of the date on which the license or certification is ne longer in
effect;

6.1.2 The State determines that the actions, or faiture to act, of the Contractor, its agents, employees or
subcentractors have caused, or reasonably could cause, a person’s life, health or safety to be jeopardized;

6.1.3 The Contractor fails to comply with confidentiality laws or provisions;

6.1.4 The Contractor furnished any statement, representation or certification in connection with the Contract or
the hidding process which is materially false, deceptive, incorrect or incomplete,

Terminaton for Cause by the Agency

The Agency may terminate this Contract upon written notice for the breach by Contractor of any meterial term,
condition or provision of this Contract, if such breach is not cured within the time pertod specified in the Agency’s
natice of breach or any subseguent hotice of correspondence delivered by the Agancy to Contractor, provided that
cure is feasible. tn addition, the Agency may terminate this Contract effective immediately without penalty and -
without advance notice or opportunity to cure for any of the foliowing reasons:

6.2.1 Contractor furnished any statement, representation, warranty or cartification in connection with this
Contract, the RFP or the Proposal that s false, deceptive, or materially incorrect ar incomplete;

6.2.2 Contractor or any of Contractot’s officers, directors, employses, agants, subsidiaries, affilates, contractors
or subcontractors has committed or sngaged in fraud, misappropiation, embezziement, malfeasance,
misfeasance, of bad faith;

€23 Contracior or any parent or affillate of Contractor owning a controfiing interest in Contractor dissolves;
6.2.4 Contractor terminates or suspends its business;

£.2.5 Contracior's corporate existence or good standing in lowa is suspended, terminated, revoked or forfeited, or
any license or certification held by Cantractor refated to Contractor’s performance under this Contract is
suspended, terminated, revoked, or forfeited;
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6.2.6 'Contractor has failed to comply with any applicabie international, federal, state {induding, but not imited to
towa Code chapter 8F), or local laws, rules, ordinances, regulations or orders when performing within the
scope of this Contract;

5.2.7 The Agency defermines or believes the Contractor has engaged in conduct that: {a) has or may expose the
Agency or the State to material Hability, or (b) has caused or may cause a persan’s life, health or safety to be
jeopardized; -

6.2.8 Contracior infringes or aliegedly infringes or violates any patent, trademark, copyright, trade dress or any
other intellectual property right or proprietary right, or Contractor misappropriztes or allegedhy
misappropriates a trade secret;

6.2.8 Contractor fzils to comply with any applicable confidentiality laws, privacy laws, or any provisions of this
Contract pertaining to confidentiality or privacy; or

6.2.10 Any of the foliowing has bean engaged in by or occurred with respect to Cantractor or any carporation,
shareholger or entity having or owning a controlling interest in Contractor;

6.2.10.1 Commencing or parmitting a filing against it which is not discharged within ninety {90) days, of a
case or other proceeding seeling liquidation, reorganization, or other relief with respect to itself
or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in effect; or
filing an answer admitting the materizal allegations of a petition filed against it in any involuntary
case or other proceeding commenced against it seeking Hquidation, reorganization, or other relief
under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in effect with respect to
it or its debts; or consenting te any such refief or to the appolntment of or taking possession by
any such official in any voluntary case or other proceeding commenced against it seeking
liquidation, reorganization, or other relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar faw
now or hereafter in effect with respect to it or its debts;

6.2.10.2 5eeking or suffering the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liguidator, custodian or other simiiar
official of i or any substantial part of its assets;

6.2.10.3 Making an assignment for the benefit of creditors;

6.2.10.4 Failing, being unable, or admitting in writing the inabiity generally 1o pay its debts or obligations
as they become due or faliing to maintain & positive net worth and such additional capital and
fiquidity as is reasonably adequate or necassary in connection with Contractor’s performance of
fts obligations under this Contract; er

£.2.10.5 Taking any action to authorize any of the foregoing. The Agency’s right 1o terminate this Contract
shall be in addition to and not exclusive of other remeadies availabie to the Agency, and the

Agency shall be entitled to exercise any other rights and pursue any remedies, in law, at equity, or
otherwise.

6.3 Termination upoh Notice

Fahiowing thirty {30] days written nofice, the Agency may terminate this Contract in whole or in part without
penalty and without Incurring any further obligation to Contractor. Termination can be for any reason of fo reason
at all. ’

6.4 Terminmation Die to Lack of Funds or Change in Law
Notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the comrary, and subject to the limitations set forth below, the Agency

shall have the right to ferminate this Contract without penaliy and without any advance notice as a result of any of
the foliowing:
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£.4.1 The legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of the Agency to appropriate funds sufficient to allow the
Agency to either meet its obligations under this Contract o to operate as required and to Fulfill its
- pbligations under this Contract; or '

6.4.2 if funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, or if any funds or
revenues needed by the Agency to make any payment hereunder are insufficient or unavailable for any
other reason as determined by the Agency in its sole discretion; or

6.4.3 i the Agency’s authorization to conduct its business of éngage in activities or operaticns refated o the
subject matter of this Contract is withdrawn or materialfiy altered or modified; or

6.4.4 #fthe Agency’s dut‘res,?aroér'am5 or responsibilities are modified or materially altered; or

6.4.5 [ there is a decision of any court, administrative faw judge or an arbitration panel or any law, rule,
regulation or order is enacted, promulgated or issued that materially or adversely affects the Agency's
ability to fulfill any of its obligations under this Contract, The Agency shall provide Contractor with written
notice of termination pursuam to this section.

6.5 Limitation of the State’s Payment Obligations
In the event of termination of this Contracs for any reason by efther party (except for termination by the Agency
purstani to Section 1.6.2), the Agency shall pay only those amounts, if any, dus and owing o Contractor hereunder
for Deliverables actually and satisfactorily provided in accordance with the provisiens of this Contract up to and
including the date of termination of this Contract and for which the Agency is obligated to pay pursuant to this
Contract: provided however, that in the event the Agency terminates this Contract pursuant to Section 1.6.4, the
Agenty’s obiigation to pay Contractor such amounts and other compensation shall be limited by, and subject to,
ingaily avaitahie funds. Payment will be made only upon submission of invoices and proper proof of Contractor’s
claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 1.6.5 in no way fimits the rights or remedies available to the
Agency and shall not be construed to reguire the Agency to pay any compensation or other amounts hereunder in
the event of Conirsctor's breach of this Contract or any amounts withheld by the Agency in accordance with the
terms of this Contract. The Agency shall not be liable, under any dircumstances, for any of the following:

6.5.1 The payment of unemployment compensation to Contractor's employees;

6.5.2 The payment of workers’ compensation clatms, which occur during the Contract or extend beyond the date
on which the Contract terminates;

6.5.3 Any costs incurred by Contracter in Hs perfurmancé of the Contract, inchiding, but ot limited to, startup
costs, overhead or other costs associated with the performance of the Contract;

6.5.4 Anydamages or other amounts associated with the loss of prospective profits, anticipated sales, goodwill,
or for expenditures, investmeants or commitments made in connection with this Contract;

£.5.5 Any taxes Contractor may owe in connection with the performance of this Contract, including, but not
fimited to, sales taxes, excise faxes, use taxes, income t@xes Or groperty taxes,

€.6 Contractor's Termination Duties
Upon receipt of natice of termination or upon reguest of the Agency, Contractor shalt

6.6.1 Cease work under this Contract and take all necessary or appropriate steps to limit disbursements and
minirnize costs, and furnish a report within thirty {30) days of the date of notice of termination, describing
the status of all work performe¢ under the Contract and such other matiers as the Agency may reguire.

€.6.2 Immediately cease using and return fo the Agency any property or materials, whether tangibie or intangibie,
provided by the Agency to Contractor.
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6.6.3 Cooperate in good faith with the Agency and s employees, agents and independent contractors during the
transition period between the notification of termination and the substitution of any replacement service
© provider.

6.6.4 immediataly return to the Agency any payments made by the Agency for Deliverables that were not
renderad or provided by Contractor,

6.6.5 Immediztely deliver to the Agency any and all Deliverables for which the Agency has made payment {in
whole or in part) that are in the possession or under the control of the Contractor or its agents or
subcontractors in whatever stage of deveiopment and form of recordation such property is expressed or
embodied as that time.

Termination for Cause by Contractor
Contractor may only terminate this Contract for the breach by the Agency of any material term, condition or

provision of this Contract, if such breach is not cured within sixty (60) days of the Ageney's receipt of Contractor’s
written notice of breach.

7, CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Form 15:

Access to Confidentia)l information

The Contractor’s employeas, agents and subcontractors may have access to confidential information maintained by
‘the Agency to the extent necessary to carry out its responsibifities under the Contract. The Contractor shall
presume that all information received putrsuant to this Contract is confidentia) unless otherwise designated by the
Agency. The Contractor shall provide to the Agency a written description of its policies and procedures to safeguard
confidential information, Policies of confidentiality shall address, as appropriate, information conveyed in verhal,
written, and electronic formats, The Contractor must designate one individual who shall remain the responstble
authority in charge of alt data collected, used, or disseminated by the Contractor in connection with the
performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall provide adeguate supervision and fraining o Its agents,
employees and subcontractors to ensure compliance with the terms of this Contract. The private or confidential
information shall remain the property of the Agency at all times,

No Dissemination of Confidential [nformation

Na confidential information collected, maintained, or used in the course of performance of the Contract shall be
disseminated by Contractor except as authorized by law and only with the prior written consent of the Agency,
either during the period of the Contract or thereafter. Any data supplied by the Agency to the Contractor or created
by the Contractor in the course of the performance of this Contract shall be considered the property of the Agency.
The Contractor must return any and &l data collected, maintained, created or used in the course of the
performance of the Contract in whatever form It ks maintained promptly at the request of the Agency. The
Contractor may be held chvilly or criminally Hable for improper disclosure of confidential information.

Subpoena

in the event that a subpoena or other jegal process i served upon the Contractor for records containing
confidential information, the Contractor shall pramptly notify the Agency and cooperate with the Agency in any
lawful effort to protect the confidential information,

Reporting of Unauthorized Disclosure
The Contractor shall immediately report to the Agancy any unauthorized disciosure of confidential information.

¥ Contractor requests confidential treatment with respect to any information or material contained within its Bid
Propesal and if & judicial or adminisirative proceeding is initiated to compe! the release of such material, Contractor
shall, at its sole expense, sppear in the proceeding or otherwise obtain an order restraining the release of such
material from a court of compeatent jurisdiction, Agency may release the information or materiat with or without
advance notice tu Contractor if no judicial or administrative proceeding i3 initlated and Agency determines the
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Contract # 022219

information or material is not confidential under lowa or other applicable law, or if Contractor failed to prop erh,r
request confidential treatment under the RFP, or if Contractor rescinds its reguest for confidentlal treatment.

7.6 Survives Termination
The Contractor’s obligations under this section shall survive termination or expiration of this Contract,

8. INDEMINIFICATIGN
8.1 By the Contractor
The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the State and its officers, appointed and elected off} csals,
board and commission members, employees, volunteers and agents {collectively the “Indernnified Parties”), from
any and all costs, expenses, losses, tlaims, damages, fiabilities, settlements and judgments (including, without
limitation, the reasonable value of the time spent by the Attorney General's Office, and the costs, expenses and
. attorneys’ fees of other counsel retained by the Indemnified Parties directly or indirectly related to, resuiting from,

or arising out of this Contract, including but not fimited to any claims related to, resulting from, or arising out of:

8.1.1 Any breach of this Contract;

8.1.2 Any negligent, intentional or wrongful act or omission of the Contractar or any agent or subcontractor
utiiized or employed by the Contractor;

8.1.3 The Contractor's performance or attempted performance of this Contract, including any agent or
subcontractor utilized or employed by the Contractor;

8.1.4 Any failure by the Contractor to make alf reports, payments and withhoidings required by federal and state
law with respect to social security, employee incoma and other taxes, fees or costs required by the
Contractor to conduct business in the State of lows;

8.2.5 Any claim of misappropriation of a trade secret or infringement or violation of any intellectual property
rights, proprietary rights or personal rights of any third party, including 2ny claim that any Defiverable or any
use thereof {or the exercise of any rights with respect thereto} infringes, viblates or misappropriates any
patent, opyright, trade secret, trademark, trade dress, mask work, utility design, or other intellectual
property right or proprietary right of any third party.

8.2 Survives Termination
Contractor’s duties and obligations under this section shall survive the termination of this Contact and shall apply to
. all acts or omissions taken or made ir connection with the performance of this Contract regardless of the date any
potential claim is made or discoverad by the Agency or any other indemnified Party.

9. INSURANCE
© 7 B3 Insurance Reguirements

The Contractor, and any subcontractor, shall maintain in full force and effect, with Insurance companies licensed by
the State of kowa, at the Contractor’'s expense, insurance covering its work during the entire term of this Contract
and any extansions or renewals thereof. The Contractor’s insurance shall, among other things, be occurrence based
and shal! insure against any loss or damage resulting from or refated to the Contracter’s performance of this
Contract regardiess of the date the claim & filed or expiration of the policy, The State of lowa and the Agency shall
be natmed s additional insurads or ks payees, or the Contractor shall obtain an endorsement to the same effect,

as applicable.

8.2 Types and Amounts of Insurance Requirad
Unless otherwise requested by the Agency ir writing, the Contractor shall cause to he lssued Insurance coverages
nsuring the Contracter end/or subcontractors against all general iiahilities, product liabifity, personal injury, -
praperty damage, and [where appiicable) professional iability. In addition, the Contractor shalf ensure i it has any
necessary workers’ compensation and amployer Fability insurance as required by lowa law.
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Cartificates of Coverage’

Contractor shall maintain all insurance pelicies reguired by this Contract in full force and effect during the entire
term of this Contract and any extensions of renewszls thereof, and shali not permit such policies to be cancelad or
amended except with the advence written approve! of the Agency. The Contractor shall submit certificates of the
insurance, which indicate coverage and notice provisions as reguired by this Contract, to the Agency upon
execution of this Contract. The certificates shall be subject 1o approval by the Agency. The insurer shall state in the
certificate that no cancellation of the insurance will be made without at least thirty (30] days’ prior written notice 1o

the Agency. Approval of the insurance certificates by the Agency shall not relieve the Contracior of any obligation
unger this Contract.

Waiver of Subrogation Rights

The Contractor shall obtain a waiver of any subrogation rights that any of its insurance carriers might have against -
the State. The walver of subrogation rights shall be indicated on the certificates of tnsurance coverage supplied to
the State.

10. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING
10.1 Project Manager

At the time of exacution of this Contract, each party shall designate, in writing, & Project Manager to serve until the
expiration of this Contract or the deslgnation of a substitute Project Manager. During the term of this Contract,
each Project Manager shall be available to meet monthly, uniess otherwise mutually agreed, to review and plan the
Deliverables being provided under this Contract,

10.2 Review Meetings

During the review meetings the Project Managers shall discuss progress made by the Contractor in the performance

_ of this Contract, Each party shalt provide a status report, as desired by & Project Manager, listing any problem or

103

0.4

10.5

concetn encountered since the last meeting. Records of such reports and other communications ssued in writing
during the course of Contract performance shall be maintained by each party. ’

Reports

At the next scheduled meeting after which any party has identified in writing a problers, the party responsible for
resciving the problem shalt provide a report setting forth activities undertaken, or to be undertaken, to resclve the
problem, together with the anticipated completion dates of such activities, Any party may recommend alternative
courses of action or changes that will facilitate problem resolution. For as long a5 = problem remains unresolved,
written reports shall identify;

18.3.1 Any event not within the control of the Contractor or the Agency that accounts for the problem;
10,3.2 Modifications to the Contract agreed to by the parties in order to remedy or solve the identified probletn;
10.3.3 Damages incurred as a result of any party's faflure 1o perform its obligations under this Contract; and

10.3.4 Any reguest or demand by one party that another party believes is not included within the terms of this
Contract.

Problem Reporting Omissions

The Agency's accepfance of a problem report shall not refieve the Contractor of any obligation under this Contract
or waive any other remedy under this Contract or at law or equily that the Agency may have. The Agency's fatlure
1o identify the extent of 2 problem or the extent of damages ncurred as a result of @ probiem shall notact as s
waiver of performance or damages under this Contract, Where other provisions of this Contract require notification

of an event in writing, the written report shall be copsiderad a valid notice under this Contract provided the parties
required to receive notice are notified.

Change Order Procedure
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The Agency may at any time request a modification to the Scope of Work using a change order. The following
procedures for a change order shall be followed:

10.5.3 Wriiten Reguest: The Agency shall specify in writi ng the desired modifications to the same degree of
specificity as in the original Scope of Work, : N

10.5.2 The Contractor’s Response: The Contractor shall submit to the Agency a firm cost propesal for the requested
changs order within five (5) business days of receiving the change order reguest.

10.5.3 Accepience of the Contractor Estimate: If the Agency accepts the cost proposal presented by the Contractor,
the Contractor shall provide the medified Deliverable subject to the cost proposal included in the Contractor
response. The Contractor's provision of the modified deliverables shall be governed by the terms and
conditions of this Contract.,

10.5.4 Adjustment to Compensation: The parties acknowledge that a change order for this Contract may or may
not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment in the Contractor’s compensation or the performance
deadlines under this Contract,

" 11. LEGISLATIVE CHANGES

The Contractor expressly acknowledges that the contracted Deliverables are subject to legislative change by either the
federal or state gavernment, Should either legislative body enact measures which alter the project, the Contractor shall
not hold the Agency liable in any manner for the resulting changes; The Agency shail use best efforts to provide thirty (30}
days’ written notice to the Contractor of any legislative change. During the thirty {30}-day period, the parties shall meet
and make a good faith effort to agree upon changes to the Contract to address the legistative change. Nothing in this
Subsecton shall affect or impalr the Agency's right to terminate the Contract pursuant o the termination provisions.

12, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
12.1 Ownership and Assignment of Other Deliverables .

Contractor agrees thatthe State and Agency shall become the sole and exclusive owners of all Deliverabies,
Contractor heraby irrevocebly essigns, transfers and conveys to the State and the Agency all right, title and interest
in and to all Defiverabies and all intellectual property rights and proprietary rights arising out of, embodied i, or
relsted to such Deliverables, induding copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade secrets, trade dress, mask work, utilliy
design, derivative works, and all other rights and interests therein or related thereto, Contractor represents and
warrants that the State and the Agency shall acquire good and clear title to all Deliverables, frae from any daims,
liens, security interests, encumbrances, intellectual property rights, proprietary rights, or other rights or interests of
Centractor or of 2ny third party, inciuding any employee, agent, contractar, subcontractor, subsidiary or affiliate of
Contractor, The Contractor (and Contractor's empleyess, agents, contractors, subcontractors, subsidiaries and
affiliates) shall not retain any property interests or other rights in and 1o the Deliverables and shall not use any
Defiverables, in whole or in part, for any purpose, without the prior writien consent of the Agancy and the payment
of such royaltias or other compensation as the Agency deems apprepriate. Uniess otherwise requested by Agency,
upon completion or termination of this Contract, Contractor wil immediately turn over to Agancy ail Deliverables
not previously delivered to Agency, and no copies thereof shall be retained by Contractor or its employees, agents,
subcontractors or affiliates, without the priar written consent of Agency.

12.2 Waiver .
To the extent any of Contractor's rights in any Deliverables are not subject to assignment or transfer hereunder,
inclutiing any moral rights and any rights of attribution and of integrity, Contractor hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally waives all such rights and enforcement thereof and agrees not to chalienge the State’s rights In and
to the Deliverables,

123 Furt'her Assurances
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At the Agency’s reguest, Contractor will exacute and deliver such instruments and take such other action as may be
requested by the Agensy to establish, perfect or protect the State’s rights in and to the Deliverables and o carry -
out the assignments, transters and conveyances set forth in this Contract.

13, WARRANTIES

13.1 Construction of Warranties Expressed in this Contraet with Warranties Imphed by Law
Warranties made by the Contractor in this Contract, whether: (1) this Contract specifically denominates the
Coniractor's proyise as a warranty; or {2) the warranty is created by the Contracior's affirmation or promise, by a
description of the Deliverables to be provided, or by provision of semples to the Agency, shall not be construed as
limiting or negating any warranty provided by law, including without limitation, warrenties that 2rise through
course of dealing or usage of trade. The warranties expressed in this Contract are Intended to modify the
warrantles impited by law only to the extent that they expand the wa rranties applicable to the Deliverables
provided by the Contractor. The provisions of this section apply during the term of this Contract and an;ﬁ extensions
or renewals thereof.

13.2 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) ali Deliverables shall be wholly eriginal with and prepared solely by
Contractor; or it owns, possesses, holds, and has recejved or secured all rights, permits, permissions, licenses and
authority necessary to provide the Deliverables to the Agency hereunder and to assign, grant and convey the rights,
benefits, licenses and other rights assigned, granted or conveyed to the Agency hereunder or under any license
agreement refated hereto without violating any rights of eny third party; (2} Contracior has not previously and wili
not grant any rights in any Defiverables to any third party that are inconsistent with the rights granted to the
Agency herein; and (3} the Agency shall peacefully and quietly have, hold, possess, use and enjoy the Deliverables
without suit, disruption oy interruption.

13.3 Comiractor represents and warrants that: (1) the Deliverables {and all intellectual property rights and proprietary

o rights arising out of, embodied in, or refated fo such Deliverables); and (2) the Agency’s use of, and exercise of any
rights with respect to, the Deliverables (and all inteliectual property rights and proprietery rights arising out of,
embaodied in, or related to such Deliverables), do not and will not, under any circummstances, misappropriate a trade
secret or infringe upon or violate any copyright, patent, tradetmark, trade dress or other intellectual property right,
proprietary right or personal right of any third party. Contractor further represents and warrants there s no
penditg or threatened daim, litigation or action that is based on a dladm of infringement or viofation of an
intellectual property right, proprietary right or persanal right or misappropriation of a Irade secret related to the
Deliverables, Contractor shall inform the Agency In wriling immediately upon becoming aware of any actual,
potential or threatenad claim of or cause of action for infringement or viclation or an intellectual property right,
proprietary right, or personal right or misappropriation of a trade secret. If such a claim or cause of action arises or
is jikely to arise, then Contractor shall, at the Agency's request and at the Contractor's sole expanse: (1) procure for
the Agency the right or license 1o continue to use the Deliverable at issue; (2) replace such Deliverabia with a
functionally eguivalent or superior Deliverable free of any such infringement, violation or misapproptiation; (3)
modify ot replace the affected portion of the Deliverable with a functionally eguivalent or superior Deliverable free
of any such infringament, violation or misappropriation; or {4} accept the return of the Deliverabie at issue and
refund to the Agency ail fees, charges and any other amounts paid by the Agency with respect to such Deliverable.
In addition, Contractor agrees fo indemnify, defend, profect and hoid harmless the State and its officers, directors,
employess, officials and agents as provided in the indemndfication section of this Contract, inciuding for any breach
of the representations and warranties made by Contractor in this section, The foregoing remedies shall be in
addition to and not exclusive of other remedies available o the Agency and shall survive termination of this
Contract.

13.% Contractor represents and warrants that the Delivarables (in whote or in part) shall: (1) be free from material
Defidendies; and {2} maet, conform to and operate in accordance with all Specifications and in accordance with this
Contract during the Warranty Period, as defined in the Special Terms. During the Warranty Period Contractor shall,
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at its expense, repeir, correct or replace any Deliverable that contains or experlences material Deficiencies or fails
to meet, conform to ar OF;EI‘BTE in accordance with Specifications within five business days of receiving notice of '
such Deficiencies or failures from the Agency prwithin such other perfod as the Agency specifies In the notice. In
the event Contractor is bnable to repair, correct or replace such Deliverable to the Agency's satisfaction, Contractor
shall refund the fees or other amounts paid for the Daliverables and for any services related thereto. The foregoing
shall not constitute an exclusive remedy under this Contract, and the Agency shall be entitled ¢ pursue any other
avallable contractual, legal or equiteble remedies. Contractor shall be available at ali reasonable times to assist the
Agency with guestions, problems ang conearns about the Deliverables, to inform the Agency promptly of any
known Deficiencies in any Dellverables, repair and correct any Detiverables not performing in accordance with the
warraities contained in this Contract, notwithstanding that such Deliverable may have been accepted by the
Agency, and provide the Agency with all necessary materials with respect to such repaired oy corrected Deliverable.

13.5 Contracts represents, warrants and covenants that all services to be performed under this Contract shall be
performed in a professional, compstent, diligent and workmanilke manner by knowledgeabls, trained and qualified
personnel, all in accordance with the terms and Specfications of this Comract and the standards of performance
considered generally acceptable in the industry for similar tasks and projects. In the absence of a Specification for
the performance of any portion of this Contract, the parties agree that the applicable specification shall be the
generally accepted industry standard. So fong as the Agency notifies Contractor of any services performed in
violation of this stanc!arﬁ, Contracter shali re-perform the services at no cost to the Agency, such that the services
are rendered in the above-specified manner, or if the Contracter is unabie to perform the services as warranted,
Contractor shall reimburse the Agency any fees or compensation paid to Contractor for the unsatisfactory services.

13.6 Contractor represents and warrants that the Deliverables wil comply with any epplicable federal, state, foreign
and local flaws, rules, régulations, codes, and ordinances in effect during the term of this Contract, including
applicable provisions of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and all standards and
requirernents established by the Architecturai and Transportation Barriers Access Board, the lowa Department of
Administrative Services, and lowa Office of the Chief Information Officer.

13.7 Obligations Owed to Third Parties
The Contractor represents and warrants that all obligations owed to third parties with respect to the activities
conternplated to be undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to this Comtract are or witl be fully satisfied by the
Contractor so that the Agency will not have any obligations with respect thereto.

14, ACCEPTANCE TESTING _
Except as otherwise specified in the Scope of Work, efl Deliverables shall be subject to the Agency’s Acceptance Testing and
Acceptance, unless otherwise specifizd in the Statement of Work. Upon completion of all work to be performed by
Cantractor with respect to any Deliverable, Contractor shail deliver a written notice to the Agency certifying thai the
Deliverable meets and conformms to applicable Specifications and is ready for the Agency to conduct Acceptance Tests;
provided, however, that Contracior shall pretest the Deliverabie to determine that it meets and operates in accordance
with applicable Spedifications prior to delivering such notice to the Agency. At the Agency’s request, Contractor shall assist
the Agency in performing Acceptance Tests at no additional cost to the Agency. Within & reasonable period of time after
the Agency has compiet'ed its Acceptance Testing, te Agency shall provide Contractor with written notice of Acceptance
or Non-acceptance with respact to each Deliverable that was evaluated during such Acceptance Testing. if the Agency
determines that a Deliverable satisfies its Acceptance Tests, the Agency shiall provide Contractor with notice of Acceptance
with respect to such Deliverabie. If the Agency determines that @ Deiiverabie fails to satisfy its Acceptance Tests, the
Agency shall prc'vide Contractor with notice of Non-acceptance with respect to such Deliverabie, In the event the Agency
proviges notice of Non-acceptance to Cantracior with respect to any Deliverable, Contractor shall correct and repalr such
Deliverabie and submit it to the Agency within ten {10} days of Contractor’s recelpt of notice of Nor-acceptance so that the
Agency may re-conduct its Acceptance Tests with respect o such Defiverable, In the event the Agency determines, after re-
concucting its Acceptance Tests with respert to any Deliverable that Contractor has attempted to corract or repair
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pursuant to this section, that such Deliverable fails to satisfy its Acceptance Tests, then the Agency shall have the
continging right, at its scle option, to:

14.1 Require Contractor to correct and repair such Deliverable within such period of time as the Agency may specify ina
writien notice to Contractor;

14,7 Refuse to accept such Deliverable without penalty and without any obligation to pay any fees or other amounts

associated with such Deliverable {or receive a refund of any fees oramounts already paid with respect to such
Deliverabile);

14.3 Accept such Deliverable on the condition that anyfees or ather amounts payable with respect thereto shall be
reduced or discounted to reflect, to the Agency's satisfaction, the Deficiencies present therein and any reduced

value or functionality of such Deliverable or the costs likely to be incurred by the Agency to correct such
Deficiencies; or

14.4 Terminate this Contract and/or seek amy and zll available remedies, including damages. Notwithstanding the
provisions of Section 1.6,1 of this Contract, the Agency may terminate this Contract pursuant to this section without
providing Contracior with any notice or opportunity to cure provided for in Section 1.6.1. The Agency's right tp
exercise the foregolng rights and remedies, including termination of this Contract, shall remain in effect until
Acceptance Tests are successhully completed to the Agency's satisfaction and the Agency has provided Contractor
with written notice of Final Acceptance. if the Agency determines that alf Deliverables satisfy its Acceptance Tests,
the Agency shall provide Contractor with notice of Final Acceptance with respect to such Deliversbles. Contracior's
receipt of any notice of Acceptance, including Fingl Accepiance, with respect to any Deliverablels) shall not be
construed as a waiver of any of the Agency’s rights to enforce the terms of this Contract or require performance in

the event Contractor breaches this Contract or any Deficiency is later discovered with respect to such
Deliverablels).

15, CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

15.1 Independent Contractor

The status of the Contractor shafl be that of an independent contractor. The Contractor, its employees, agents and
any subcontractors perferming under this Contract are not employees or agents of the State or any agency, division
or department of the State simply by virtue of work performed pursuant to this Contract. Neither the Centractar
nor its employees shall be considered empioyees of the Agency or the State for federzl or state tax purposes simply
by virtue of work performed pursuant o this Contract. The Agency will not withhold taxes on behalf of the
Contractor {uniess required by law).

15.2 Incorparation of Documents

To the extent this Contract arises out of an RFP, the parties acknowledge that the Contract consists of these
contract terms and canditions as well as the RFP and the Bid Praposal. The RFF and the Bid Proposal are
incorporated into the Contract by reference, except that no objection or amendment by the Contractor to the
provisions of the RFP shall be incorporated by refarencs into the Contract unlfess the Agency has explicitly accepted
the Contractor’s ohjection or emendment in writing. if there is & conflict between the Contract, the RFP and the Bid
Proposal, the conflict shall be resolved according to the following priority, ranked in descending order: (1) the
Contract; {2} the RFP; {3) the Bid Proposal.

15.3 intent of References to Bid Documents .
The references to the parties’ obligations, which are contained in this Cantract, are intended {0 supplemant or
clarlfy the obligations as stated in the RFF and the Bid Propasal. The failure of the parties to make reference to the
terms of the RFP or the Bid Proposal in this Contract shall not be construed as creating a confiict and will not relieve
the Contractor of the contractual obligations imposed by the terms of the RFP and the Contrackor’s 8id Proposal.
The contractual obligations of the Agency cannot be implied from the Bid Proposal.
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15.4 Compliance with the Law; Nendiscrimination in Employment
The Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall not engage in discriminatory employment praciices
which are forbidden by federal or state jaw, executive orders, and rules of the lowa Department of Administrative
Services. The Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontraciors shall compily with all applicable feders!, state,
and local laws, rules, ordinances, reguiations, orders when performing under the Contract, including without
limitation, all laws applicable to the prevention of discrimination in empleyment {e.g., lows Code chapter 216 and
section 198.7) and the use of targeted small businasses as subcontractors and suppliers. Upaon the State’s written
reguest, the Contractor shall submit to the State copy of s affirmative action plan, containing goals and time
specifications, and accessibility plans and policies as required under lowa Administrative Code chapter 11—121.

The Contractor, its emplovees, agents and subcontractors shal! also comply with all federal, state, and local laws,
Inciuding any permitting and licensure requirements, in carrying out the work performed under this Contract.

In the event Contractor contracts with third parties for the performance of any of the Contractor chligations under
" this Contract as set forth in section 1.15.11, Contractor shall take such steps as necessary to ensure such third
parties are bound by the terms and conditions contained in this section.

Notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, Contractor’s faliure to fulflll any requirement set forth in
this section shall be regarded as & material breach of this Contract and the State may cancel, terminate, or suspend,
in whole or in part, this Coniract. The State may further declare Contractor Ineligible for future state contracts in '
aceordance with authorized procedures or the Contractor may be subject to other sanctions as provided by law or
rule,

If 3l or & portion of the funding used to pay Tar the Deliverables Is being provided through a grant from the Federal
Government, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to applicable federal laws, regulations, circulars
and bulleting, the swarding agency of the Federal Government reserves certain rights including, without limitation a
royaity-free, non-exdusive ang irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others
to use, for Federal Government purposes, the Deliverables developed under this Contract and the copyright in and
o such Deliverables,

155 Procurement _
Contracter shali use procurement procedures that comply with alt applicable federal, state, and jocal laws and
regulations.

15.6 Non-Exclusive Rights
This Corftract is not exclusive. The Agency reserves the right to select other contractors to provide Deliverables
similar or identical to those described in the Scope of Work during the term of this Contract.

15.7 Non-Supplanting Reguirement
To the extent required by state or federal law, federal and stete funds made avallable under this Contract shall be
used to supplement and increase the javel of siate, local and other non-federal funds that would in the absence of
such federal and state funds be made available for the programs and activities for which funds are provided and will
in no event take the place of state, Iocal and other non-federal funds.

15.8 Cotmpiiance with lowa Code Chapter 8F
i the Contract is subject to the provisions of lowa Code chapter 8F, the Contractor shall comply with lowe Code
chapter 8F with respect fo any subcontracts it enters into pursuant to this Contract. Any compliance
dotumentation, including but aot limited to certifications, received from subcontractors by the Contractor shall be
forwarded to the Agency,

159 Amendments
This Contract meay be amended in writing from time to time by mutual consent of the parties. Amendments to the
General Terms Tar Services Contracts may appear in the Special Terms,
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15.20 Third Party Beneficiaries

There are no third party beneficiaries to this Contract. This Contract is intended only fo benefit the State and the
Contractor.

15.11 Use of Third Parties

The Agency acknowledges that the Contractor may contract with third parties for the perfarmance of any of the
Coniractor's obllgations under this Contract. The Contractor shall notify the Agency in writing of al} subcontracts
relating to Deliverables to be provided under this Contract prior io the time the subcontract{s) become effective,
The Agency reserves the right to review and approve all subcontracts. The Contractor may enter into these
contracts to complete the project provided that the Contractor remains responsible for ali Deliverables provided
under this Contract. All restrictions, obligaiions and responsibilities of the Contractor under this Contract shall also
apply 1o the subconfractors and the Contractor shall Include in all of its subcontracts a clause that so states. The
Agency shall have the right to request the removal of a subcontractor from the Contract for good rause.

15.12 Choice of Law and Forum

The laws of the State of iowa shall govern and determine all matters srising out of or In connection with this
Contract without regard to the conflict of law provisions of lowa law. Ary and all fitigetion commenced in
connection with this Contract shall be brought and maintained solely in Polk County District Court for the State of
iowa, Des Moines, towa, or in the United States District Court for the Southern District of lowa, Central Division,
Des Moines, lowa, wheraver jurisdiction is appropriate. This provision shall not be construed as waiving any

immunity to suit or liahility including without limitation sovereign immunity in State or Federal court, which may
be available to the Agency or the State of lowa. ‘

15.13 Assignment and Delegation

Contractor may not assign, transfer or convey in whole or in part this Contract without the prior written consent of
the Agency. For the purpose of construing this clause, a transfer of a controlling interest in the Contractor shall be
congidered an assignment. The Contractor may not delegate any of its obligations or duties under this Contract
without the prior writfen consent of the Agency. The Contractor may not assign, pledge as collaterz, grant a

security interest in, create a lien against, or otherwise encumber any payments that may or will be made to the
Contractor under this Contract.

15.14 integration

This Contract represents the entire Contract between the parties. The parties shall not rely on any representation
that may have been made which ks not inciuded in this Contract.

15.15 Headings or Capiions

The paragraph headings or captions used jn this Contract are for identification purposes onby and do not it or
construe the contents of the paregraphs.

15,16 Not 2 Joint Venture

Mothing in this Contract shalt be construed as creating or constituting the refationship of & partnership, joint
venture, {or other association of any kind or agent and principal refationship) between the parties hereto. Each
party shall be deemed {0 be an Indepandent contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual
bensfits expected to be derived herefrom. No party, uniess otherwise spectfically provided for herein, has the

authority To enter into any contraci or create an obligation o fiability on behalf of, in the name of, or binding upon
another party to this Contract,

15.17 Joint and Sevarsl Liability

f the Contractor ks a joint entity, consisting of more than one individual, partnership, corporation or other
business organization, all such entities shall be jointly and severaliy liable for carrying out the activities and
vbiigations of this Contract, and for any default of activities and obligations.
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15.18 Supersedes Former Contracts or Agreements :
This Contract supersedes alf prior contracts or agreements between the Agency and the Contractor for the
Deliverables to be provided in connection with this Contract.

15.19 Waiver .
Except as speeifically providad for in a waiver signad by duly authorized representatives of the Agency and the
Contractor, failure by either party at any time to require performance by the other party or to claim a breach of
any provision af the Contract shall not be construed as affecting any subsequent right to require perfarmance or
o claim a breach.

15.20 Nohice
Any and all notices, designetions, consents, offers, acceptances or any other communication p'mvided for herein
shall be glven in writing by a reliable carrier which shall be addressed to the person who signed the Contract on
behalf of the party at the address identified in the Contract Declarations & Execution Page(s) at the address
specified oh the forms. Fach such notice shall be deemed to have been provided:

~ 15.20.1 At the time it is actually received; or

15.20.2 Within one day in the case of overnight hand de!hf'ery, courier or services such as Federa] Express with
guaranteed next day dgelivery; or

15.20.3 Within five {5) days after it is deposited in the U.S. Mail in the case of registered U.S, Mall. from time to
time, the parties may change the name and address of a party designated to receive notice. Such change
of the designated person shall be in writing to the other party and as provided herein.

15.21 Cumulative Rights
The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of any party provided in this Contract, shall be
construed as cumulative and not one of them is exciusive of the others or exclusive of any rights, remedies or
priorities atlowed either party by law, and shall in po way affect or impair the right of any party to pursue any
other eguitable or legal remedy to which any party may be entitled,

-~ 15,22 Severability
I¥ any provision of this Contract is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable,
such determination shall not affect the validity or enforceabllity of any other part or provision of this Contract.

15.23 Time is of the Essence
Time is of the essence with respect to the Contractor's performance of the terms of this Contract. Contractor shall
ensure that all personne! providing Deliverables to the Agency are responsive to the Agency's requirements and
requests in all respects.

15,24 Authorization
" Contracior represents and warrants that:

15.24.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Contract,

15.24.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate, statutory or otherwise] to approve execution, delivery and
performance of this Contract, and this Contract constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation upon itself
in accordance with its terms.

. 15.25 Successors in Interast 7
All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benafit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns and legal representatives,

15.2& Records Retention ard Access
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The Contractor shall maintain accurate, current, and complete records of the financial activity of this Contract
which sufficiently and properly document and calculate ali charges biiled to the Agency throughout the term of
this Contract and for a period of & least five {5) years following the date of final payment or completion of any
reguired audit (whichever is later]. if any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action invelving the records
has been staried before the expirétior; of the five (5} year period, the records must be retained until completion of
the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or untll the end of the regulzr five (S} year periog,
whichever is later, The Coniractor shall permit the Agency, the Auditor of the State or any other authorized
representative of the State and where federal funds are invelved, the Comptroller General of the United States or i
any other authorized representative of the United States government, to access and examine, audit, excerpt and l
transcribe any directly pertinent books, documents, papers, electronic or optically stored and created records or
other records of the Contractor relating to orders, invoices or payments or any other documentation or materials
pertaining to this Contract, wherever such records may be located. The Contractor shall not impose a charge for
audit or examination of the Contractor's books and records. Based on the audi findings, the Agency reserves the
right to address the Contracior’s board or other managing entity regarding performance and expenditures,

4
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15.26.1 Records of financial activity shall include records that adequately identify the source and application of
funds. When the terms of this Contract reguire matching funds, cash coniributions made by the
Contractor and third party in- kind {property or service} contributions must be verifiable from the
Contractor’s records. Thase records must contain information pertaining to contract amount, obligations,
unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, expenditures, income, and third-party reimbursements,

15.26.2 The Contractor shalt maintain accounting records supported by source documentation that may include
but are not lirnited to cancelied checks, paid bills, payroll, time and attendance records, and contract
award docurnents,

15.26.3 The Contractor, in maintaining project expenditure accounts, records and reports, shall make any
necessary adjustmants to reflect refunds, credits, underpsymentis or overpayments, as well as any
adjustments resulting from administrative or compliance reviews and audits. Such adjustments shall be
set Torih in the financial reports filed with the Azency.

15.26.4 The Contractor shall maintain a sufficlent record keeping system to provide the necessary data for the
purposes of planning, monitoring and evaluating its program.

15.26.5 The Contractor shall retain all medical records for a period of six {6} years from the last date of service for
each patient; or in the case of a rminwr patient or client, for a period consistent with that established by
lowa Code section 614,1(8). Client records, which are nan-medical, must be maintaired for a period of
five {5] years.

18.27 hudits or Examination of Records

15.27.1 Contracters that expend $750,000 or more in s fiscal year in federal awards {from all sources) shall have a
singie audit conducted for that year in actordance with the provisions of OMB Uniferm Administrative
‘Requirements, Cost Principies, and Audit Reguirements, Single audits must be completed and the data
coliection Torm and reporting package must be submitted electronically to the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse within the earlier of thirty {30} calendar days after Contractor's receipt of the auditor's
repart(s], or nine months after the erd of the audit period. The Contractor shall submit ko the Agency one
{1) copy of the separate stter to management addressing non-material findings, If provided by the
auditot, promptly following receipt by Contractor. Contractor shall also submit one (1) copy of the final
audit report to the Agency within thirty {30) days after Contractor's receipt thereaf, I either the schedule
of findings and questioned costs or the summary schedule of prior audit findings mciudes any audit
findings related to federal swards provided by tha Agency. The requirements of this subsection shali apply.
to the Contractor as well as any subcontraciors.
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15.27.2 if a Contractor is independently audited but is not reguired to submit the audit report per the criteria in
subsection 1.15.27.1 above, the Contractor shall submit to the Agency one (1) copy of the sépar_ate letter
to management addressing non-material findings, if provided by the auditor, promptly following receipt
by Contractor, Within fiftean (15) days following Agency’s request, the Contractor shall also submit one
{1) copy of the final audit report to the Agency. :

15.27.3 The Agency may require, at any time and at its sole discretion, that recipients of non-federal and/or
federal funds have an audit performed. The Contracter shall submit one (1) copy of the audit report to
the Agency within thirty {30) days of its issuance, unless specific exemption Is granted in writing by the
Agency. The Contractor shall submit with the audit report a copy of the separate letter to management
addressing non-material findings, if provided by the auditor. The Centractor may be reguired o comply
with other prescribed compliance and review procedures.

15.27.4 The Contractor shail be sofely responsible for the cost of any required audit unless otherwlse agreed in
writing by the Agency.

15.28 Qualifications of 5taff
The Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that all persons, whether they are employees, agents,
subcontractors or anyone acting for or on behalf of the Contractor, are properly licensed, certified or accredited as
required under applicable state law and the iowa Administrative Code. The Contractor shalt provide standards for
service providers who are not otherwise licensed, certified or aceredited under state law or the lowa
Adrinistrative Code.

15.28 Solicitation
The Contractor represents and warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit
and secure this Contract upon an agreement or understanding for commissien, percentage, brokerage or
contingency excepting bona fide employees or selling agents maintained for the purpese of securing business.

15.30 Obligations Beyond Contract Term
This Contract shall remain in full farce and effect to the end of the sbecif‘aed term or until terminated pursuant to
this Contract. All obligations of the Agency and the Contractor incurred or existing under this Cantract as of the
date of expiration or termination will survive the termination or expiration of this Contract.

15.31 Counterparts
The parties agre# that this Contract has been or may be sxecuted in several counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an eriginal and all such counterparts shall together constituts one and the same Instrument.

15,32 Delays or impossibility of Performance
Neither party shall be in default under the Contract if performance is prevented, delayed or made impossibie to
the extent that such prevention, delay, or impossibility is caused by a "force majeure.” The term “force majeure”
as used in this Contract includes an event that no buman foresight could anticipate or which if anticipated, is
incapabie of being avoided. Circumstances must be abnormal and unforesesable, so that the conseguences could
not have been gvoided through the exercise of alf due care, such as acts of God, war, civil disturbance apd other
similar causes. The delay or Impossibility of parformance must be beyond the control and without the fau& Qr
negiigence of the parfies. "Force majeure” does not include: financial difficulties of the Contractor ar any parent,
subsidiary, affifiated or assoctated company of Contractor; claims or court orders that restrict Contractor’s ability
to deliver the Deliverabies contemplated by this Contract; strikes; labor unrest; or supply chain disruptions. if delay
results fram a subcontracior's conduct, nagligence or failure to perform, the Contractar shall not be excusad from
compliance with the terms and obiigations of the Contract uniess the subconrtractor or supplier is prevented from
timely performance by & “force majeure” as dafined in this Contract, & "force majeure” delays or prevents the
Contractor's performance, the Contractor shalf immediately use its best efforts to directly provide alternate, and
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to the extent possible, comparable performance. Comparabitity of performance and the possibility of comparable
perfermance shali be determined solely by the Agency. The party seeking to exercise this provision and not
perform or delay performance pursuant to a "force majeure” shall immediately notify the other party of the
occurrence and reason for the delay. The parties shalt make every effort to minimize the time of nonperformance
and the scope of work not being performed due to the unforeseen events, Dates by which petformance
obligations are scheduled to be met will be extended only for a period of time equal to the thne lost due 1o any
delay so caused.

15.33 Suspensions and Debarment

The Contractor certifies pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9 that neither it nor its principles are presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Contract
by any federal Agency or State Agency. The Contractor certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended,

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the
State of lowa.

15.34 Conflict of Interest

Contractor represents, warrants, and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the Contract period
between the Contractor and the Agency that is a conflict of Interest. Ne employee, officer or agent of the
Contractor or subtontractor shall participate in the selection or in the award or administration of a subcortract f a
conflict of interest, reai or apparent, exists. The provisiens of jowa Code ch. 68B shall apply to this Contract. If a
conflict of Interest Is proven 1o the Agency, the Agency may terminate this Contract, and the Contractor shall bhe
liable for any excess costs to the Agency as g result of the conflict of interest. The Contractor shall establish
safeguérds te prevent employees, consultants, or members of governing bodies from using thelr positions for
purposes that are, or give the appearance of being, motivated by the desire for private gain for themselves or
others with whom they have family, business, or other ties. The Contracior shall report any potential, real, or
apparent conflict of Interest to the Agency.

15.35 Certification Regarding Safes and Use Tax

By executing this Contract, the Contractor certifies it is either (a) registered with the iowa Departiment of Revenue,
-collects, and remits Jowa sales and use taxes as required by lowa Code chapter 423; or (b} not a “retailer” or &
“retailer maintaining a place of business in this state” as those terms are defined in lowa Code subsections

423 1{47) & {48}. The Contractor also acknowledges that the Agency may declare the Contract void if the above
certification is false. The Contractor also understands that fraudulent certification may result in the Agency or s
representative filing for damages for breach of contract.

15.36 Right to Address the Board of Directors or Others Managing Entity

The Agency reserves the right to address the Contractor's board of directors or other managing eniity of the
Contractor regarding performance, expenditures and eny other issue as appropriate, The Agency determines
appropriatenass,

15.37 Repayment Obligation

bn the event that any State and/or federal funds are deferred and/or disallowed as & result of any audits or
expendead in violation of the laws applicable to the expenditure of such funds, the Contractor shall be liable to the
Agency jor the full armount of any daim disallowed and for all related penalties incurred, The reguirements of this
paragraph shall apply to the Contractor as well as any subcontractors,

1%.38 Further Assurances and Corrective nstroments

The parties agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowladge and deliver, or cause o be exacuted,
acknowledged and delivared, such amendmearnts hareto and such further instruments as may reasonably be
required for carrying out the expressed intention of this Confract,
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15.38 Reporting Requlrements
If this Contract permits other State agencies and political subdivisions to make purchases off of the Contract, the

‘Contractor shall keep a record of the purchases made pursuant to the Contract and shall submit a report to the
Agency on a quarterly basis. The report shall identify ail of the State agencies ard political subdivisions making
purchases off of this Contract and the quantities purchased pursuant to the Contract during the reporting period,

15.40 Immunity from Liability
Every person who is a party to the Contract Is hereby notified and agrees thet the State, the Agency, and all of
their empioyees, agents, successars, and assigns are immune from Rability and suit for or from Contractor's and/or
subcontractors’ activitles involving third parties and arising from the Contract.

15.41 Public Records
The laws of the State require procurement records to be made public unless ctharwise provided by law.

15.42 Use of Name or intellectual Property
Contractor agrees it will not use the Agency and/or State’s name or any of their intellectual property, including but
not fimited ta, any State, state agency, board or commission trademarks or logos in any manner, including
commercial advertising or as a business reference, without the expressed prior written consent of the Agency
-and/or the State,

15.43 Taxes )
The State is exempt from Federal excise taxes, and no payment will be made for any faxes levied on Contractor’s
employee’s wages. The State is exempt from State and local sales and use taxes on the Deliverables.

15,44 No Mintmum Guaranteed
The contract does not guarantee aiy minimum level of purchases or any minimuim amount of compensation,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Contract has been executed by the parties hereto:

JF/G;"?r Q&hsn); TIC PWLCM QZVT!SMQ/W' io-7-1¢

DE CONTACT yRE‘QUEStI ng sen?ce \ } TTLE DATE
Al — 4 () /),»;/“55-2%2; /D=2~ /¥
DE ADMINISTR&TION TITLE DATE
KW ado) od— Co-0. iy
CONTRAQINING AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL TITLE DATE
Mptthe.o M & Cliveh Finomcial /9 //?%m 1209 St
DE AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE TITLEY DATE

CONTRACTING PARTY: PLEASE SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN AN ORIGINAL COPY TO THE GEPARTMENT. THIS CONTRACT WILL
BE VALID WHEN YOU RECEWVE A COPY WITH THE 1OWA DEPARTIVIENT OF EDUCATION'S AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE.
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EXHIBIT 1 SCOPE OF WORK

Description of Services

NYC Leadership Academy {NYCLA) will present to the School Administrators of lowa coaches in Administrator Support
Program on December 17, 2018, via ZOOM. Content wili be focused on Developing Coaching Skills. The presenter will share
NYCLA's researched-based coaching approach to haye the greatest impact on leaders and their students,

Tratning will include;
s« Working to deepen feedback and questioning skilis
»  Using lerdership stanidards to diaghose principal’s fearning needs
s Thinking about the rele of leaming styles and mental modet in coaching

Performance Measures/Deliverables
The ZOOM training wili be presented on the date and at the lime scheduled by the Bepartment.
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EXHIBIT 2: BUDGET

COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.

$0.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized befow in the "Associated Costs” section.
$800.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of 1,0 (Number} day [Units} at $800.00 per day {Unit).
$800.00 TOTAL CONTRACT AMIQUNT NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Only the items designated are covered; required documentation Is indicated under the “Other
Conditions/ Reguirements” section. A budget shall be submitted. {Fstimated costs shown)

50.00 TRAVEL; FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach § Auto 5 {56.38/mile) Taxi § Parking $
Other § {TEMIZE)

NOTE: AtL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL {from lowa to another state} MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.

50.00 MEALS; Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates:

Braakfast: @s ea lunch: @5 ea Dinner @s ea

**Vendor must leave home before 6:00om to cloim breakfast; and must return hore after 7:00pm to claim dinner,
Reimbursement shalf be per state established guldefines unjess otherwise noted above: Bregkfust $8/Lunch $12
{unless provided)/Dinner 523. Alcohol .is not a reimbursable expense, .

50.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed & per night, plus tax of &

50.00 OTHER: (ITEMIZE) '

Other Considerations/Reguirements, Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements fisted be]ow' shall apply;
1. Reimbursement shatl be imited to the State of lowa reimbursement rates:
o Miieage Reimbursement: $0.39 per mile
o Lodging and Meal Reimbursement rates: as designhated under “Assoriated Costs” section above,
o Receipts: Must be submitted with a signed claim when the contract is with an individual, Legible itemized original
receipts are required for Travel, Lodging {must show a $0 balance), and other reimbursable expenses, exciuding
meals. Credit card receipts are not acceptable

2, The following expenses are spacifically referenced:
o TRAVEL: Alr coach, taxi fares, related parking fees and car rental
o MEALS: Detalied itemired expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted
o LODGING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the designated meeting site. Lodging must be

outside the Contracting Party’s domicile
o OTHER: Registration fees and other items (as designated under *Associated Costs” section) require receipts unless

specified otherwise,

The DE resetves the right to request receipts as necessary to: {1} validate any expense claim and (2) adjust reimbursable
rates and policies for in-state and out-of-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accounting Policy
and/or kowa Code. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unilaterally to vendors.
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VED

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMIENT BETWEEN

STATE OF IOWA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DE), Division of Policy and Communications ﬁ C E
Grimes 5tate Office Building, 400 Cast 14" Street, Des Moines, |A 50319-0146

Department Contact Person: Lora Rasey/Sandra Hockett  Phone: (515) 281-6719 OET 20 20

AND |
CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy Inc DEPARTMENT OF
PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES: Mary Jo Dunnington EDUCATION
ADDBRESS: 45-18 Court Square, 3" Floor CITY, STATE, Z1?: Long Istand City, NY 11101
PHONE: 718-752-7365 EMAIL: mdunnington@nycleadershipacademy.org
BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Sarah Stevens BUSINESS CONTACT EMAIL: sstevens@nycleadershipacademy.org ;

THE DEPARTMENT WiLL COMPENSATE FOR THE FOLLEWING SERVICES RENDERED BY THE CONTRACTING PARTY:
{DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES): Continued support of a statewide professional development initiative to build the capacity of school

and district administrative leaders to support the state's Teacher Leadership and Compensation {TLC} initiative. See Attached
Documentation. ’

THE DEPARTMENT WILL MONITOR AND REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTING PARTY USING THE FOLLOWING
MEASURES: (PERFORMANCE MEASURES): See Attached Documentation.

CONTRACT PERIOD: Service Begins: November 1, 2015 Service Ends: June 30, 2016

COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.
5144,500.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized below undér the "Associated Costs” section.
50.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of {Number} [Units) at 5 per {Unit). |
$144,500.00 CONTRACT 1S NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Only the items designated are covered; required documentation is indicated under the “Other
Conditions/ Requirements” section. A budget shall be submitted. (Estimated costs shown)

$0.00 TRAVEL: FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach & Auto S {50.29/mile) Taxi$ Parking &
Other s (ITEMIZE)

NOTE: ALL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL {from lowa to another state) MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.
$0.00 MEALS: Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates:
Breakfast: @5 ea Lunch: @s ea Dinner @S ea
**Vendor must leave home before 6:000m to cluim breakfast; and must return home after 7:00pm to claim dinner,

Reimbursement shall be per state established guidelines unless otherwise noted above: Bregkfast 58/Lunch 5§12
(unfess provided}/Dinner 523. Alcohol is not a reimbursable expense,

50.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed $ per night, plus tax of §
$144,500.00 OTHER: {HITEMIZE) See Attached
CLAINI/PAYMIENT PROVISIONS:

1) UPON ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES (AS STATED) BY THE DE; AND
2} ITEMIZED INVOICE FOR ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED.
3} ALL CLAIMS MUST BE SUBMITTED WITHIN THIRTY {30) DAYS OF PERFORMING SERVICES.

Payment requests should be submitted to the attention of: Sandra Hockett, internai Administrative Services, lowa
- Department of Education, Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14" Street, Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY*
FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OBl PROG AMOUNT | VENDOR NUMBER
0001 282 2138 2469 1 $144,500.00 00003078678
282 $0.0C VENDOR DUNS NUMBER
282 $0.00
282 $0.00 CFDA NUMBER
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT | $144,500.00
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OTHER CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS: Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements listed below shall apply:
Reimbursemment shall be limited to the State of jowa reimbursement rates.
Mileage Reimbursement: $0.35 per mile.
Lodging and Meal Reimbursement rates: as designated under “Associated Costs” section.
Receipts: Must be submitted with a sighed claim when the contract is with an individual. Legible itemized receipts are

required for Travel, Lodging (must show a $0 balance), and other reimbursable expenses, excluding meals, Credit -

card receipts are not acceptable.

The following expensas are specifically referenced:
TRAVEL: Alr coach, taxi fares, related parking feas and car rental, ,
MEALS: Detailed iternized expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted.

ILODGING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the desngnated meeting site. Lodgmg must
be outside the contracting party’s domicile. -

OTHER: Registration fees and other items (as designated under ”Assocnated Costs” section) requure receipts
" unless specified otherwise,

The DE reserves the right to request receipts as necessary to: (1} validate any expense claim and {2) adjust reimbursable rates
and policies for in-state and out-of-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accountmg Policy and/or lowa
Code. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unilaterally to vendors.

ITEMIZED INVOICE: Contracting party must submit an original, detailed Invoice with original signature(s).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS {IP): All Intellectual Property Rights to materlais documents, and datz or any ather tangible/
_intangible designed and/or developed under direct funding from this project shall be the sole property of the DE.

GOVERNING LAWS: This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of lowa.

MONITORING: Prcgress and performance will be monitored and reviewed by the DE on a schedule determmed by the DE in
collaboratnon with the Vendor.

TERMINATIDN This contract may be termmated by either party upon ten (10) days written notice,

NONTRANSFERENCE: Unless otherwise stipulated in this contract, the contracting party shall not transfer any interest in thls
~ contract without prior wntten approval from the fowa Department of bducation.

AMENDMENTS: Requests for an approval of amendments to this agreement must be mutua!iy acreptable and in writing.

INDEMNIFICATION: The contrac’tmg party agrees jointly and severally to Indemnify and hold the State, its successors and assigns
harmless from and against all liability, loss, damage, or expense, including reasonable counsel fees, which the State shall incur
by reason of the failure of the contracting party to perform fully and comply with the terms and obtligations ofthis agreement.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: This contract is subject to the antimpa’ted availability of Federal and/or State funds underthe program
from which it is supported.

ASSURANCE THE CONTRACTING PARTY, BY SIGNATURE AFFIXED BELOW, ASSURES THE DEPARTMENT THAT SAID CONTRACTING
PARTY IS OPERATING IN COMPLIANCE WFTH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL STATUTES, RULES AND REGULATIONS,
INCLUDING CERTIFICATION THE CONTRACTING PARTY AND/OR ITS PRINCIPAL QFFICIALS ARE NOT SUSPENDED OR DISBARRED,

REPRESENTATIONS: VERBAL OR WRITTEN, THAT MAY HAVE BEEN MADE PRIOR TO THE SIGNING OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE
NOT EXPRESSLY STATED IN THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, ARE NON BINDING, VOID AND OF NO EFFECT. NEY IHER PARTY HAS

vl ’J‘m ‘zi’( 375 V ' uw&x,\ﬁ ﬂ"cm-u“! - ok l} ‘C‘_L' AY

DE CONﬁCT(Requ stmﬁser@lce ' . TITLE N : DATE

Do oIS

DE ADMINﬁTRATION TITLE ‘ DATE

ZWM | CeD /0/ 22/i5

CONTRACTIN GENQI iNDW:DUAL TITLE - | pATH
Chief, Internat Administrative Services ,]{ Z“Cf/ //
DE AUTH y@éldw E . TITLE DATE

CONTRACTING PARTY: PLEASE SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN AN ORIGINAL COPY TO THE DEPARTMENT, THIS CONTRACT WILL BE
VALID WHEN YOU RECEIVE A COPY WITH THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EQUCATION’S AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE,

LAgreement #024516
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CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

STATE OF IOWA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DE}, Division of Policy and Communications
Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14™ Street, Des Moines, [A 50319-0146

Department Contact Person: Lora Rasey/Sandra Hockett  Phone: (515) 281-6719 QT 26 205
CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy Inc mgéigﬁ%ggg
PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES: Mary Jo Dunnington a ’
ADDRESS: 45-18 Court Square, 3™ Floor CITY, STATE, ZIP: Long Island City, NY 11101

PHONE: 718-752-7365 EMAIL: mdunnington@nycleadershipacademy.org

BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Sarah Stevens BUSINESS CONTACT EMAIL: sstevens@ nycleadershipacademy.org

THE DEPARTMENT WILL COMPENSATE FOR THE FOLLOWING SERVICES RENDERED BY THE CONTRACTING PARTY:
(DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES): Continued support of a statewide professional development initiative to build the capacity of school

and district administrative leaders to support the state's Teacher Leadership and Compensation (TLC) initiative. See Attached
Documentation.

THE DEPARTMENT WILL MONITOR AND REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTING PARTY USING THE FOLLOWING
MEASURES: (PERFORMANCE MEASURES): See Attached Documentation.

CONTRACT PERIOD: Service Begins: November 1, 2015 Service Ends: June 30, 2016

COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.
$144,500.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized below undeér the “Associated Costs” section.
$0.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of (Number) {Units) at 5 per {Unit).
$144,500.00 CONTRACT IS NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Only the items designated are covered; required documentation is indicated under the “Other
Conditions/ Requirements” section. A budget shall be submitted. {Estimated costs shown)

$0.00 TRAVEL: FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach § Auto $ (S0.29/mile) Taxi & Parking $
Other § (ITEMIZE)

NOTE: ALL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL {from lowa to another staté) MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.

$0.00 MEALS: Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates:

Breakfast: @S ea Lunch: @s ea Dinner: @S ea

*#Vendor must leave home before 6:00am to claim breakfast; and must return home after 7:00pm to claim dinner.
Reimbursement shall be per state established guidelines unless otherwise noted above: Breakfast S8/Lunch 512
{unless provided)/Dinner 523. Alcohol is not a reimbursable expense.

$0.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed $ per night, plus tax of §

$144,500.00 OTHER: {ITEMIZE} See Attached

CLAIM/PAYMENT PROVISIONS:
1) UPON ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES (AS STATED) BY THE DE; AND
2} ITEMIZED INVOICE FOR ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED.
3) ALL CLAIMIS MUST BE SUBMITTED WITHIN THIRTY (30} DAYS OF PERFORMING SERVICES.

Payment requests should be submitted to the attention of: Sandra Hockett, Internal Administrative Services, lowa
- Department of Education, Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14™ Street, Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY*

FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OBJ PROG AMOUNT VENDOR NUMBER
0001 282 2138 2469 $144,500.00 00003078678
282 $0.00 VENDOR DUNS NUMBER
282 $0.00
282 $0.00 CFDA NUMBER
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $144,500.00
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OTHER CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS: Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements listed below shall apply:
Reimbursement shall be limited to the State of lowa reimbursement rates.
Mileage Reimbursement: $6.39 per mile.
Lodging and Meal Reimbursement rates: as designated under "Associated Costs” section.
Receipts: Must be submitted with a signed claim when the contract is with an individual. Legible itemized receipts are
required for Travel, Lodging (must show a SO balance), and other reimbursable expenses, excluding meals. Credit
card receipis are not acceptable.

The following expenses are specifically referenced:
TRAVEL: Air coach, taxi fares, related parking fees and car rental.
MEALS: Detailed itemized expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted.
LODGING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the designated meeting site. Lodgmg must
be outside the contracting party’s domicile.
OTHER: Registration fees and other items {as designated under “Associated Costs” section) require receipts
unless specified otherwise.

The DE reserves the right to request receipts as necessary to: (1) validate any expense claim and {2) adjust reimbursable rates
and policies for in-state and out-of-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accounting Policy and/or lowa
Code. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unitaterally to vendors.

ITEMIZED INVOICE: Contracting party must submit an original, detailed invoice with ariginat signature(s).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS {IP}: All Intellectual Property Rights to materials, documents, and data or any other tangible/
intangible designed and/or developed under direct funding from this project shall be the sale property of the DE.

GOVERNING LAWS: This contract shalt be governed by the laws of the State of lowa.

MONITORING: Progress and performance will be monitored and reviewed by the DE on a schedufe determined by the DE in
collaboration with the Vendor.

TERMINATION: This contract may be terminated by either party upon ten (10) days written notice.

NONTRANSFERENCE: Unless otherwise stipulated in this contract, the contracting party shall not transfer any interest in this
contract without prior written approval from the lowa Department of Education.

AMENDMENTS: Requests for an approval of amendments to this agreement must be mutually acceptable and in writing,

INDEMNIFICATION: The contracting party agrees jointly and severally to indemnify and hold the State, its successors and assigns
harmless from and against all liability, loss, damage, or expense, including reasonable counsel fees, which the State shall incur
by reason of the failure of the contracting party to perform fully and comply with the terms and obligations of this agreement.

"AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS This contract is subject to the antlczpated availability of Federa! and/or State funds under the program
from which it is supported.

ASSURANCE: THE CONTRACTING PARTY, BY SIGNATURE AFFIXED BELOW, ASSURES THE DEPARTMENT THAT SAID CONTRACTING
PARTY IS OPERATING IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL STATUTES, RULES AND REGULATIONS,
INCLUDING CERTIFICATION THE CONTRACTING PARTY AND/CR 1TS PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS ARE NOT SUSPENDED OR DISBARRED.

REPRESENTATIONS: VERBAL OR WRITTEN, THAT MAY HAVE BEEN MADE PRIOR TO THE SIGNING OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE
NOT EXPRESSLY STATED IN THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, ARE NONBINDING, vOID AND OF NO EFFECT NEITHER PARTY HAS .
RELIED ON SUCH PRIOR REPRESENTATIONS WHEN ENTERING INTO THIS CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT. .

E ﬁi . .
r KoM Vvt .ak\mfi N (SN /RN LY
DE CONTACT (Req sng serVice) TITLE - . DATE
2, Dneelyr narTe
DE ADM;NﬁTRATlON . TITLE DATE
CONTRACTING AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL . ' TITLE DATE

Chief, Internal Administrative Services

DE AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE _ TITLE DATE

CONTRACTING PARTY: PLEASE SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN AN ORIGINAL COPY TO THE DEPARTMENT. THIS CONTRACT WILL BE
VALID WHEN YOU RECEIVE A COPY WITH THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION’S AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE.
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Executive Summary

The NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) is pleased to submit this proposal to the lowa
Department of Education (IDE) to provide continuing support for the statewide
professional development launched during summer 2015 to build the capacity of school
“and district leaders to support the state’s new Teacher Leadership and Compensation
(TLC) inttiative.

Building on our collaboration with IDE and its partners since January 2015 to design and
launch the TLC Administrator Support Program, NYCLA proposes providing additional
services, outlined on the following pages, between September 2015 and June 2016, with
the purpose of supporting Year 1 implementation, program and curriculum refinement in
preparation for Year 2 implementation, and the continued development of tocal capacity
to sustain this program over time. All of this work wilt complement and be integrated with
NYCLA's ongoing work with the leadership coach consultants who are currently

supporting the Year 1 delivery across lowa.

1: Professional Development Facilitalion and Design Suppord

NYCLA proposes providing additional remote and in-person support to the IDE program
manager and the facilitators who are leading delivery of the summer and school-year
professional development sessions. This work will include assisting facilitators in
designing and preparing to deliver the three half-day professional development sessions,
as well as facilitating reflection on and redesign of curricula used during Year 1 in

preparation for Year 2.
Deliverables:

la. School-Year Professional Development Session Design Support (November
2015, February 2018): NYCLA will facilitate two half-day sessions with IDE program
manager and program facilitators to reflect on the assessed learning needs of their
cohorts and refine the design of the second and third prefessional development
sessions that they will deliver for cohort principals and their leadership teams. At

least one of these sessions will take place on site in lowa (preparation for the first

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education Page | 1
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session will have already taken place in August), and the other session will be

facilitated remotely.

1b. Mid-Year Program Check-In {(January/February 2016): NYCLA will facilitate a
half-day session with all program facilitators and leadership coach consuitants at
the mid-way point of Year 1 delivery. This session will be an opportunity for the
delivery teams across all cohorts to reflect on what is working well, where they are
experiencing challenges, and to surface any needs for additional support, program
refinement, or other changes to improve or increase the effectiveness and impact

of the program.

lc. Summer 2016 Curriculum Revision (March 2016): The NYCLA team wil provide
1.5 days of support to revisit the Summer Intensive curriculum and revise based on
feedback and learnings from Year 1. This support will be provided remotely (or on

site if it can be combined with travel related to another deliverable).
2: Capaocity Building Support

NYCLA also proposes a series of deliverables aimed at supporting the IDE TLC
Administrator Support Program manager in her role overseeing the implementation of the
program across both delivery channels and across the state. The intent is to ensure the
program manager feels fully confident in her ability to oversee and maintain the quality of
impiementation beyond Year 1. The support will include a combination of capacity-
building activities that NYCLA has found to be valuable in other engagements, as well as

support that is responsive to the self-identified needs of the program manager.

Deliverables;

2a. Facilitator Agenda Review (September 2015, December 2015, March 2018): In
preparation for delivery for each cohort of the three professional development
sessions during the 2015-16 school year, NYCLA will suppert the IDE program
manager in reviewing and providing feedback to the facilitators on their facilitator
agendas. As facilitators will be responsible for talloring their session agendas
based on the assessed needs of their cohorts, the IDE program manager will
manage overall guality and program coherence by requiring facilitators to submit

their agendas for review. NYCLA staff will review the agendas and meet with the

NYC Leadesship Academy // lowa Department of Education Page | 2
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program manager remotely to share suggestions and feedback that she can use to

inform her communication with the facilitators.

2b. Facilitation Observations and Feedback (October 2015); A NYCLA lead
facilitator will conduct co-observations of the first prefessional development
session with the IDE program manager. We propose co-observation of two
different facilitators, after which the NYCLA facilitator will debrief with the facilitators
and model giving them feedback on their facilitation. The NYCLA facilitator will also
serve as a thought partner to the IDE program manager to help her hone her ability

to assess and give feedback on facilitation.

2c. Program Scaling Planning Support (November 2015): We propose facilitating
an in-person, half-day session with the TLC Administrator Advisory Group to review
and plan for program expansion in Year 2. In addition to reflecting on Year 1 roll
and out delivery to date, issues for consideration may include whether to continue
delivery through both the state and district models, how to market the program to
the next group of districts, and whether additional coaches and or facilitators will

need to be identified to serve the next group of schools.

2d. Technical Support (ongoing): We propose providing the IDE program manager
with weekly remote support, as well as two in-person meetings throughout the
2015-16 school year. The focus of this support will be driven by emerging
programmatic issues and self-idgentified needs of the program manager, and will
provide time for thought partnership, program trouble-shooting, and ongoing
capacity building intended tc benefit the program manager and her ability tc

sustain the program.

£

3 Troining Addifional Local Coaches and Focllitators

Based on the likelihood that additional leadership coach consultants and facilitators will
need to be identified to support program delivery — through the state and/or district
channels — during Year 2, NYCLA also proposes providing IDE additional assistance in

identifying and training these individuals.

Deliverables:

NYC Leadership Acadermy // lowa Depariment of Education Page | 3
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3a. Leadership Coach Selection (February 2016): NYCLA will provide up to two
days of on-site support to IDE program staff around the interviewing and selection
of additional leadership coaching consultants who will provide state-supported

coaching for Year 2 cchorts.

3b. Facilitative, Competency-Based (FCB) Coach Training | (March 2016): NYCLA
will deliver its foundational 1.5-day training for up to 15 newly hired leadership

cecaches in lowa (see original proposal for full description of training).

3c. Access to NYCIA's Online Coaching Modultes (March 2016): NYCLA will provide
newly selected leadership coaches with one year's access to our Online Coaching
Modules. Described fully in our original proposal, these modules supplement the
in-perscn coach development waork we offer, and provide an on-demand

resources for leadership coaches as they begin their work with school leaders.

3d. Year 2 Summer Institute Preparation Workshop (April 2018): Building on a
similar training NYCLA designed to prepare facilitators and coaches for Year 1
delivery, NYCLA will co-deliver {alongside the IDE program manager and Year 1
facilitators) a two-day workshop 1o ready all facilitators and leadership coaches
who will be invoived in Year 2 delivery for the 2016 Summer Institutes. The
workshop will help first-time facilitators and coaches become familiar with the
program and summer curnculum, while refreshing returning personnel and

familiarizing them with curricular revisions.

3e. Facilitation Training (May 2016): To round out the skills of any newly identified
facilitators, NYCLA will provide 2.5 days of its signature Facilitation Training at our
offices in New York for up to four new facilitators from lowa. This training will be

provided as part of a multi-client session we offer each spring.

4 Program Evaluation

As a finai component of the 2015-186 work we are proposing, NYCLA's Research &
Fvatuation team will provide IDE with assistance in developing an evaiuation plan for the
TLC Administrator Support Program and in assessing the various program components

during Year 1.

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Education Fage | 4
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Deliverables:

4a. Logic Model/Evaluation Plan Development (August 2015 and May 2016):
Building on a meeting with the TLC Administrator Advisory Group in lowa in August,
we propose further assisting in the development of a logic model for the program
that will articulate expected short- and long-term outcomes of the program, as well
as a plan for formative and summative evaluation. NYCLA will help IDE consider
issues such as ownership of the evaluation plan, types and sources of data that
can be accessed to inform evaluation, and how data will be collected as the
program is scaled into Years 2 and 3. NYCLA will provide IDE with documentation
of the logic model and the plan as discussed, as well as technical assistance
during the school year to support IDE in this work. As a follow up, NYCLA will
facilitate & second meeting with IDE representatives and its partners in May 2016 to
review the logic model and evaluation work and make any adjustments going into
Year 2.

4b. Formative Program Assessment Surveys and Analysis: NYCLA's Research and
Evaluation team will design and administer formative surveys and produce the

following summary reports:

- Pnncipal Satisfaction (surveys to be administered at the end of each delivery:

summer, school-year workshops, and coaching)

- Coeach and Facilitator Satisfaction (surveys to be administered after the 2015
summer training, at mid-year, and at end of year to measure overall satisfaction

with support they received in delivering this program)

- District Leadership Satisfaction (administered at end of program year to assess

satisfaction with overall program)

Proposed Colengar

Note: Dates subject to adjustment based on scheduling with IDE. Defiverables shaded gray

represent activities NYCLA is already providing through our existing contract with IDE.

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education Page | 5
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PD #1 Facilitator
Agenda Review

2 hours

Lora/NYCLA team

Provide support to Lora in reviewing
and preparing feedback to
facilitators re the customization of
their PD #1 agendas

Planning

FD Session 2 days Lora/NYCLA Provide capacity-building support to

Observations Lora through co-cbservation of two
different b-day PD sessicns and
modeling feedback to facilitators

Design of PD #2 5 day Facilitators Help facilitators reflect on previous
session and refine agenda based on
cohort needs

Program Scaling/Year 2 | 5 day TLC Admin Help IDE and partners think through

Advisory Group

how to expand reach in Year 2

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Deportment of Education
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PD #2 Faciiitator
Agenda Review

2 hours

Lora/NYCLA team

Provide support to Lora in reviewing
and preparing feedback to
facilitators re the customization of
their PD #2 agendas

Mid-Year Check In 5 day All coaches and
facilitators
Design of PD #3 5 day Facilitators Help facilitators reflect on previous

session and refine agenda based on

cohort needs

New coach selection

2 days

IDE/NYCLA

Interviews for any new coaches to
be hired for 2016-17 delive

Agenda Review

- Summer 2016 1.5 days Facilitators
curriculum revision
FCB1 1.5 days Newly hired
coaches for 2016-
17 program
PD #3 Facilitator 2 hours Lora/NYCLA team | Provide support to Lora in reviewing

and preparing feedback to
facilitators re the customization of
their PD #2 agendas

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Education
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Summer Institute Prep 2 days New facilitators Prepare new facilitators and
and coaches coaches to deliver summer training;
co-facilitated with Lora and existing
facilitators
Technical Assistance 5 day Lora/Sarah One of two half-day planning and

support sessions with Lora around
overall program management

Facilitator Training New facilitators

Technical suppert Weekly Lora/Sarah

calis
Program assessment NYCLA team will develop and
support administer surveys and synthesize

results throughout year

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Education Page | 8
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Work Cost
Facilitation and Design Support $43,000
Capacity Building ' $28,500
Local Coach and Facilitator Training $43,000
Program Evaluation $29,000
TOTAL $144,500

Please note that the cost for space and other needs, such as technology access, during
meetings held in lowa is not included in this proposal. In addition, proposed costs do not

include travel expenses for lowa-based personnel.

Proposed Case Shudy: lowe TLC Administrator Suppaort Program

As part of this proposal, NYCLA also seeks IDE's agreement and willingness to participate

in the development of a case study of the work.

Ultimately, for NYCLA, buiiding sustainable, high-quality leadership development is about
building the capacity to change practice of school leaders and also of these overseeing
training and development programs for principals. Our approach to measuring and
monitoring impact is twofold: we participate in and seek support for conducting third-party
evaluations; and our own Research, Evaluation and Impact department employs
formative and summative evaluation methods for collecting data on each of our client

engagements.

With regard to third party evaluations, NYCLA has been involved in an New York University
Institute for Education and Social Policy study, which measured NCYLA's NYC DOE
Aspiring Principals Program participants’ student achieverment impact under the
participants' new leadership; and is currently involved in a RAND study associated with a
paired principal/assistant principal teaming mode! - supported through the U.S.

Department of Education's Investing in Innovation program — and an AIR study designed

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education Page | %
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to compare various elements of leadership development programs from across the

country.

On the in-house side, one important method NYCLA uses to gather rich, up-close, in-depth
data to examine a specific client engagement is the case study. Case studies allow us —
through observation, interviews, focus groups, and existing client descriptive data or
collateral ~ to understand and describe the local context and its unique elements. NYCLA
develops case studies when we think the client engagernent provides strategic
importance to our work and would be beneficial to the client and to the field. Through
case studies, we assess the ways in which leadership development was conceived,
delivered, and evolved and identify the unique characteristics that can inform the client,

the engagement, and leadership development approaches going forward.

We would like to pursue a case study of the lowa work because of the statewide
implementation of leadership development, the role leadership development plays in the
state’s education improvement agenda, and the state’s attention to capacity building and

sUstainabi%ity.

We are requesting IDE's agreement to allow us to develop this case study, including
access to information gathering through interview, surveys, observation, focus groups,
and data collection of existing collateral, and to review of data collected by IDE as part of

its summative evaluation efforts of the initiative.

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Education Page | 10
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Contract/MEA/Grant Number: 024516

lowa Department of Education
Amendment # 1

Contracting Agency/individual:  NYC Leadership Academy inc.

Current Operational Pericd: Start Date: November 1, 2015 End Date: June 30, 2016

Current Budgeted

Amount: $ 144,500.00

Reason for Amendment (check all that apply): |:| Work Scope [ ] Budget Amount D End Date

Detailed description of any new activities being added to work scope: (attach additional pages if needed)

New End Date requested: New Budget Amount requested: S 144,500.00

Justification for amendment request: {indicate any changes in funding source(s), attach new budget if needed, attach
additional pages if needed)

Changing the funding source from Teacher Leadersip Technical Assistance to Administrator Mentoring/Coaching.

COMPENSATION:
Original Contract Amount: S 144,500.00
Amendment Amount: 5
Revised Contract TOTAL: $ 144,500.00
For Internal Purposes Only:
FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OBl PROG AMOUNT
0001 282 W020 2469 S 144,500.00
- 282 $
282 S

Total | $ 144,500.00

Authorization for Amendment Request (Signature indicates agreement to carry out terms of agreement as amended}:

)"/ KCW . A | A g »Jl”g“@\/\ /A\;"' f}‘fﬁf}{é,
DE CONTACT A “TIHE. - DATE _
ﬁ@/wﬂ Z/@ L G-/t “/é/

DE AﬁﬂlﬁtSTRATION J TITLE DATE
WQWQ

CONTRACTING AGEN INDIVIDUAL TITLE CﬁA{E ‘
Chief, internal Administrative Services /ﬁ/@
DW SW TITLE DATE

Form 19: Amendment {7/15)




CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN .
STATE OF 10WA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DE), Division of Policy & Communications ‘ Pl =5 %*f t‘t @ oo E

Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14 Street, Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146
Department Contact Person: Lora Rasey/Carol Ross  Phone: {515) 281-6719
‘ AND

CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy Inc
PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES:

" ADDRESS: 45-18 Court Square, 3™ Floor CITY, STATE, ZIP: Long Island City, NY 11101
PHONE: 718-752-7365 EMAIL: ‘
BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Irma Zardoya BUSINESS CONTACT EMAlL: izardoya@nycleadershipacademy.org

THE DEPARTMENT WILL COMPENSATE FOR THE FOLLOWING SERVICES RENDERED BY THE CONTRACTING PARTY:.
(DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES): Design a statewide professional development initiative to build the capacity of school and district
administrative leaders to support the state's Teacher Leadership and Gompensation (TLC) initiative. See Attached Documentation. :

THE DEPARTMENT WiL MONITOR AND REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTING PARTY USING THE FOLLOWING
MEASURES: (PERFORMANCE MEASURES): See Attached Documentation

CONTRACT PERIGD:  Service Begins: January 5, 2015 Service Ends: Decermber 30, 2015

COMPENSATION:  As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.
$260,000.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized below under the “Associated Costs” section.
$0.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of (Number} (Units) at § per {Unit).
$2€0,000.00 CONTRACT IS NOTTO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Only the items designated are covered; required documentation is indicated under the “Other
Conditions/ Requirements” section. A budget shall be submitted. {Estimated costs shown)

50.00 TRAVEL: FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach § Auto $ {50.39/mile) Taxi $ Parking $
Other $ {ITEMIZE)

NOTE: ALL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL {from lowa to another state) MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.

50.00 MEALS: Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates: 7

' Breakfast: @s ea - Lunch: @s ez Dinner: @s ea

**Vendor must leave home before 6:00am to claim breckfast; and must return home after 7:00pm to claim dinner.
Reimbursement shall be per state established guidelines unless otherwise noted above: Breokfast 8/Lunch 512
{unless provided}/Dinner 523. Alcohol is not a reimbursable expense. _

50.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed § per night, plus tax of 5

$260,000.00 OTHER: {ITEMIZE) See Attached Documentation

CLAIM/PAYMENT PROVISIONS:
1) UPON ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES {AS STATED]) BY THE DE; AND
2} ITEMIZED INVOICE FOR ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED.
3] ALL CLAIMS MUST BE SUBMITTED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF PERFORMING SERVICES,

Payment requests should be submi_tted to the attention of: Carol Ross, Internal Administrative Services, lowa Department of
Education, Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14™ Street, Des Moines, IA 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY* _
FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OB/ PROG AMOUNT VENDOR NUMBER
0001 282 W20 2469 , $260,000.00 00003078678
282 _ $0.00 VENDOR DUNS NUMBER
282 _ o $0.00
282 ' - $0.00 . CFDA NUMBER
' TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $260,000,00

Form 15A; Personal Service Contract (7/14)
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OTHER CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS: Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements listed below shall apply:
Reimbursement shall be limited to the State of lowa relmbursement rates,
Mileage Reimbursement: $0.33 per mife.
Lodging and Meal Reimbursement rates: as designated under “Associated Costs” section.
Receipts: Must be submitted with a signed claim when the contract is with an individual. Legible itemized receipts are

required for Travel, Lodging (must show a S0 balance}, and other reimbursable expenses, excluding meals. Credlt
card receipts are not acceptable.

The following expenses are specifically referenced:
TRAVEL: Air coach, taxi fares, related parking fees and car rental. :
MEALS: Detailed itemized expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted,
LODGING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the designated meeting site. Lodging must
be outside the contracting party’s domicile.
OTHER: Registration fees and other items (as designated under “Associated Costs” section) require receipts
unless specified otherwise.

The bE reserves the right to request rece'ip‘ts as necessary to: {1) validate any expense claim and (2) adjust reimbursable rates
and policies for in-state and out-of-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accounting Policy and/or lowa
~ Lode. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unilaterally to vendors.

ITEMIZED INVOICE: Contfacting party must submit an griginal, detailed invoice with original signature(s).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS (IP}: All Intellectual Property Rights to materials, documents, and data or any other tangible/

rr’)tzgglble designed and/or develo ed under direct fu dlng from this,project shall be the sole property of the DE.
i

hibit [ plovides obreem I
GOVERNING hwé ""?'hls cgontract shail g gwgﬁzna“clr ivy t%a fvwsﬁof the State of Eo%@“i’“’dﬁpung{}i@ﬁw@m ﬁéﬁ«e TQE &nzf /j _,?? fo ?ﬁ;

e

TERMINATION: This contract may be terminated by either party upon ten (10) days written notice.

NONTRANSFERENCE: Unless otherwise stipulated in this contract, the contracting party shall not transfer any interest in this
- contract without prior written approval from the lowa Department of Education.

AMENDMENTS: Requests for an approval of amendments to this agreement must be mutually acceptable and in writing.

INDEMNIFICATION: The contracting party agrees jointly and severally to indemnify and hold the State, its successors and assigns
harmless from and against all liability, loss, damage, or expense, including reasonable counsel fees, which the State shall incur
by reason of the failure of the contracting party to perform fully and comply with the terms and obligations of this agreement.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: This contract is subject to the anticibated availability of Federal and/or State funds under the program
from which it is supported.

ASSURANCE: THE CONTRACTING PARTY, BY SIGNATURE AFFIXED BELOW, ASSURES THE DEPARTMENT THAT SAID CONTRACTING
PARTY IS OPERATING IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL STATUTES, RULES AND REGUIATIONS,
INCLUDING CERTIFICATION THE CONTRACTING PARTY AND/OR ITS PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS ARE NOT SUSPENDED OR DISBARRED.

REPRESENTATIONS: VERBAL OR WRITTEN, THAT MAY HAVE BEEN MADE PRIOR TO THE SIGNING OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE
NOT EXPRESSLY STATED 1N THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, ARE NONBINDING, YOID AND OF NO EFFECT. NEITHER PARTY HAS
RELIED ON SUCH PRIOR REPRESENTATIONS WHEN ENTERING INTO THIS CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT,

He £ one I _Ed (fém;,,gzwﬂ: oF Ok -15
PE CONTACT (Requestlngs ice) TITLE ] DATE

Btpm (10 %ﬁ&@_ ) /04 /1S
DE ApMING )STRAT!ON - ‘ TITLE ¢ DATE
2WM CEO /-13-16"

CONTRAC‘HNG Y OR INDIV] TITLE | /I

O
) i Chief, Internal Administrative Services (..j Lf
U / , TITLE DATE

" - CONTRACTING PARTY: PLEASE SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN AN QRIGINAL COPY TO THE DEPARTMENT. THIS CONTRACT WILL

BE VALID WHEN YOU RECEIVE A COPY WITH THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION'S AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE.

Agreement # 029715

Form 15A: Personal Service Contract {7/14)



“Agreement # 029715

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

STATE OF IOWA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DE)}, Division of Policy & Communications
Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14 Street, Des Moines, IA 50319-0146
Department Contact Person: Lora Rasey/Carol Ross  Phone: {515) 281-6719

AND

CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy Inc
PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES:

ADDRESS: 45-18 Court Square, 3™ Floor CITY, STATE, ZIP: Long Island City, NY 11101
PHONE: 718-752-7365 EMAIL; _
BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Irma Zardoya BUSINESS CONTACT EMAIL: izardoya@ nycleadershipacademy.org

THE DEPARTMENT WILL COMPENSATE FOR THE FOLLOWING SERVICES RENDERED BY THE CONTRACTING PARTY:
{DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES}: Design a statewide professional development initiative to build the capacity of scheol and district
administrative leaders to support the state's Teacher Leadership and Gompensation (TLC) initiative. See Attached Documentation.

THE DEPARTMENT WILL MONITOR AND REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTING PARTY USING THE FOLLOWING
MEASURES: (PERFORMANCE MEASURES): See Attached Documentation

CONTRACT PERIOD: Service Begins: January 5, 2015 Service Ends: December 30, 2015
COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.
$260,000.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized below under the “Associated Costs” section.
$0.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of (Number} (Units) at $ per {Unit).

$260,000.00 CONTRACT IS NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Cnly the items designated are covered; required documentation is indicated under the “Other
Conditions/ Requirements” section. A budget shall be submitied. (Estimated costs shown)

$0.00 TRAVEL: FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach % Auto S {$0.39/mile) Taxi & Parking S
Other S {ITEMIZE}) :

NOTE: ALL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL {from lowa to another state) MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.

$0.00 MEALS: Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates:

Breakfast: @5 ea Lunch: @s ea Dinner: @S ea

**Vendor must leave home before 6:000m to claim breakfast; and must return home after 7:00pm to claim dinner.
Reimbursement shall be per state established guidelines uniess otherwise noted above: Breakfast 58/Lunch 512
(uniess provided)/Dinner 523. Alcohol is not a reimbursable expense.

$0.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed 5 per night, plus tax of §

$260,000.00 OTHER: (ITEMIZE) See Attached Documentation

CLAIM/PAYMENT PROVISIONS:
1) UPON ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES {AS STATED) BY THE DE; AND
2} ITEMIZED INVOICE FOR ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED.
3} ALL CLAIMS MUST BE SUBMITTED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF PERFORMING SERVICES.

Payment requests should be submitted to the attention of: Carol Ross, Internal Administrative Services, lowa Department of
Education, Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14" Street, Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY* _
FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OBJ PROG AMOUNT VENDOR NUMBER
0001 282 W020 2469 $260,000.00 00003078678

282 ' $0.00 VENDOR DUNS NUMBER

282 ‘ $0.00

282 $0.00 CFDA NUMBER
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $260,000.00

Form 15A: Personal Service Contract (7/14)



- et

OTHER CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS: Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements listed below shall apply:
Reimbursement shall be limited to the State of lowa reimbursement rates.
Mileage Reimbursement: $0.39 per mile.
Lodging and Meal Reimbursement rates: as designated under “Associated Costs” section.
Receipts: Must be submitted with a signed claim when the contract is with an individual. Legible itemized receipts are
required for Travel, Lodging (must show a S0 balance), and other reimbursable expenses, excluding meals. Credlt
card recmpts are not acceptable.

The following expenses are specifically referenced:
. TRAVEL: Air coach, taxi fares, related parking fees and car rental.
MEALS: Detailed itemized expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted.
LODGING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the designated meeting site. Lodging must
be outside the contracting party’s domicile.
OTHER: Registration fees and other items (as designated under “Associated Costs” section) require receipts
unless specified otherwise.

The DE reserves the right to request receipts as necessary to: (1) validate any expense claim and (2) adjust reimbursable rates
and policies for in-state and out-of-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accounting Policy and/or lowa
Lode. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unilaterally to vendors.

ITEMIZED INVOICE: Contracting party must submit an original, detailed invoice with original signature(s).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS (IP): All Intellectual Property Rights to materials, documents, and data or any other tangibte/
intangible designed and/or developed under direct funding from this project shall be the sole property of the DE.

~ GOVERNING LAWS: This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of lowa.
TERMINATION: This contract may be terminated by either party upon ten {10} days written notice.

NONTRANSFERENCE: Uniess otherwise stipulated in this contract, the contracting party shall not transfer any interest in this
contract without prior written approval from the lowa Department of Education,

AMENDMENTS: Requests for an approval of amendiments to this agreement must be mutually acceptable and in writing.

INDEMNIFICATION: The contracting party agrees jointly and severally to indemnify and hold the State, its successors and assigns
harmless from and against all liability, loss, damage, or expense, including reasonable counsel fees, which the State shall incur
by reason of the failure of the contracting party to perform fully and comply with the terms and obligations of this agreement.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: This contract is subject to the anticipated availability of Federal and/or State funds under the program
from which it is supported.

ASSURANCE: THE CONTRACTING PARTY, BY SIGNATURE AFFIXED BELOW, ASSURES THE DEPARTMENT THAT SAID CONTRACTING
PARTY IS OPERATING IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL STATUTES, RULES AND REGULATIONS,
INCLUDING CERTIFICATION THE CONTRACTING PARTY AND/OR ITS PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS ARE NOT SUSPENDED OR DISBARRED.

REPRESENTATIONS: VERBAL OR WRITTEN, THAT MAY HAVE BEEN MADE PRIOR TO THE SIGNING OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE
NOT EXPRESSLY STATED IN THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, ARE NONBINDING, VOID AND OF NO EFFECT. NEITHER PARTY HAS
RELIED ON SUCH PRIOR REPRESENTATIONS WHEN ENTERING INTO THIS CONTRACTUAL AGREEM ENT.
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Exhibit 1

CONFIDENTIAUTY/OWNERSHIP. The VENDOR agrees that all financial, statistical or proprietary
information provided by an lowa school district or the lowa Department of Education (IDOE) or
any information that the VENDOR may acquire, directly or indirectly, if any, which relates to the
an lowa scheol district or the IDOE will be kept confidential and not used by or released to any
third party or parties without the prior written consent of the IDOE. The VENDOR further agrees
that any written material, {e.g., report, study, etc.}), developed for the IDOE under this contract,
excluding any materials previously developed and copyrighted by the VENDOR, shall be
property of the IDOE, and the IDOE shall be entitled to obtain copyrights or any similar such
protection for any deliverables furnished by the VENDOR under the terms of this Agreement,
and that any such materials be considered a “work-for-hire.” The VENDOR hereby grants the
IDOE a nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide, royalty-free license to use the VENDOR’S IP in
connection with any work developed for and delivered to the IDOE.

In the course of VENDOR’S work pursuant to this Agreement, and in addition to the license to
the IDOE of VENDOR P, VENDOR may provide the IDOE with certain custom

content that supports or is incorporated into the final version of any deliverable provided in this
Agreement ("Custom Content”). While VENDOR agrees not to make use of a final deliverable
provided to the IDOE without the IDOE prior approval, the IDOE hereby grants to VENDOR a
non-exclusive, perpetual, worldwide, royalty-free license to use, modify, copy, distribute,
translate, create derivative works of, make, sublicense and otherwise exploit the Custom
Content, including information, materials, data, research, curriculum, recommendations,
analysis, proposals, ideas, suggestions, plans, creative content, and copyrighted materials
incorporated therein, in any form or medium.
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frma Zardoya, CEO

NYC Leadership Academy
45-18 Court Square, 3" Floor
Long Island City, NY 11101

November 24, 2014

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department-of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14th Street

Des Moines, 1A 50318-0146

~ Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01

Dear Mr. Wise,
The NYC Leadership Academy is pleased to offer this proposal in response to RFP ED-RW279-01.

We acknowledge the receipt of Questions and Answers prowded for thls proposal issued on
November 7, 2014 and updated on November 18, 2014

Sincerely,

T

Irma Zardoya
President & Chief Executive Officer
E: izardeva@nycleadershipacademy.org

P: (718) 752-7365
F: (718) 752-7440
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Execulive Summary

The NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) is pleased to submit this proposal to the-lowa
Department of Education {DE) in response to RFP ED-RW279-01 for the design of a
statewide professional development initiative t6 build the capacity of sghool and district

“ leaders to support the state's new Teacher Leadership and Compens'étion (TLC) initiative.
We are enthusiastic about this oppoertunity to support lowa's TLC work, and agree to the
terms/conditions of the RFP and proposed contract.

As an organization with deep expertise in designing and delivering standards-based
training and coaching for school leaders, we have strong beliefs about what meaningsul

professional development is. These beliefs, which are grounded in research and

supported by our experience working with more than 40 clients across 25 states, include
the following:

s Lffective professicnal development is job-embedded and relevant to the work that
school and district leaders need to do on behalf of schools and students: this

includes the need for it to be contextually relevant to local district needs and

o et

priorities.

e Inordertoresultin real behavioral changes, professional development needs to be
intensive and sustained over enough time to enable school and district leaders to
push beyohd their Chc;”n;fort zones, to practice new behaviors, and to engage in
guided reflection on their learning. » ‘

s |Improving schools and student outcomes is not the iob of a single person, thus
professional development that supperis and buiids /eédersh/p systens (within
schools and within districts) is particularly powerful; such professional |
development builds capacity around teaming and collaboration and builds leaders’

systems thinking skills in order to align efforts and leverage others’ skillsets on
behalf of scheol change and student learning.

With these beliefs in mind, NYCLA proposes working with the lowa DE between January

and June 2014 to design a comprehensive, year- long professmnal development program
that will focus on buiiding principal capacity to develop and facilitate distributed

leadership in their schools, namely by supporting and Ieveragmg teacher leaders as part

N e e

of their leadership teams. Leveraging successful school Ieadersh|p team- focused

NYC teadership Academy // lowa Deportment of Fducalion
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professional devélo;ament that we have designed and delivered over the past three years
in Rhode Island as part of a Race 1o the Top-funded initiative to suppeort school
turnaround, we propose designing a locally contextualized program for lowa that will
include a \ﬁﬁglﬁlg_}g summer training, ongoihg workshops through the schqol year, and
leadership coaching that will suppert the growth of school leaders and their leadership

teams. Given the DE's desire for a program that will serve districts statewide — and for a

program that can be sustained over time — our proposal also includes working with the

DE and its partners to design an implementation plan for the program and to train lowa-

based facilitators and coaches to deliver the work starting in summer 2015 and continuing
through the 2015-16 school year. ‘

NYCLA's core mission is fo develop and support effective school leaders who transform
schools and improve outcomes for all students. Launched in 2003 to provide aspiring
principat preparation and support for the NYC Department of Education (NYCDOE),
NYCLA continues to be the largest provider of aspiring and sitting school leader
professional developrment for the NYCDOEF; to date we have coached and trained more
than 1,600 NYCDOE principals. NYCLA also delivers hEgh-dua?ity strategic schoot
leadership consulting and training nationally based on the needs of clients. We work with
cur partners in both short- and long-term engagements to address a range of ateas
critical to developing highquuaiity schoal leadership.

NYCLA has been selected as & partner by national organizations working to advance the
field of school leadership. NYCLA has repeatedly been chosen by The Wallace Foundation
as alead pariner for its national schoo! feadership work. The George W. Bush institute
selected NYCLA to lead a national initiative to define best practice in aspiring principal
residency prbgrams, and recently chose NYCLA to be the focus of a study of the impact of
principal preparation programs, based on our track record of placing principals in
schools, maintaining partnerships with K--12 districts, teaching candidates through
“experiential learning, and using data to impreve continuously.

Rather than offering a series of pre-designed, off-the-shelf workshops for lowa school and
district leaders, we are proposing to d_e_\_f_e_lv'cip a system of professional development that
will be designed specifically to meet lowa’s needs, distﬁcts’lneeds, and individual
principals’ needs - and to work with local stakeholders to identify and train tral n"ing

i S

S s et
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famhtators and Ieadershlp coaches Who can deploy the program statewide. Con5|stent

. o AT -
o i AT e

© with our preferred consulting approach in which we focus on buumcal capacity to
design, deliver, and sustain eﬁectlve school leadership professmnalmpment we
believe this proposal represents an opportunity for the DE to invest in the development of
a robust program that will build local school feadership development capacity statewide,
support the efficacy of the TLC initiative, and result in immediate changes in schools. And
while we would welcome the opportunity to support the implementation of this program if
additional funding is available beyond June 2015, we feel the work we are proposin

~ weould be sufficient to prepare local teams to deliver the program effectively for schoo%
feaders and their teams.

In terms of the training design, the professional development program that we propose to
devélop for lowa focuses on helping school leaders mobilize, facilitate and lead teams,
with an emphasis on honing and implementing scMﬁ?ﬁ’J [T Blans. We Believe this
is a particularly poweﬁuﬁv;y toc approach the work of supporting téacher leaders, as it Wili

engage school and district leaders and teacher leaders in collaborative conversations

about school needs and plans for strengthening instructional practice, and it will develop
teaming and distributed leadership skills across the board — skills that both principals and
teacher leaders will carry with them throﬁgh their careers. This approach will also ensure
that it will be relevant to scheols and leadership teams at different stages of TLC
implementation; schools that are farther along in rolling out the TLC work will not be bored

by rehashing concepts they've already begun to implement, and schools that have not yet
begun this work will be able to start strong.

Our proposal includes four major components:

= A statewide stakeholder engagement process, which will include focus groups '
and interviews with local district and school leaders and teacher leaders, in'order
to surface issues and needs ~ and potential partners — that will inform the
program design :

« Strategic program design assistance, during which NYCLA will work with the
DE and other stakeholders to develop a plan for statewide implementation of the

professional development program and establish partnerships that will support
this impiementation

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Educalion
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*  Curriculum design, including development of curriculum for a one-week
summer training and three school-year workshops, as well as integration with our
leadership coaching model

¢ Training of local facilitators and coaches to implement the program starting in
Juty 2015,

Just as implernenting the TLC work is in itself a change process, so too is the cycle of
professional development we are offering to design. Rather than existing as a point-in-
time, isolated workshop that principals can walk away ffom and never think about again,
this program and curriculum would be designed 0 ehgage principals and district
administrators - alongside the teacher leaders they are béing called to invest in —in the

process of changing culture throughout the summer and school year. This deep work, .

sty iy i e g S 12

enga'ged in through the summer institute, school year workshops, and ongoing coaching,
will allow principals to explore the tension between their vision of leveraging teacher
leadership for school improvement and the daily reality of working in their schools, -

Ultimately, the systern of professional development that we propose designing here will
be aimed to help administrators maximize the potential of the work of teacher leaders for
the sake of driving positive outcomes in student achievement, We believe that the work of
helping aduits in school teadership roles work together on behalf of driving change and
increasing student achievement takes more than delivering three or four canned
workshops over six months. We believe that it requires a thoughtful curriculum design
based in a deep knowledge of how aduits learn best a thorough understanding of
context, including political, social, and educational factors; the ability to push school
leaders' thinking; and the expertise to teach adults how to build teams that can be far
more effective than individuals acting in isolation. All of these elements are strengths that +
NYCLA brings to bear with our team of experienced, knowledgeable staff. |

NYC Legdership Acodemy // lowa Department of Education
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Service Requirements

CNYC l.eadership Academy (NYCLA) is eager to support the lowa Department of Education
(BE) inits efforts to support administrators in implementing Teacher Leadership and.
Compensation {TLC) plans. Based on best practices and the latest research in leadership
development, NYCLA is uniquely positioned to pariner with the lowa DE to design a
cohesive professicnal developmént program jor principals and administrators and to

build local capacity to deliver and carry forward this work, and we are confident that we
meet the service regquirements cutlined in the RFP.

£

NYCLA's Anprogch o Leodership Develonmend

NYCLA's innovative leadership development model drives our approach to program
design. lts key etements include:

» Experiential Learning: Drawing on adult learning theories and research, NYCLA
pregrams engage participants in authentic work and job-embedded learning.

» Standards-Based Alignment: Clear leadership performance standards guide
program and curricuium design.

e Context-Specific Development: Programs are aligned to the goals, policies and
initiatives of the locat school system.

e Teaming: Because teamwork is an essential element of school improvement,

NYCLA programs use teaming to further participant learning and growth.

e Accountable Practice: NYCLAs hold both program participants and its staff
accountable for achieving standards and expectations of ieadership performance.

« Ongoing Improvement through Evaluation/Feedback: With a commitment to
organizational learmning, NYCLA continually assesses and improves its programs

through summative and formative evaluations and external research studies.

NYCLA's approach to leadership deveiopr}gent builds on research-based theories of adult
learning (see, for example, Drago-Severson, E. 2004; Fink, L. D. 1999; Lieb, S. '
1991 Vygotsky, L. 1978; Zemke, S. & R. 1984; Donovan, M., Branstford, J. D., & Pellegrino, J.

NYC Leadership Acodemy // lowa Depariment of Educotion
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1999). These theories, all of which support the use of problem-based and action learning,

suggest that schoo! leaders are more likely to learn at.a more accelerated pace when;

1) the feaming environment activates and builds on their prior knowledge while

providing significant opportunities to construct and acquire new kﬂnowledge*
2) the learning environment requires immediate application of new knowledge, and

3) the new knowledge is relevant to an authentic context in which it will be used
(Bridges and Hallinger 1995, p. 5).

All of our programs, therefore, use problem-based and acticn learning methodologies,
placing participants in simulated and/or actual leadership situations, with all of the
information, data systems, regulations, and constraints that govern the work of school
leaders. Coaching and schocl leader support is an important component of NYCLA
programs, enabling school leaders te reach their full potential (Modre, 2006; Reeves &
Ellison, 2009; and Spiro et al. 2007, Turnbull, Riley, and MacFarlane, 2013).

Proposed Program Design

NYCLA proposes consulting with the lowa DE to design a cohesive, strategic program that
will include a three-pronged approach to prbfessional deVeI'opment to help administrators
support TLC: a summer institute for principals and small teams of teacher leaders; three
school-year workshops for the same teams; and principal coaching. NYCLA will also work
with the DE to identify and build the capacity of facilitators and coaches to deliver the ‘
program beginning in July 2015. NYCLA's customized approach to curriculum design will
support the following ocutcomes:

e Tailoring to lowa’s specific needs—and the needs of TLC districts throughout the
~ state—will ensure maximum relevance of fearning.

* Allowing principals and teacher teams to learn together and to complete authentic
work during the summer institute and school-year workshops will enable them to
develep stronger professional relationships.

e [Drawing on adult learning research, locat facilitators will be trained to embed
meta-cognitive connections during the PD sessions, stepping back from the work

they are doing with the group to unpack how the strategies they are using can be

NYC teadership Acodemy // lowa Depariment of Educafion
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used by principals and teams tc work more effectively with teacher leaders in their
schools. '

¢ Training local facilitators and coaches in our approach to the work will build deep
skill sets and knowledge bases that will enabie local staff to invest in the learning of
administrators and teachers in lowa long after NYCLA's engagement has ended.

= 7 e

AT

NYCLA's curriculum design will be carefully aligned to the TLC System Framework for
Learning Supports (as shown in the content map in the Appendix) and to the jocal lowa

context. In addition, curriculum will be impacted by school-specific goals and the
e i ey et

overarching goais of the TLC System, as well as by learning needs of principals and their

tearns. Feedback loops between facilitators and coaches on where principals and teams

are struggling and where they are strong will strengthen the targeted nature of facilitators'
and coaches' interventions.

The program and curriculum design will target the state’s ultimate purpose for this work:
to support principals to develop a vision for schoo! improvement with teacher leadership
as a primary point of leverage. *

To achieve the state's purpose in this work, we propese that NYCLA'S work with the lowa
DE be comprised of four phases/components:

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Educalion
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l. Phase |: Stakeholder Engagement
H. Phase Ii: Program Design
1 Phase Il Curriculum Design

V. Phase IV: Training Local Facilitators and Coaches

Fhose It Sokeholder Engagemsnt
Timeline: January 2015

Service requirement(s) addressed: 3.2.1, 3.2.4

Inall of our client work we emphasize designed professional development that is tailored
to local needs. To that end, we propose beginning cur work in lowa by facilitating

e

interviews and focus groups key participants in districts currently implementing the TLC
Framework: '

= Superintendents, principal supervisors, and other district leaders
o Principals
+ Teacherieaders

» Members of the Commission on Educator Leadership and Compensation

The purpose of these conversations, to be held in January 2015, is tc gain greater insight
into the local leadership development context and the TLC roll-out, identify key leadership
development needs, and build understanding of and buy-in for the work. Focus groups
will be conducted over one week in lowa in January 2015; we propose spending cne day
in each of four different parts of the state (to be identified in discussion with the DE).

In addition to these focus groups, NYCLA staff will meet with DE and Commission
representatives to identify potential implemehtation partners who can both assist with
delivery of the curriculum and ensure sustainability of the program moving forward, as
mare districts in lowa adopt use of the TLC System in the years to come. identification of
these partners — whether statewide organizations such as School Administrators of lowa,

regional agencies, or even iead districts — will be important so that these parties can be at
. the table for the next phase of work.

. NYC leadership Academy // lowo Depczftmén% of Education
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NYCLA will provide the lowa DE with a summary and synthesis of emergmg msughts
which will guide the work going forward.

Deliverables:

1.1 Develop and conduct focus groups with key stakeholders over five days in lowa in
January 2015,

1.2 Facilitate meeting with DE and others closely involved in the implementation of the
TLC initiative to identify potential implementation partners for this professional
development program.

1.3 Synthesize feedback from focus groups to identify key issues administrators and
- principals are facing in implementing the TLC System, and develop
recornmendations to inform next steps.

hase b Progrorn Desion
Timeline: February-April 2015
Service requirement(s) addressed: 3.2.1,3.2.2,3.24,3.25

Building on the work from Phase |, NYCLA will lead the development of a program design
process that will inform program components and curricuium design, identify partners for -
program implementation, and determine the process for statewide roll-out.

To launch this work the NYCLA team will spend three days in lowa in February 2015 to
lead a program design discussicn with a working group made up of DE siaff and
representatives from key partners. NYCLA will facilitate the discussion in order gst input

on and make decisions about programmatic structure, methods for delivery, and
sustainability of the program.

Objectives of this phase will include determining a strategic statewide roll-out plan for the
professional development program: where it will be offered, who will deliver the training,
and who wili provide the coaching support. For example, should the AEAs serve as
centers for deployi*ng the program to surrounding districts? Or would it make more sense

to offer this as a program that districts can provide for their own schools, and invite them

NYC {eadership Academy // lowa Depadment of Fducallon
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to %dentify centrat office staff who will be responsible for implementation? In terms of the
coaching component, NYCLA has been talking with School Administrators of lowa for
some time about building the capacity of its affiliated coaches statewide to support
school leaders through NYCLA's Facilitative, Competency-Based coaching approach:;
thus, we would welcome the opportunity to explore a partnership with SAl around the roll-
out of the coaching component cf the program we are proposing.

NYCLA will work with the DE and identified p'artners arcund criteria for identifying
individual facilitators and coaches for this program, as welt as around messaging
strategies for communicating program requirements and expectatons to districts and

. administrators. With respect to the former, we will work with identified partners to share

our established facilitator and coaching competenmes which can help gu ide selection of
those we wili train in Phase IV. '

“As part of the program design process NYCLA will also design an evaluation plan to
measure the program's effectiveness and impact once itis implemented. NYCLA's in-
house research team will adapt NYCLA evaluations for each mMajor program component;
the summer institute, school-year workshops, and coaching. Program evaluation

- instruments will be delivered to the lowa DE along with curriculum design.

Program evaluation will include a combination of participant satisfaction surveys,

measurement of principal leadership behaviors, coach feedback, and district leadership
feedback. The data used to both inform and evaluate the success of this work will be
collected in the following ways:

« Participant feedback survey to be administered after the summer institute and after
each school-year workshop

» Feedback survey for principals about how coaching is moving their leadership
practice, to be administered at the end of the 2015-16 school year

s Feedback survey for coaches on how ths coaching program functioned in practice
and how it could be strengthened

¢ Feedback survey for facilitators on how the professional development functicned in
practice and how it could be strengthened |

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Deparmient of Educalion
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1



i~

LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

Bbelivergbles:

21 Facilitation of multi-day program design meeting with DE and partner-

representatives, to be held in lowa in February 2015.

2.2 Work with towa DE staff to craft selection criteria for, and identify, local facilitators
and coaches. -

2.3 Creation of‘marketing materials for communicating program cpportunities and
expectations to districts and schools. |

2.4 Development of evaluation instruments, including s(jrveys about the summer
institute, school-year workshops, and ceaching. A

Fhase HD Curdculum Design
Timeline: March/April 2015
Service requirement(s) addressed: 3.2.1,3.2.2,3.23,3.24

Th‘e_ NYCLA team will design curricutum for a five-day summer institute and three half-day
‘school-year workshops. The design process, while completed primarily by the NYCLA
team, will include two days of co-design that NYCLA will lead in lowa with local facilitators
to ensure the curriculurm is aligned to local needs. This process will also introduce the
selected facilitators to NYCLA's curriculum design process, which will build capacity for
ocngoing refinement of the CLﬁriCulum.

e

Curriculum Aligned to Standards

Commitment to a standards-based approach is a hallmark of all of NYCLA's work: all
aspects of the work are aligned to a description of competencies, which involves
knowledge, a set of skills, and dispositions. In our work with school leaders in other states
and districts, NYCLA has leveraged its leadership competency framework, the Leadership
Performance Planning Worksheet® (LPPW), to distill the most critical leadership
competencies for school ieaders. The LPPW is an externally validated tool that presents
39 critical leadership behaviors organized into eight leadership dimensions; it was
cdeveloped through a review and synthesis of principal leadership protocois used

NYC lLeadership Academy // towa Deparment of Educalion
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naticnally, including the Interstate School Leaders Licensure Consortium (ISLLC)
standards.: An excerpt from two dimensions of the LPPW is included in the Appendix.

All professional development sessicns and -Coaching work will be mapped to the
competencies contained in the LPPW.

Curricutum Descriptions

Below is a description of each of the three service offerings to be designed. A content
map showing the alignment of the three services to each of the seven elements in the.
TLC System Framework for Learning Supports can be found in the Appendix.

Summer Institute

Purpose: Support the principal in forming a cohesive team that is aligned to a singular
mission and is abie to plan for and begin the urgent changes he/she needs to make

regarding teacher leadership, with the goal of increased student achievement in mind.

The five-day summer institute will be designed for principals to attend on the first day, and
for principals and their selected team of three or four people (teacher leaders; possibly the
assistant principal; and, if applicable, a local administrator—likely a principal supervisor
such as a superintendent— who can float between district teams) to attend days two

through five. The principal leads his/her team, and the local administrator supports the
work of the team.

The work of the summer institute allows the principal to set vision with his/her team and
collaboratively plan instructional change in the school in a way that structurally begins {or
continues) the leveraging of teacher leaders for schoei-wide improvement, Furthermore,
support for the principal during the summer institute—which is then threaded through
aligned coaching support and school-year workshops--helps the principal grow in

his/her ability to support teacher leaders as they implement this vision and instructicnal
change. |

During the summer institute, teams will spend time working on an instructional initiative in
which teacher leadership will play a critical role. This time for the principal to coliaborate
with his/her team will lay (or strengthen) the foundation for developing Hargreaves and

* Thiz alignment will be updated in winter 2015 based on the release of the 1SLLC refresh in fall 2014,

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education
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Fullan's definition of teaching as professional capital, where human capital (talent and
education), social capital (the collaborative power of a group) and decisicnal capital (the

wisdom to make sound judgments) combine to create something in which the product is
greater than the sum of its parts.

The fact that most work will be done in teams during the summer institute (and school-
year workshops) allows for differentiation based on how far along different schools and
-districts are in the TLC rollout and instructional improvement: teams will be able to choose
their own starting point for diving into this work. The use of the LPPW allows the principal
and administrator to enter the work where they are as a leader, as the leadership

differentiation is not based on where the TLC work is but rather what the leader needs to
do to improve the TLC work.

Debrief time with the principals and administrators at the end of the summer institute
sessions will focus on meta-cognition—deconstruction of the facititation and connections

to how the principals can facilitate and coach their teacher leaders in the same way.

School-Year Workshops

Purpose: Engage principals and their teams in sustained, relevant, and interactive learning
experiences that support implementation of school plans. Engage principals and their
teams in building relevant content knowledge, practicing necessary skills in

-communication and teamwork, and developing professional capital.

The NYCLA team will design three half-day school-year workshops intended to provide
sustained opportunity for participating principals and their team members to continue and
reinforce the learning and practices introduced during the summer institute. These
sessions focus on different but integrated topics that align to the flow of the schoo! year,
building on the learning objectives from the summer institute throughout the year,
allowing for iterative leadership development. Like the summer institute, the sessions
include work with participants’ actual teacher leadership initiatives and actual problems of

practice, and are based on the same principles of adult learning and NYCLA's approach to
learning facititation as described above.

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education
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Coaching

Purpose: Provide individualized support to the p'fincipal, aligned to the summer institute
. and school-year workshop curricula, to transform and deepen his/her leadership
behaviors, specifically around developing and support teacher leaders.

Local coaches, trained by NYCLA and utilizing our Facilitative, Competency-Based (FCB)
coaching model, will provide one-on-one support for principals. NYCLA's FCB coaching
model is designed to ensure context-specific and job-embedded leadership support; the
goal is close-knit integration of this supp:ort with the other two program components.
.NYCLA'S school leadership coaching model is grounded in research-based leadership
standards (as articulated in the LPPW) and reflects NYCLA's commitment to & standards-
based, experiential approach to leadership development and support.

Finally, NYCLA will design a retreat protocof for School Team Retreats. Each hali-day
retreat is an opportunity for principals and up to four team members to work on important
issues in a collaborative and collegial setting. Principals afe responsibie for leading and
facilitating their teams’ retreats. Coaches helo to create an envirenment that is
comfortable and free of distraction so school teams can engage in rigorous and
thoughtiul planning. The retreats provide principals and teams an extended ocpportunity
to revisit their plans and review progréss since the summer institute; they also give
coaches an opportunity to observe principals in action, allowing them to better diagnose
areas where the principals are struggling and thus to provide more effective coaching.

Deliverables:
3.1 Design of five-day summer institute curriculum
3.2 Design of three school-year workshops

3.3 Design of a protocal for half-day team retreats, for principals and school teams to
conduct on their own

3.4 Two-day curriculum design meeting with local facilitators to adapt sections of
curriculum, to be held in lowa in March/April 2015

NYC Leadership Academy // lown Depardment of Educalion
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Phase IV Tralning Local Fagiitalorn
Timeline: March-June 2015

Service requirement(s) addressed: 3.2.1,3.2.2,3.2.4

During this phase, NYCLA will provide training to program facilitators and coaches, as
selected by the partners identified in Phase I, to prepare them to deliver the professional
development curriculum and coaching starting in July 2015.

As a starting point, we propose training - in lowa — up to\]L_Zjacmtators to facilitate summer
institutes and school-year worksheps ‘around the state, and up t@g 30 Iocal coaches who
will be trained to provide support that is mtegrated with the formal group training. In
addition, we propose working with our local partner(s) o identify up@o? the coaches
who can serve as Lead Coaches, who will help develop a statewide community of
practice among the coaches. These five lead coaches will participate in additional training
and will shadow experienced NYCLA coaches in New York City.

Our method of training facilitators and coaches is intended to be a window into our
design and facilitation processes. Expert NYCLA facilitators and coaches will, during these
trainings, continually make meta-cognitive connections by unpacking the purpose of the
facilitation moves they are making. This process is meant to mirror how local lowa

facilitators and coaches will work with principals, which will also reflect how principals wil
work with teacher leaders.

Facilitator Training

The goal of NYCLA's Facilitator Training is to pravide opportunities to encounter,
understand, and practice what NYCLA means by facilitation. Participants will be
introduced to our philosophical and methodological framework and will learn from |
experience, reflection, and collaboration while moving between the roles of curriculum
designer, facilitator, and student. Through these experiences, participants will become
increasingly skilled in tailoring teaching strategies (such as mini-lessons, simulations, role
plays, and coaching) to their diagnosis of individuals and groups; in designing strategic,
foquséd interventions in order to push the thinking; in provoking and containing anxiety in

NYC leadership Academy // lowa Department of Educalion
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the service of learning; and in understanding the role of assessment of self and others as
a teaching and learning tool. By the end of the training, participants will have evaluated
their own skill fevels and begun a process of honing their ability to self-assess.

Participants will:

= Come to a common understanding of facilitation by making tacit knowledge of
facilitation explicit

o Develop and buitd on knowledge and skills of facilitation
e Have the opportunity to practice facilitation and receive feedback
Facilitative, Competency-Based Coach Training | and It (FCB | and I1)

NYCLA's unigue, standards-based FCB coaching model enables coaches to foster trusting
professional relationships with school ieaders to help them reflect on targeted leadership
behaviors, practices, and school challenges, and to develop the clear action steps
necessary to accelerate school transformation and student achievement. During the 1.5-

day FCB | session, participants will become familiar with the key components of our FCB .
coaching model.

Participants wiil:

= learn about how FCB's standards-based approach to school leadership
development can help school leaders improve their practice;

s develop and practice key coaching skills, including the ability te listen, question
and offer feedback; develop the capacity to diagnose school leadership strengths
and areas of growth; and -

e apply these FCB coaching skills to authentic school leadership challenges.

During FCB I, participants who have already attended our FCB | training wili develop the
necessary skills to deepen their coaching practice and address coaching challenges. This

session includes significant opportunities for participants to practice coaching skills and
receive peer feedback. '

Participants will:

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Education
Copyright © NYC Leadership Academy 2014, All vighis reserved.
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» self-assess against NYCLA ‘s Cecaching Cormnpetencies® to set learning goals for
growth in their coaching practice;

= practice ceaching skilis designed to address learning goals and receive targeted
peer feedback; and

« explore ways tc more effectively diagnose the root causes that contribute to
specific leadership behaviors., -

FCB1and Il wilt delve into certain concepts from the TLC Framework, including
organizaticnal leadership for administrators; adult learning; coliaborative culture;
communication; systems thinking, and data.

Access to Online Coaching Modules

Our series of 14 online modules help coaches develop and hone their capacity to provide

standards-based support to school leaders. These modules advance the impact of
coaching by:

* increasing understanding of NYCLA's Facilitative, Competency-Based (FCB)
coaching model:

« using technelogy to build a common language and develop collective guidelines
for practice, thereby increasing program coherence;

¢ enhancing abllity to provide professional development to a broader number of
administrators and educators;

e supplementing and increasing the value of in-person training:

» enabling individuals to define the pace of their professional learning; and

¢ providing coaches with opportunities to use the modules as a springboard for
additional learning and to build a community of practice.

The enline coaching modules unpack concepts from the TLC Framework for coaches,
including organizational leadership for administrators (developing independent leaders
through a coaching stance; pushing a leader's thinking instead of giving answers), adult
learning (leveraging research-based principles of adult learning to work more effectively
with principals), as well as collaborative culture, communication, systems thinking, and
data. Delving into these concepts as coaches will allow coaches both to deepen their
own learning and coaching skill sets and to consider on a meta level how they might use
NYC Leadership Academy // lowa ﬁeﬁmr’rmenf of Educaiion

Copyight © NYC Leodership Academy 2014, All rights reserved,
18



e )
LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

the concepts that are training them to coach principais in order to help principals work
more effectively with teachers.

In addition to these trainings and to the online modules, we can offer access to two _
additional coaching tools for additional subscription costs:

Our brand-new online LPPW enables a coach and principal pair to engage in-
asynchronous dialogue about their shared work and the leader's progress in between

face-to-face meetings, making the LPPW a living document. The online LPPW aliows the
pairto; - '

« Work online in a private interface.

 Identify and prioritize leadership behaviors on which the pair has mutually agreed
to focus their work.

= Capture observations and notes about the principal's progress in a specific
dimensien.

= Document progress updates, areas for imprevement, and next steps.

= Save artifacts that document and support the leader's progress, and upload
articles the coach recommends.

In addition to these trainings, the online coaching modules, and access to the online
LLPPW, we can offer access to an additiocnal coaching tool for an additional subscription'
cost. Our Leadership Behavior Survey (LBS) was developed by our Research and
Evaluation team to uncover coaching's impact on leadership behavior. The LBS is
administered in the fall and spring to principals and their coaches. Eaéh individual
responds to 53 questions on a Likert scale, describing the degree to which the principal
exhibits certain leadership behaviors (e.g. Never or almost never; Occasionally;
Frequently; Most of the time; Always or almost always).

Each statementis aligned to one of the eight LPPW dimensicns, but statements are mixed
throughout the survey so that their dimension may not appear obvious to respondents.
Statement examples include “I have difficulty reading pecple’s verbal and non-verbal cues
(for example, tone, body language)’ (which aligns to Communication); | use research 1o
drive instructional and organizational decisions” (Learning); and *| behave in a way that is

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education
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an excellent model for my staff and students (for example, professional appearance,
demeanor, speech” (Personal Behavior).

Our Research and Evaluation team analyzes the survey responses and prepares a report

indicating the principal’s and the coach's perceptions of the principal's performance in

each LPPW dimension. Results are used to inform coaching work and help principals
reflect on their practice.

Through facilitation and coach training, NYCLA will build capacity in local leaders to be
able to effectively lead change for lowa administrators, who wilt then be equipped to lead
change in their schools—not only through the Teacher Leader Compensation
Administrator Support Program but through future initiatives as well.

Deliverabies:

4.1 One 2.5-day Facilitator Training facilitated by NYCLA for up to 12 participants, to
be held in May 2015 in lowa:

4.2 One 1.5-day session (FCB I) facilitated by NYCLA for up to 30 participants, to be
held in March 2015 in lowa.

4.3 Twao days of shadowing experienced NYCLA coaches in New York City for 5 lowa
lead coaches.

4.4 One 1.5-day session (FCB 1l facilitated by NYCLA for up to 30 participants, to be
held in June 2015 in lowa. }

4.5 Access to NYCLA's online coaching modules for up to 30 users for one year,
beginning at the time that coach training commences.

4.6 Access to NYCLA's online LPPW tool for one year for coaches and principals
participating in the 2015-15 roll-out.

? Please note that the cost for space and other needs, such as technology access, during meetings
held in lowa is not included in this proposal.

NYC leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Fducalion
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Month/Year Details
January 2015 Stakeholder engagement
February 2015 Program design

| March-April 2015

Curriculum design -

FCB [ coach training and coach shadowing in NYC

May 2015

Facilitater training

June 2015

FCB Il coach training

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Depariment of Educolion
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Background information

Contact Information

rma Zardoya, President and CEQ

NYC Leadership Academy

45-18 Court Square, 3rd Hleor

Long Isfand City, NY 11101

Tel: (646) 666-8181

Fax: (646)666-8161

Emall: zardoya@nycleadershipacademy.org

Form of Business Entity
Nonprefit 501(€)3

State of organization -
New York

Locations and Telephone Numbers of Major Offices
See location listed above.

Local Office
None

Number of employees

Approximately 70 fuil- and part-time staff

Type of business
Nonprofit 501(c)3

Contact Regarding Contractual and Technical Matters
Mary Jo Dunnington, Vice President, National Initiatives
646-345-6748

mdunninqton_@nvcleadershigacademv.orq

HYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education
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Contact Regarding Scheduling and Other Arrangerments

Mary Jo Dunnington, Vice President, National Initiatives
646-345-6748

mdunnington@nycleadershipacademy.org

Name and qualifications of subcontractors
N/A

Accounting firm
BDO USA, LLP

NYC leadership Academy // lowa Depodmeni of Educalion
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Experience

NYCLA is a nonprofit with 501(c)(3) status. Headquartered in New York City, we empioy
approximately 70 full- and part-time staff. Launched in 2003, NYCLA has designed and
implemented schoo!l leadership programs for NYCDCE for the past decade.

Since 2009, NYCLA has been delivering high-quality strategic school leadership consulting
and training naticnally based on the needs of clients. We work with our partners in both
short- and jong-term engagements to address a range of areas critical to developing
high-quality school leadership. To date NYCLA has assisted districts, universities, nonprofit
organizations and state-wide school leadership initiatives in 26 states in adapting our
modelis ahd tools for their specific school system contexts. These engageaments include
supporting Race to the Top leadership development work in Delaware, Rhode Island,
North Carolina, and Massachusetts, where we are collaborating with partners on
initiatives implementing pipeline training programs for turnaround principals, with ongoing
support and professional development that assures the long-term success of these
initiatives. Other examples of our national cons'uiting work inctude providing direct
services in principal pipeline developmentin Cleveland (OH) and Minneapclis {MN),
supporting coaching and principal leadership development in New Haven (CT), and
developing and facilitating team-based, district-wide leadership deveiopment using a
teacher leader model in Greece (NY).

Feferances

Please find contact information for our references below. Letiers of reference ara included
in the following pages.

Cleveland Metropolitan School District (Chio); NYCLA has parinered with the Cleveland
Metropolitan School District to develop and implement an aspiring principals program
and first-year support and coaching for newly hired principals since May 2013. We have

worked to develop capacity in the district to continue this work past the conclusion of our
engagement.

Dr. Michelle Pierre-Farid, Chief Academic Officer
P: (218) 838-0102

E: michslle.pienefarid@omsdnetiniet

NYC leadermship Academy // lowa Deporiment of Educotion
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Greece Central School District (New York): NYCLA has worked with Greece over the
past eighteen months to design a comprehensive leadership development program for all
school- and district-based leaders in support of driving improvements in student
achievernent district-wide. Our work with the district's core team included an extensive
stakeholder engagement and needs assessment process, co-design and co-delivery of a
summer academy for district leaders, principals, assistant principals, and teacher leaders,
and facilitation of the design of a blueprint for the district's year-long professional
development scope and sequence. '

Barbara Deane-Williams, Superintendent

P: (585) 966-2301

£ barbara.deane-wiliams@areececsd.org

Rhode Island Department of Education (Rhode Island): NYCLA has worked with RIDE
since 2012 with Race to the Top funding to suppert leadership development efforts aimed
at turning around the state's lowest performing schools. Among a variety of initiatives,
NYCLA designed and delivered (over muitiple years) a summer institute for school leaders
and their teams designed to build their leadership skilis, help them learn te collaborate

effectively, and spur their planning and pricritization around waork to drive the urgently
needed change in their schools.-

Sarah Anderson, Transformation Specialist
P: (401) 222-8177
E: sarsh.anderson@ride.ri.gov

NYC Leadership Acadermy // lowa Department of Educalion
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DISTRICT OFFICES: 750 Maiden Lane, Rochester, NY 14615
MaiLinGg ADDRESS: P.O. Box 300, N. Greece, NY 14515-0300
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BARBARA DEANE-WILLIAMS
Superintendent of Schools

November 24, 2014

" New York City Leadership Academy
45-18 Court Square
Long Island City, New York 11101

Good Moming:

: It ts my pleasure to write an enthusiastic letter of support for the New York City Leadership Academy and the
transformative work they lead through professional learning and coaching. As Superintendent of the 11,500 student
Greece (New York) Central School District, I selected the New York City Leadership Academy in 2011 to lead the
design of a Principal and Teacher Leader training and development pipeline. Our EnVision Greece 2017 Strategic Plan
outlines a beld reform agenda to prepare district, school, and teacher leaders to close the achievement gap and transform

- schools to ensure students graduate from high school on-time and are college and career ready.

The New York City Leadership Academy worked side-by-side with the Greece Central School District’s
Strengthening Teacher and Leader Effectiveness Design Team to create a robust week-fong initial training program and
a second week-long advanced training model, aligned to the New York State Reform Agenda and the five strategic goals
and strategies outlined in EnVision Greece 2017.

Highly skilled New York Leadership Academy partners lead an innovative curriculum design, development and
coaching model, strategically aligned to the skills required to meet identified district needs. It was highly customized,
laser-like in focus and skillfully delivered. The feedback from over one hundred district administrators and teacher
leaders was overwhelmingly positive with many saying it was the best professional development they had experienced
in their careers, - .

From my own observations as Superintendent, I can see a difference in the quality of the conversation and an
increased sense of urgency and instructional focus throughout the district, The tools and strategies modeled through the
two week-long training sessions are evident in the classroom teamwork, during faculty meetings, and in the leadership
work throughout the district.

We were so pleased with the growth and increased instructional focus that we have seen, We are currently
seeking grant funding to support an ongoing coaching and technical assistance partnership to continue to build a strong
pipeline of reform minded teachers, school, and district leaders. We credit the New York City Leadership Academy staff

with the quality results we are currently experiencing in Greece Central School District. Please call me if you need
additional supporting information.

Sincerely,

B Banban Yoroms - Uitliame)

Barbara Deane-Williams
Superintendent of Schools

STUDENT LEARNING IS THE GOAL 26




State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Shepard Building

255 Westminster Street

Providence, Rhode island 02903-3400

Deborah A, Gist
Commissioner

November 19, 2014

Mr. Ryan Wise, Deputy Director
fowa Department of Education
400 E. 14" Street

Des Moines, JA 50319-0146

Dear Mr. Wise:

I am pleased to recommend NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) as an outstanding partner for
your Teacher Leadership Compensation Administrator Support project. | have worked closely
with NYCLA’s National Initiatives team over the past two and a half years and have been
consistently impressed by both the quality of programming they have offered our school
leaders as well as their approach to building our agency’s capacity to sustain elements of the
work.

I have been NYCLA's primary contact at the Rhode Island Department of Education (RIDE),
where | work in the Office of Transformation and Charter Schools. NYCLA has supported two
rajor companents of our work under Race to the Top with struggling schools. First, the
NYCLA has helped us build our pipeline of principals prepared to take charge of our lowest
performing schools by designing, launching, and delivering an aspiring principals program for
two cohorts of turnaround leaders. Second, the organization has directly supported principals
and school leadership teams already in place in low achieving schools. This support has
included individual coaching for more than 20 acting principals, 3 Summer Institutes and follow
up professional development for school leadership teams that were attended by a total of
nearly 70 administrators and teachers,, and 6 online professional development modules
available o the entire state.

Baoth of these projects have been highly successful. 100% of graduates of the aspiring

- principals program felt prepared for leadership positions at the end of the program and all of
them secured leadership positions for the 2014-2015 school year, The principals who were
coached and the teams that participated in the Summer Institutes have greatly valued the
experience. Part of my role in RIDE’s Office of Transformation is to monitor school teams’

. progress implementing their school tumaround plans. The teams that have participated in
NYCLA training are most often the best equipped fo make significant changes {o instructional-
practice to better support their students.

The success of these programs is a direct result of NYCLA's high quality curriculum, expert
facilitators, and comprehensive approach to building leadership. The combination of direct
ceaching for principals atongside support for their larger leadership team enables greater,
more sustainable professional growth that permeates the schoot building.

Teiephﬁne (401)222-4600 Fax {401)222-8178 TTY {B0D)745-5555  Voice (B00)745-6575  Website: www.ride.ri.gcy
The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, sexual orientation, gender Identity/expression, race, color, religion, national origin,
ot disability.

27




Just as the teams in our schools have gained expertise, our agency has as well. NYCLA
worked systematically to ensure that we would obtain the institutional knowledge and skills to
continue delivering this program as well as the tools to make strategic decisions about how to
continue the most powerful parts of the work beyond Race to the Top. Along the way, NYCLA
has been responsive to our local context and evolving needs. | am personally gratefut for all |
have leammed in the past several years from their experienced, committed, and talented staff.

Sincerely,

S a( /}E_m

Sarah Anderson
Transformation Specialist
Rl Department of Education

Telephene (4011222-4600  Fax {401)222-6178 TTY{800)745-5555 Voice (800}745-6575  Website: www.ride.ri. oV
The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity/expression, race, color, religlon, national origin, or disability.
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Dear Sir or Madam,

I am writing to support the NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA} in their grant application lo the
fowa Department of Education. NYCLA has been an instrumental partner of the Cleveland
Metropolitan School District (CMSD) in developing an Aspiring Principals Program. The
orogram launched in January 2014, and we started working with our first cohert of aspiring
principais in June. NYCLA assisted us with the creation of s rigorous application process and
with designing an intensive, 40-day training program for selected individuals. As part of this
training, participants worked in teams to un 2 simulation school, which proved to be
invaluable experience for them because it had immediate, real-world applications. This kind of
professional learning will extend throughout the school year as part of weekly sessions.

In addition to their role with the Aspiring Principals Program, NYCLA has helped to streamline

the training that aspiring principals receive with professional learning opportunities for new

principals so that first-year principals are well-positioned to be effective. Based on the success

of the Aspiring Principals Program launch and sartnership to date, (MSD plans 1o work with .
NYCLA to design a similar program for aspiring principal supervisors, which has been made i
possible through funding provided by the Wallace Foundation. - ‘

Fx C¥ficio Mambers

NYCLA's premise that they must help build our team’s capacity to lead sustainable ‘
programming has changed our district culture and practice. NYCLA encourages programs and
decisions to be standards-based. For example, they introduced us to standards for facilitators
s0 that they can lead impactful professional development sessions. These standards and
aligned protocols have shifted the way that members of our team deliver professional
development.

NYCLA has also provided our team with several research-based tools and protocol that have
reshaped ou work around school leadership. Their planning and accountability tools have
pushed us to adopt @ more intantional, backwards planning approach to aur support structure.
Furthermore, these resources have helped change ow former culture of an accepted lack of
follow-through. Having worked with many organizations during my time as Chief Academic
Qfficer, | appreciated that NYCLA adapted their teols and pretocols tc meet our needs, and |
believe that other districts would benefit from the same.

In summary, according lo laura Purnell, CMSD’s programmatic kad whe worked dosely with
NYCLA throughout the past year, “I've worked with many organizations in my positions in 1
states, in & school districts, and &t 3 universities, and I've learned more from NYCLA than | have
from any other organization, | am very impressed with the talent of their people- they really
know curriculum and instruction and how to address school culture issues, Moreover, their
focus on equity for all students is unparalleled.”

Educationally yours,

Dr.. ﬁ 1@ el. I .e.P.iar.,rfe:.Ea.rii.. .

FEULET @ Fan 216,436,50858

11T East Superior Avenue- Suile 1700 « Claveland, G
Michelle Prarre-F
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Personnel

We have assembied an exceptionally well-qualified team of senior staff to lead this
project, including one of NYCLA's executive vice presidents. Kathleen Nadurak has over 35
years of experience in the field of education, as both an educator and an administrator,

and will serve as the lead designer as well as provide overall supervision of this project.

NYCLA Team Members NPS Project Responsibilities
Kathleen Nadurak, Executive Vice Lead Designer / Overall Project
President, National Initiatives : Leadership

Sharon Bonifazio, Coach, Leadership Master Coach

Support Programs

Patricia Hines, Coach, National |nitiatives Master Coach

Jessica Cihal, Director, National Initiatives | Project Manager

Kathleen Drucker, Senior Director, Focus Groups/Needs Analysis
Research & Evaluation

Full restimes for personnel are attached.

NYC Leadership Acodemy // lowa Depoyiment of Educalion
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Kathlieen G. Nadurak

274 First Avenue ) New York, NY 10009 (212) 460-9014
knadura@rcn.com

EDUCATION ‘

William Paterson College : M.Ed. 1984
Fordham University M.S. 1975
Thomas More Coliege .. ‘ | B.A. 1974
EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

NYC Leadership Academy July 2003 —
EVP Programs ' " Current

o Oversees strategic planning for NYC-based work including 1dent1fymg and proposing to CEQ
" opportunities and priorities for expandmg or contracting work and proposing capacity-building

measures needed to meet priotities

o Supervises Principal Preparation Programs and Leadershlp Support Programs including
ensuring that the work is consistently documented including lessons learned, approach, content
and resources used and creating performarnce measures for all NYC-based work, insures data
collection for the purpose of efficacy evaluation and funder reporting and monitors
performance against these measures '

o Ensures program curriculum is meeting the principal competency standards set by the New
York City Department of Education and the New York State Department of Education

o Serves as executive-level interface for DOE on matters of program content and administrative
execution of NYC-based work in accordance with the organization’s contract with the DOE

o Collaborates closely with Chief of Staff to insure that programming and budgets are aligned
with donor expectations and specific grant agreements and to help cultivate and secure grants
from current and new funders in support of NYC-based work

o Represents the Academy on national level through speaking engagements, advisory committee
participation as well as leading client engagements for both design and facilitation of principal -
development and support programs

Chief Operating Officer
o Oversaw all budget and financial operations for a budget in excess of 11 million dollars

o Ensured provision of operational and administrative support to all NYC Leadership Academy
programs

VP Aspiring Principals Program (APF)

o Member of team that originally designed and launched this innovative leadership development
program that prepares quatified candidates to lead and transform NYC public schools

o Managed Aspiring Principals Program including recruiting and hiring key staff, providing
strategic interface with NYCDOQE senior leadership, and designing and providing significant
oversight to the program’s recruitment, admissions, certification and graduate placement
processes

o Designed and oversaw processes to ensure that candidates met the performance standards set
by the Academy
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K. Nadurak p.2

(212) 460-9014

New York City Department of Education ' August 2002 —
Office of the Chancellor July 2003

- Special Assistant to Deputy Chancellor

o Core member of strategic planning and implementation team for Children First
o Conducted strategic planning, policy design, systemns mapping, and data analysis to help
- develop and implement redesign of NYC school system
o Served as expert resource to external consultants throughout process
New York City Board of Education January 2002 —
Office of the Chancellor ' August 2002
Chief of Staff '
o Managed the Chancellor’s special projects on data integrity and communications policy
o Advised Chancellor on various policy and strategic efforts
o . Participated in the evaluation of 40 NYC BOE district superintendents
o Member of strategic planning team for central office administration reform; reduced central
office by 345 positions resulting in a cost savings of about $100 million system
o Represented the Chancellor with select constituencies
New York City Board Of Education ' July 1996 —
Office of the Chief Financial Officer January 2002

Executive Direcior, Office of Financial and Management Reporting

o Designed and produced fiscal and policy analysis for CFO
o Created the first School Based Budget and Expenditure report detailing $10 billion spendmg
“for all 1,200 NYC schools
o Analyzed student data and enrollment trends to use in the development of budget models
o Ewvaluated NYC BOE fiscal responsibilities for all new projects originating from 40 school
districts
o Developed and conducted first comprehensive parent satisfaction survey
o Developed and conducted the first customer satisfaction survey measuring principal
satisfaction with central operational divisions
New York City Board Of Education : July 1981-
District 75, Citywide Special Education Programs July 1993
Director of Operations
o Direct oversight of $300+ million budget and direct supervision of the offices of finance,
budget, related services, data management, student placement and school facilities
management
(@]

Selected for special assignment to the Deputy Chancellor of Operations to implement a
district-wide Special Education Program to Eliminate the Gap (P.E.G.) budget reduction

Assistant Administrator of Pupil Personnel Services

o

o}
o}

Developed and monitored administrative procedures to support provision of services to
20,000 students
Oversight of revenue enhancement projects involving Medicaid and SSI

Assisted Chief Executive for Special Education during finalization of Jose P. class action
suit Phase 11 Stipulation



K. Nadurak p.3 |

(212) 460-9014

Palisades Learning Center, Paramus, NJ
Assistant Principal

o Trained and supervised teachers in behavior management systems and developed
instructional objectives for students with emotional disabilities
Teacher '

o Taught emotionally disturbed & socially maladjusted adolescents

West Park Union Free School, West Park, NY
Teacher

o Taught emotionally disturbed adolescents in a residential treatment center

REFERENCES
Available upon request

June 1981-
December 1997

September 1975 —
December 1977
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Sharon Bonifazio

61 Sudbury Lane, Westbury, New York 11590  (H) 516 997-6199, {C) 516 851-3752
Email: SBonifazio@nycleadershipacademy.org

EDUCATION St. John’s University, Jamaica, New York, 1987
Professional Diploma, Educational Administration and Supervision
Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, 1974
Master of Arts, Special Education
Mount Saint Mary College, Newburgh, New York, 1972
Bachelor of Arts, cum laude- English, Elementary and Special Education

CERTIFICATION  New York State: School District Administrator

School Administrator-Supervisor
Teacher, N-6

Teacher, Special Classes for Mentally Retarded

HONORS Learning for Life Excellence in Eduncation Award, 2005

The Council for Exceptional Children Outstanding Special Educator, 1983 .
Kappa Delta Pi, Member, International Honor Society

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Coach/Facilitator, New York City Leadership Academy, 2006-present

Principal, New York City Department of Education 721K, 1996-2006
Secondary special education school

Assistant Principal, New York City Department of Education 721Q, 1989-1996

Teacher, Special Education, 721Q, Queens, New York, 1972- 1989

PROFESSIONAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS

Coach/Facilitator at NYC Leadership Academy
Facilitative Competency Based Coaching for leadership development of new principals
Design and facilitation of professional development sessions and programs for
principals and educational leaders in NYC and nationwide
Design and facilitation of professional development for leadership coaches
Diagnostic assessment of school’s systems, structures, curriculum, instruction, assessment
and data for strategic planning and transformation
Leadership Performance Planning Worksheet (LPPW)-Competencies for school leaders
Teacher Effectiveness Framework based on Charlotte Danielson

Educational Leadership
Strategic planning with staff and parents :
Special Education-NYC Reform, regulations, IEP development, program development
PBIS, Functional Behavior Assessments, and Behavior Intervention Plans
New York State Alternate Assessment and teacher made assessments
Standards based curriculum development
Supervision and performance evaluation of teachers and support personnel

School Leadership Teams, Teacher Teams and distributive leadership
Budget and resource management

34



PATRICIA A. HINES
146 ROLLINGW(QOD DRIVE
NORTH KINGSTOWN, R1 (2852
o Cell: 401-487-9225
E-mail: hinesp1231@yahoo.com

EDUCATION: - ‘
Master of Education in Secondary Administration from Providence College
Providence, Rhode Island
Master of Arts in English from Middlebury College
Middlebury, Vermont
Bachelor of Arts, Major in English/Minor in Hlstory, from Rhode Island College
Providence, Rhode Island

EMPLOYMENT:
June 1, 2009 - May 31, 2014 - Executive Director

~ Rhode Island Association of School Principals (RIASP) a 301(c)(6) non-profit organization

* Managed all of the day to day and yearly operations of both RIASP and its 501{c)(3) the Rhode
Island Instructional Leadership Academy (RIILA)

* Responded to the professional needs of aspiring, early career, nud-career end of career, and retlred
principals and assistant principals

* Applied successfully for two grants from the Rhode Island Foundation to enhance principals’/
assistant principals’/central office administrators” knowledge, skills, and capacity as educational
leaders

* Advocated for RIASP members and led principals/assistant principals in testifying before the
former Board of Regents for Secondary and Elementary Education and the current Rhode Island
Board of Education on an array of issues pertinent to the education of Rhode Island students

* Collaborated regularty with leaders from the Rhode Island Department of Education, the Rhode
Island School Superintendents Association, the Rhode Island Association of School Committees,
and numerous other educational organizations in Rhode Island

* Worked closely for five years with the Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director, and other
leaders of the National Association of Elementary School Principals (NAESP) with access to the
most current research into early childhood education

= Served for five years on the National Association of Secondary School Principals (NASSP)
Executive Director’s Advisory Comunittee - was one of only eight state association executive
directors from around the USA to meet regularly with NASSP leaders on issues of importance to all
school leaders

~* Attended NAESP/NASSP National Leaders Conferences, NAESP Annual Conferences, NASSP

Annual Conferences, Wallace Foundation Conferences, and the like

* Partnered with the New York City Leadership Academy on aspects of its Transformational
Leadership Academy work in Rhode Island

* Coordinated and facilitated monthly principals network meetmgs quarterly general membership
meetings, and the annual RIILA/RIASP conference

¢ Facilitated five principal of the year seiection committees each year, including site visits to finalists’
schools, and organized and presided at the RIASP Annual Principal of the Year Awards Ceremony
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September 2008-May 2009 - Inferim Assistant Executive Director
Rhode Island Association of School Principals (RIASP)
* Worked alongside the retiring Executive Director of RIASP learning all aspects of leadership,
management, and operations of a non-profit organization.

August 2002 — June 2007 — Principal Dr. Edward A. Ricci Middle School, North Providence
September 2002 Dr. Edward A. Ricci Middle School grades 6-8 opened for the first time as a
middle school having previously been a K-8 elementary school. The school was initially deemed to be a
low performing school in need of improvement.
* Led the school to state recognized high performing status in years four and five (2005-2006 and
2006-2007)
° Served as educational leader for 500 students, 43 certified faculty members, and 20 non-certified
staff
° Melded together a faculty drawn from elementary and high schools into highly qualified middle
school teachers '
* Created all forms, procedures, and protocols for a fully operational middle school
* Organized and chaired the very effective School Improvement Team (SIT) comprised of faculty,
staff, students, parents, and community members
 Assisted the SIT in writing the first School Improvement Plan
* . Led the SIT in designing and developing Project Focus — a grade 8 year long carcer exploration
project which required students to work with teachers, parents, and community members
* Evaluated certified and non-certified staff
° Prepared the budget, the master schedule, and oversaw all day to day operatlons of the school
* Collaborated with the assistant superintendent of schools and a professor from Rhode Island
College to procure a grant to support embedded professional development for teachers. The
successful grant application enabled us to provide year-long professional development in reading
and writing across the curriculum with Ricei teachers working closely with professors from the RI
Writing Project located at Rhode Island College

July 2000 — July 2002 — Associate Principal Scituate High School and Scituate Middle School
February 1998 — June 2000 — Principal South Kingstown High School

July 1993 — February 1998 — Assistant Principal South Kingstown High School

September 1972 ~ June 1993 — English Teacher East Providence High School

RELATED ACTIVITIES:

RIDE/RISSA/RIASP Educator Evaluation Advisory Group 2013 - present

RIDE Proficiency Based Learning Advisory Committee 2013 - present

Rhode Island Association of School Principals Executive Board May 1997 — May 2007

NASSP Coordinator for REASP  March 2001 - May 2007 (represented Rhode Island at all NASSP
national coordinator meetings)

NASSP Coordinator Advisory Committee July 2003 — July 2006 (represented Region I, New
England, on this eight member principal national committee)

Rhode Island Principals Committee on Athletics Executive Board  September 2002 — June 2007

NASSP Conventions in 1997, 1999, 2001 — 2007
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Rhode Island Teachers and Technology Program — RITTI Training 1999

Washington County CASSP Advisory Board — 1997-1998

Chariho Career and Technical Center Advisory Committee 1994-1998 '

McDonald’s NASSP 1997 Leadership Forum — National Recognition Program for Assistant
Principals — April 1997 ‘

HONORS: o
Rhode Island Association of School Principals 1997 Assistant Principal of the Year

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:

Rhode Island Association of School Principals (RIASP) — 1993 to present
National Association of School Principals (NASSP) — 1993 to present
National Education Association — 1972 - 1993 '

National Council of Teachers of English — 1972 - 1993
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Education

‘Experiencef
9/14-Present

5/12-8/14

JESSICA CIHAL

jessicacihal@gmail.com ~ 180 Sackett #3, Brooklyn, NY 11231 ~ 361-649-3303

NEW YORK UNIVERSITY

Robert F. Wagner Graduate School of Public Service

Master of Public Administration, May 2012

s Specialization: Non-Profit Management and Policy :

» Capstone Project: STARS Realigned; client: NYC Department of Probation

The University of Texas at San Antonio
Bachelor of Arts, magna cum laude, May 2002
Honors Program; English Major, Youth and Human Services Minor

NEW YORK CITY LEADERSHIP ACADEMY

Director, National Initiatives

¢ Work with teams of NYCLA staff and clients to design and develop curricutum and
other services

s Facilitate client workshops

« Co-develop course materials for an Aspiring Principals Program (APP) Blended
Learning Course and serve as a technical specialist

= Assist in NYCLA’s online learning product development

¢ Manage project staff, budget and logistics

* Serve as a point of contact for clients _

» Develop and disseminate materials generated in team and client meetings

NEW YORK CITY LEADERSHIP ACADEIVIY

Associate Director, Aspiring Principals Program (APP) _

» Designed aspiring principals program scope and sequence and session curriculum
in conjunction with the APP team

» Facilitated multiple project teams to design curriculum and lead professional
development sessions focused on data, middle school literacy, and operations for
NYCDOE principals

e Managed all logistical needs for APP sessions, DOE principal professional
development sessions, as well as the APP admissions process

= Developed a marketing plan for DOE principal professional development sesgions

e Secured an early partnership with the DOE to launch an iLearn Blended Learning
APP Forum

» Integrated a pilot-year program of blended learning tools into the APP curriculum

s Facilitated APP sessions

» Developed and disseminated program materials for team meetings and sessions

= Conducted formal/informal evaluations of APP and professional development
sessions in order to assess and inform future work '

= Conducted surveys to assess the technological needs of program participants and
design relevant currienlum

¢ Assisted the Academic Dean in analyzing and developing coherence across
organizational programs

» Assisted the Senior Director in tracking the APP budget and developed cost-saving
strategies for the APP Summer Intensive

'» Researched program readings based on an ongoing analysis of current trends and

the information needs of program participants

e Served as point of contact for APP inquires and as a representative at internal and
external recruitment events -

o Cultivated recruitment relationships with NYC education nonprofits

New York, NY

San Antonio, TX

New York , NY

New York, NY
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6/11-5/12 NEW YORK CITY LEADERSHIP ACADEMY New York, NY

Intern, Office of External and Legal Affairs

* Supported the Executive Vice President of External & Legal Affairs with special
projects and grant research/writing

» Researched an environmental scan to support national program growth
- © Assisted with grant compliance and budget reports for federal government grants -

2/11-5/12 THE AFTER SCHOOL CORPORATION : New York, NY
Graduate Research Assistant
= Conducted site visits and audited 215t Century after school programs using an Out
of School Time Observation Tool

= Wrote qualitative visit assessments with program recommendations for site
directors; reviewed implementation during follow-up visits

6/04-8/10 KEYSTONE SCHOOL San Antonia, TX
- Director of Admissions and College Counseling
Chair-Financial Aid Committee
® Managed all aspects of the admissions process for K-12 families through the
inquiry, application, testing and decision process
¢ Led the college counseling and advocacy program assisting over 150 students in
grades 8-12 each year
» Chaired the school’s Financial Aid Committee and acted as a mentor for students

e Initiated a strategic recruitment plan that led to.an increasingly diverse applicant
pool

e Cultivated partnerships with area city schools in order to streamline admissions
policies and develop group information fairs
o Organized and represented the school at internal and external events

¢ Developed partnerships with national colleges to aid in recruiting and coordinated
new initiatives including a College Information Night

« Implemented a monthly school communications plan with the Director of
Development & Alumni and the Communications Coordinator

» Co-managed teachers through the admissions and new student orientation process
e Administered program budgets and assisted in alumni fundraising/outreach

¢ Managed the admnission and registrar pieces of the Blackbaud student database

» Launched new admissions and financial aid web-based applications{

e Secured an early contract with Naviance that enabled students to research schools
and submit necessary paperwork to colleges online

» Served on the administrative council, the school’s overall decision-making body

.6/03-4/04 o Backpacked through Eastern Europe and Costa Rica and based on local needs,

managed hostels or taught English as a Foreign Language business lessons to Iocal
residents

8/02-6-03 ENGLISH LANGUAGE INSTITUTE Prague, CR

English as a Foreign Language Teacher

« Developed and taught reading, writing, speaking, and grammar lessons for
individuals and groups at beginner, intermediate, and advanced levels of fluency

Computer Proficientin: Microsoft Office; NYCDOE iLearn platforrn variety of Web 2.0 tools;
Skills Blackbaud and Naviance database management

Working knowledge: Stata and SPSS
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KATHLEEN TRONG DRUCKER
trong katie@gmail.com
60 Babcock Street, Apt. 48
Brookline, MA 02446
857-225-5057

EDUCATION :
Harvard Graduate School of Education

Master in Education May 2014 (expected)
Language and Literacy .

Boston College, Lynch School of Education
Doctor of Philosophy . May 2009
Educational Research, Measurement, and Evaluation \ ' _
» Dissertation title: “Using PIRLS 2006 to Measure Equity in Reading Achievement Internationally”
» Received the 2009 Bruce Choppin Award for outstanding dissertation using IEA data

» Coursework included statistical analysis and modeling, program evaluation, and student
assessment

Boston College, Lynch School of Education
- Bachelor of Arts _ May 2004
Human Development and English
¢ (raduated Magna Cum Laude

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
NYC Leadership Academy Long Island City, NY
Senior Director for Research & Evaluation April 2013 — Present

e Design and implement all internal and client research and evaluation activities

e Ensure that research and evaluation plan is supported by high-quality data collection strategies and
appropriate research methodology
e Lead team in collecting and anatyzing qualitative and quantitative data and reporting findings

*  Oversee reporting of research findings for multiple audiences, including clients, policy makers, program
staff and. funders _

TIMSS & PIRLS International Study Center Chestnut Hill, MA
Progress in International Reading Literacy Study Janwary 2011 — April 2013
Assistant Research Director, PIRLS Reading

e Coordinate the PIRLS assessment, an intermational study of fourth grade reading achieverment and related
educational factors in nearty 50 countries .

¢ Coordinate the prePIRLS initiative, a new international iiteracy assessment used in developing countrics,
including assessment development, project management, and reporting plans

e  Assist in the preparation of PIRLS publications, including the PIRLS 2011 International Results in
Reading Report, PIRLS 2011 Encyciopedia, and documentation of methods and procedures; Involved in
developing conceptual model, conducting exploratory analyses, drafting exhibits, and editing text

e Conduct secondary analyses of the PIRLS data to present at national and international research
conferences

e Conduct trainings and presentations for more than 100 international researchers related 1o PIRLS methods -

and procedures, and communicate extensively with researchers to ensure high-quality data standards are
met

» Manage the development of all PIRLS and prePIRLS data collection instruments, including developing
assessment items, scoring guides, and background questionnaires

*  Summarize project accomplishments and timelines for reporting to funders and advisory groups

o Managed two graduate students during the academic year

40




Kathleen Drucker
2

prePIRLS Project Coordinator May 2009 — December 2010
e Coordinated the development of the prePIRLS initiative, including contributing to the assessment’s
concept, design, and development

° Managed the development and administration of prePIRLS pilot instruments that were used to inform the
study design _
PIRLS Research Associate September 2004 — May 2000 .
o Assisted in the development of all PIRLS data collection 1nsu'uments including refining assessment
items, scoring guides, and background questionnaires

¢ Assisted in the preparation of PIRLS publications, including the PIRLS 2006 Encyclopedia, PIRLS 2006
International Report, and PIRLS 2011 Assessment Framework

e Communicated with international researchers to implement PIRLS and prePIRLS assessments
consistently across countries

Independent Research Consultant September 2006 — Present

e  Advise programs at Massachusetts Institute of Technology and Boston College, among others, to assist
them in developing research and evaluation designs and instruments

¢ Develop measurable program goals and evaluation and data cotlection plans for clients

» Develop surveys (including online surveys), conduct focus groups, and analyze quantitative and
qualitative results

¢ Provide statistical analysis and research method expertise

Research Assistant, Undergraduate Fellowship - September 2002 — May 2004
Boston College, Lynch School of Education Chestnut Hill, MA
¢ Researched link between faculty evaluations and classroom experience
e Coded data and assisted in exploratory analyses

Program Instructor May 2001 - Dec 2003
Girls, Inc. Panama City, FL and Lynn,
MA

o De\}eloped and conducted science and life-skills programs to educate and encourage elementary and
middle school girls

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
Member

American Educational Research Association, International Reading Association

COMPUTER AND STATISTICAL SOFTWARE APPLICATION SKILLS

Proficient in SPSS (e.g., regression analysis, factor analysis, correlations, t-tests), WesVar, and Microsoft'()fﬁce
Familiar with MPlus, Microsoft Access, and Filemaker Pro Advanced
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CURRICULUM VITAE

. Publications -
Foy, P. & Drucker, K.T. (2013).-PIRLS 2011 user guide for the international database. Chestnut Hill, MA:
- TIMSS & PIRLS Iniernational Study Center, Boston College.

Mutlis, I.V.S., Martin, M.O,, Foy, P., & Drucker, K.T. (2012). PIRLS 2011 mtemanona[ results in readmg
Chestnut Hill, MA: TIMSS & PIRLS International Study Center, Boston College.

Mullis, I V. S, Martin, M. O., Minnich, C. A, Drucker, K. T., & Ragan, M. A. (Eds.). (2012). PIRLS 2011
Encyclopedia Education Policy and Curriculum in Reading. Chestnut Hill, MA: TIMSS & PIRLS
International Study Center, Boston College.

Mullis, LV.S., Martin, M.O., Kennedy, A., Trong, K., & Sainsbury, M. (2009). PIRLS 201] assessment
' ﬁ'amework Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Trong, K. (2009). Using PIRLS 2006 to measure equity in reading achievement inrernationa!ly. Ph.DD,
dissertation, Boston College, United States -Massachusetts. Dissertations & Theses @ Boston
College.(Publication No. AAT 3344739).

Barth, I,, Kennedy,' AM., & Trong, K.L. (2007). PIRLS survey operations procedures. In Martin, M.O., Mullis,
LV.S., & Kerinedy, A.M. (Eds.) PIRLS 2006 technical report. Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Kennedy, A.M., & Trong, K.L. (2007). Reporting student achievement in reading. In Martin, M.O., Mullis,
LV.5., & Kennedy, A.M. (Eds.) PIRLS 2006 technical report. Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Kennedy, A., Mullis, V.S, Martin, M.O., & Trong, K.L. (Eds.). (2007). PIRLS 2006 encyclopedia: A guide to
reading education in the forty PIRLS 2006 countries. Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Malak, B., & Trong, K.L. (2007). Translation and transtation verification of the PIRLS reading assessment and
questionnaires. In Martin, M.O., Mullis, LV.S., & Kennedy, A M. (Eds.) PIRLS 2006 technical report.
Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Martin, M.O., Kennedy, A.M., & Trong, K.L. (2007). ltem analysis and review. In Martin, M.O., Mullis, ILV.S.,
& Kennedy, AM. (Eds.) PIRLS 2006 technical report. Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Trong, K.L., & Kennedy, A.M. (2007). Reporting PIRLS 2006 questionnaire data. In Martin, M.Q., Mullis,
LV.S., & Kennedy, A.M. (Eds.) PIRLS 2006 technical report, Chestnut Hill, MA: Boston College.

Presentations

Drucker, K. (2012). Using PIRLS 2006 to Explore the Emphasis on Teaching Reading Skills and Strategies
Internationally. Paper presented at the International Reading Association Annual Convention. Chicago,
Illinois.

Trong. K. (2010}, Relative Risk- Percemage Equity Index: Measuring Equity in Reading Achievement Across

PIRLS 2006 Countries. Paper presented at the European Conference of Educational Research. Helsinki,
Finland.

Tro.ng, K. (2010). The Relative Risk-Percentage Equity Index: Measuring Equity in Reading Achievement Across
PIRLS 2006 Countries. Paper presented at the IEA International Research Conference. Gothenburg,
Sweden.

Kennedy, A., & Trong, K (20 10). Influence of the Home Literacy Environment on Reading Motivation and
Readmg Comprehension. Paper presented at the IEA International Research Conference. Gothenburg,
Sweden, PR

Trong, K. (2009). Using PIRLS 2006 to measure equity in education across counties. Paper presented af the
American Educational Research Association Conference. San Diego, CA.

Trong, K., & Kennedy, A, (2007). Examining Gender and the Home Environment Fostering Literacy in PIRLS
200] Countries. Paper presented at the American Educational Research Association Conference.
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Kennedy, A., & Trong, K. (2007). A Comparison of Fourth Graders’ Academic Self-Concepts and Attitudes
Toward Reading, Mathematics, and Science in PIRLS and TIMSS Countries. Paper presented at the
American Educational Research Association Conference.

Trong, K. (2006). Feminist Identification Instrument: Classical Test Theory and Rasch Analyses. Paper presented
at the North Eastern Educational Research Organization Conference.

Consulting Experience

Massachusetts Institute of Technology Office of Engineering Outreach Programs. (201 1-present). OEOP Program
Evaluation. Worked with client to develop measurable program goals and an evaluation and data
collection plan. Included survey development, focus grotps, and analysis of quantitative and qualitative
results.

Massachusetts Institute of Technology Teaching and Learning Laboratory. (2008-2009). Biomatrix Program
Evaluation. Worked with client to evaluate program effectiveness by developing an online survey and
analyzing survey resuls.

Massachusetts Institute of Technology Teaching and Learning Laboratory. (2008), Concourse Program
Evaluation. Worked with client to evaluate program effectiveness and student attitudes through student

_ interviews.

* Massachusetts Institute of Technology Teaching and Learning Laboratory. (2008). Department of Mechanical

: Engineering Course Evaluation. Worked with client to evaluate course strategles by coilecting and

analyzing teaching assistant interview data.

Boston Coilege Biology Department. (2007-2008). Laboratory Course Evaluation. Worked with client to evaluate
innovative faboratory curriculum, using interview, observation, and survey techniques.

Massachusetts Institute of Technology Teaching and Learning Laboratory. (2007-2008). Introduction to Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science Course Evaluation, Worked with client to evaluate instructional
strategies by conducting and analyzing student interview data.

Amy Vercillo, Boston University (2007). Dissertation Consultation. Provided statistical analysis and research
method assistance.

Michele Carol, Fordham University. (2006-2007). Dissertation Censultation. Provided statistical analysis and
research method assistance.

Angela Bell, Boston University. (2006). Dissertation Consultation. Provided statistical analysis and research
method assistance.

Dissertation Committees

Lauren Chapman. (2011). An international policy analysis of school-level decision making and student
achievement. Boston College Lynch School of Education.
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Financial Information
Fnonciol Belerences

New York LaGuardia Airport Marriott
Diane Hellriegel, Director of Event Planning
102-05 Ditmars Blvd

. East ElImhurst, NY 11369
Phone: 718-533-3007
Email: Diane.Hellriegel@marrioitcom

Downtown Meetings

Carolina Salazar, Conference Planning Manager -
157 William Street

New York, NY 10038

Phone: 212-618-6990

Email: CSalazar-Badani@downtown-c¢.com

Staples Business Advantage

Sergio Puentes, Senior Account Manager
Office: 800-950-1257 Ext 4699

Email: sergio.puentes@staples.com

Please find audited financial statements for FY 2011, 2012, and 2013 in the following
pages.

NYC Leadership Academy // lown Department of Educalion
Copyright ©@ KYC Leadership Academy 2014, All righis reserved,
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Tel: «213 BR5-EC00 100 Park Avenye
Far; +7492 6577209 saw York, MY 10017
www, bedo, com

| independent Auditors’ Report

Yo the Board of Birectors
The NYC Leadership Academy, inc,
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanving statement of financial position of The NYC Leadership
Acaderny, Inc. {the “Leadership Academy”) as of June 30, 2011, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of The NWYC Leadership Academy, Inc. Our
responsibility s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
information for the year ended June 30, 2010 is presented for comparative purposes only and
was extracted from the financial statements of The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc. for that year,
on which we expressed an ungualified opinion, dated November 0, 2010,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstaternent. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the Circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Leadership Academy’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinfon. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supperting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial siatements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The NYC Leadership Academy, inc. as of June 30, 2011, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

B0 sa L

October 7, 2011

By Usa, LLP, & Dola
B the Iemaiion

re fmitest habilis

! L nember of B0 miornational Limszed, a UK company Umitod by ar M e
it 9 InGRpRNGSKL ak Limsied, 8 UK company Himited by guarantea. and farms part

]

.

800 b the biand naeng for the 800 notwark 5

for wacty of the BDO Moy Frms,
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The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
{with comparative totals for 2010)

June 30,

2011 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $4,444,417 $4,149,399
Asseis whose use is limited {Nete 2) . 184,586
Grants receivable 130,339 315,53%
Contracted services receivable 2,296,489 2,001,534
Prepaid and other receivables 85,349 133,807
Fixed assets, net (Note 3) 19,955 63,963
) $6,986,569 $7,049,258
Liabilities and Net Assets '
Liabilities:
. Accounts payable and other liabilities S 414,799 S 557,870
Accrued payroll and payroll related Habilities 192,977 143,684
- Total Liabilities 607,776 704,554
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 6,378,793 6,162,718
Temporarily restricted (Note 5) - 184,986
Total Net Assets - 6,378,793 6,347,704
56,986,569 57,049,258

See accompanying notes to financiat statements.



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Statement of Activities

(with comparative totals for 2010)

Year ended June 30,

Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2011 2010
Public Support and Revenue: .
Contracted services 58,106,134 S $8,109,134 56,648,099
Donated materials, facilities and -
services {Note 4) 412,670 - 412,670 412,616
Grant income , 662,612 - 662,612 1,682,8%1
Special events, net of expenses of i
58,410 in 2011 1,228 - 1,228 -
Miscellaneous income 45 706 - 45,206 6,334
interest income 19,375 - 19,375 16,796
Net assets reteased from restriction
{Note 6) : 184,986 {184,988) -
Total Public Support and .
Revenue ' 9,435,211 (184,986) 9,250,225 8,766,736
Expensas:
Program services;
Aspiring Principals Program 546,676 546,676 727,138
Mew School Intensive 330,944 330,944 306,858
New Principal Support Program 1,478,510 1,478,510 1,520,713
Experienced Coaching Program 1,745,333 1,745,333 1,856,898
Natfonal initiative Program 1,382,022 1,382,022 1,138,560
Other programs 1,423,959 1,423,959 1,389,513
Total Program Services 6,907 444 6,907,444 6,940,080
Supporting services:
Management and general 2,197,144 2,197,144 1,768,863
Fundraising 114,548 114,548 85,391
Total Supporting Services 2,311,692 2,311,692 1,854,254
Total Expenses 9,219,136 9,219,136 8,794,334
Change in Net Assets 216,075 {184,986} 31,089 (27,598}
Net Assots, Beginning of Year 6,162,718 184,386 4,347,704 6,375,302
Net Assets, End of Year $6,378,793 S - $6,378,793 56,347,704

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
(with comparative totals for 2010)

Year ended June 30, 2011

2010
- Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets % 31,089 § (27,598}
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets (o net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities: ' .
Depreciation and amortization - 35,973 45,401
Provision for bad debt expernse 16,667 -
{increase) decrease in: -
Assets whose use is Umited 184,986 189,244
Grants receivable 185,200 276,150
Contracted services receivable . {311,622} (952,971)
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 48,438 {159,397} -
ncrease {decrease) iy
Accounts payable and other liabilities {143,07%) 5,356
Accrued payroll and payroll related Uabilities 49,293 {66,218}
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operating Activities ‘ 96,953 455,033y
Cash Flows From lnvesting Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets {1,935) {17,058)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equiivalents 95,018 {472,091}
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,349,399 4,821,490
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $4 444,417 54,349,399

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Organization

The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc. (the “Leadership Academy”) recruits and trains new and
current principals for the New York City public school systern through the distinct programs
described below. :

The following programs and supporting services are included in the accompanying financiat
statements: ' .

Aspiring Principals Program (“APP”). APP puts educational professionals on a rigorous and
accelerated track toward successfully leading New York City’s most challenging schools.
Aspiring principals complete a demanding 14-month leadership development program that
includes a six-week summer intensive using a problem-based curriculum that simulates the
principalship, a ten-month tong residency in a school under the guidance of experienced
mentor principals, and a planning summer that prepares the participants te transition
effectively into their new leadership rotes. APP graduates commit to serve the New York
City Department of Education (“NYCDOE") for a period of five years, '

New School Intensive (¥NSI”): NSI provides leadership development and technical support to
all individuals selected to open new, small schools. NSI's pre- and in-service components
include targeted leadership development sessions, and technical support to help these new
principals address the unique leadership challenges inherent in building a high-functioning
educational environment from scratch,

New Principal Support Program {“NPS”j: NPS provides leadership development to first year
principats of existing and new schools. This program offers early-career principals a menu of
ieadership development resources, including 1:1 coaching by former school leaders,
leadership development sessions and peer networking opportunities. ‘

Experienced Principals Coaching Program: Designed and delivered by recently retired expert
practitioners who stay abreast of and responsive (o system reform efforts, these coaching
programs for experienced principals are aimed at helping principals improve student
learning outcomes. Coaches offer a range of support through a faciitative approach
grounded in clearly defined leadership competencies, including one to one coaching,

coaching for school teams and small groups of principals as well as targeted sessions and
peer networking opportunities. :

National Initiatives Program (“Ni”): NI helps other school systems develop comprehensive
leadership preparation, coaching, and support programs for their principals. its service area
inctudes urban, suburban, and rural schocl systems, state education agencies, universities
and education-oriented nonprofits organizations.

Othfez" Programs; in addition to the above described programs, the Leadership Academy also
designs and delivers workshops directed at principals, helps with the development of other

NYCDOE-led leadership programs, and supports system-wide initiatives that address broader
leadershin needs of the NYCDOE,



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(b} Financiai Statement Presentation

The classification of the Leadership Academy’s net assets and its support, revenue and expenses is
based on the existence or absence of donor-impoesed restrictions, it requires that the amounts for
each of three classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restrictéd and
unrestricted, be displayed in the statement of financial position and that the amounts of change
in each of those classes of net assefs be disptayed in a statement of activities.

The classes of net assets are defined as follows:

Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Leadership Academy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire
by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actlons ‘of the Leadership
Academy.

Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Leadership Academy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire
by passage of time or can be fulfilied and removed by actions of the Leadership Academy pursuant
to those stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities,

Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted by
dorior-imposed stipulations. They represent resources over which the Leadership Academy has full
discretion with respect to its use.

{c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Leadership Academy considers atl highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

(d) Tax Status

The Leadership Academy was incorporated in the State of New York and is exempt from Federal,
state and local income taxes under Section 501{c){3} of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code™),
and therefore has made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements.
in addition, the Institute has been determined by the internal Revenue Service not to be a

“private foundation™ within the meaning of Section 509(a} of the Code. There was no unrelated
business income for the year ended June 30, 2011, :

The Leadership Academy has not taken an unsubstantfated tax position that would require
provision of a lability under Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”} 740, “Income Taxes”. The Leadership Academy has filed for and received
income -tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where it is required to do so. Additionally, The
Leadership Academy has filed IRS Form 990 information returns, as required, and all other
applicable returns in jurisdictions where so required. For the year ended June 30, 2011, there was
no interest or penalties recorded or included in the statement of activities.



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

{e} Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited consists of donor-contributed funds that are required to be maintained
in separate accounts for specific purposes.

{f}  Contributions and Grants

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions,
Contributions with purpose or time restrictions (defined by management as unrestricted amount
due in more than one year) are reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions, Restricted gifts and grants,

received and utilized in the current year, are reflected in the statement of activities in the
unrestricted class of net assets.

1

Public grants from government agencles are recorded based on the terms of the grantor
allotment, which generally provides that revenue is earned when the allowable costs or units of
services of specific grant provisions have been incurred or provided.

{g} Promises to Give

Unconditional promises {o give are recognized as contribution revenue in the period received and
as assets, decreases of iabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits received and
are classified as either unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support.
Promises to give are recorded at net realizable value if expected to be collected in one year.
Unconditional promises to give thal are expected to be collected in the future years are recorded
at the present value of these estimated future cash flows.

Conditional promises to give are not recognized untit they become unconditional, that is, when
the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than cash
are recorded at the estimated fair value.

th) F ixed Assets

Fixed assets with an initial value of §2,500 or moré are recorded at cost, if purchased, or
estimated fair value at date of receipt, if donated, tess accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
provided under the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of three o seven years.

(i  Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts, assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

(i} Donated Materials, Facilities and Services

Donated materials, facilities and services are valued at thelr fair market value. Donated services
are recognized if the services received (&} create or enhance non-financial assets or (b} reguire

specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to
be purchased if not donated.

10



The NYC Leadership Academy, inc.

Hotes to Financial Statements

(k) Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Leadership Academy to concentration of credit
risk consist primarily of temporary cash ivestments. At various times during the vear, the
Leadership Academy had cash deposits at financial institutions which exceeded the FDIC insurance
limit,

{l}  Functional Alivcation of Expenses

The cost of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities, Accordingly, certain administrative costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services based on benefits received.

{m) Comparative Financial information

The financial statements Include certain prior year summarized comparative informatien,
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the prior year financial
statements from which the summarized information was derived. With respect to the statement of
activities, the prior year information is not presented by net asset class. With respect to the
statement of functional expenses, the prior year expenses by expense classification are presented
in total rather than by functional category. Such informatien does not include sufficient detail to

constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States,

"3, Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets, net consists of the following:

June 30, 2011

Equipment $ 728,170
Furniture and fixtures : 27,596
Library books 59,429
Software 117,071
Total 932,267
Less: Accumulated depreciation {9072,312)
Fixed assets, net ' § 29,955

4. Donated Materials, Facilities and Services

The value of donated materials, facilities and services included in support and revenues and

corresponding management, general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30,
2011 are as follows!

Utilities, phone and other TS 44,652
Rent 368,018
§412,670

11



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

These services were donated by the NYCDOE in accordance with the terms of the leadership
development contract awarded to the Leadership Academy.

5. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

There are no temporarily restricted net asséts at June 30, 2011, Net assets were released from
restrictions during the year ended June 30, 2011 by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or by occurrence of other events specified by donors as foliows:

Experienced Coaching Program - : $114,909
National Initiatives Program 70,077
$184,986

6. Economic Dependency

The Leadership Academy was originally supported through private funding. The intent of these
private donors was (0 provide seed capital to launch the organization with the expectation that its
work would ultimately be primarily funded by public funds. While these donors continue to be
highly supportive of the Leadership Academy’s work and may fund small-scale projects in the
future, they expect the promised shift from private to public funding of its work, As such, the
NYCDOE issued a request for proposal (“RFP”) for leadership development services and the
Leadership Academy was selected to provide these services through a competitive hidding
process. The Leadership Academy was granted a contract of 553,828,873 with NYCDOE for a
period from July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2013. Approximately 77% of the Leadership Academy’s
revenue was funded under this NYCDOE contract in fiscal year 2011. The Leadership Academy has
received supplemental funding from a US Department of Education grant, 2 foundation grant and
contracts for fee for service from various educational institutions (all combined accounted for
over 23% of revenue in fiscal year 2011), which helped to mitigate service costs for most principals
of high need schools. o

7. Subsequent Events

The Leadership Academy’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through
October 7, 2011 which is the date the financial statemarits were available to he issued and there

were no subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures as
stated herein.

12
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Tetr <212 8855000 130 Perk Avenue
Fax: «217 4%7-175% ’ Mawe York, MY 10017
wyew bdo.qom

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
The NYC Leadership Academy, inc.
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The NYC Leadership
Acadermy, inc. (the “Leadership Academy”} as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
staternents are the responsibility of the management of The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc. Qur
responsibility is to express an ‘opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,
Information for the year ended June 30, 2011 is presented for comparative purposes only and
was extracted from the financial statements of The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc. for that year,
on which we expressed an ungualified opinion, dated October 7, 2011.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Leadership Academy’s internal
conirol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we exXpress no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opirion.

[n our opinien, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial pesition of The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc. as of June 30, 2012, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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B0 USA LLP, 5 Dol
of tha yiremationsl iy

sarniyne Ak B
TR G

of Bl nternatonat Linked. 4 UK conpany Vmitad by sumantes. and foras pagt

BE0O s the Droed pome f 1he 600

F0n aned Tor £ach > B0 Memninee Fimms,

3.



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc,

Statement of Financial Position
{(with comparative totals for 2011)

- June 30,

2012 2011
Assels
~ Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $3,650,949 54,444,417
Assets whose use is limited (Note 2} 353,417 -
Grants receivable 345,745 130,339
Contracted services receivable 2,592,998 2,296,489
Prepaid expenses 84,604 85,369
Fixed assets, net (Note 3) 21,396 29,555
} 4
$7,049,109 56,986,569
Liahilities and Het Assets
Liabilities: ,
‘Accounts payable and other Habilities $ 409,212 § 414,799
Accrued payroll and payroll related Habilities 224,577 192,977
Total Liabilities 533,789 607,776
Mat Assets:
Unrestricted 6,061,903 6,378,793
Temporarily restricted {Note 5) 353,417 -
Total Net Assets 6,415,320 6,378,793 .
$7.049,109 $6,986,569

See arcompanying notes o financial statements.



The NYC Leadership Academy, inc.

Statement of Activities

(with comparative totals for 2011)

Year ended June 30,

Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2012 2011
Public Support and Revenue! - :
Contracted services $7,922,116 g £7,922,116  $8,109,134
Donated materials, facilities and
services (Note 4} 426,670 - 476,670 412,670
Grant income 861,464 600,000 1,467,464 662,612
Special events, net of expenses of
S-0-in 2042 E - - 1,228
Miscellaneous income 834 - 834 45,206
interest income 14,859 - 14,859 19,375
Net assets {(deficlt) released from : :
restriction {Note 6) 246,583 (246,583) - -
Total Pubtic Support and
Revenue 3,472,526 353 417 G, 815,543 9,250,215
Expenses!
Program services:
Aspiring Principals Program 473,211 - 473,211 544,676
New School Intensive 476,884 - 426,884 330,944
Mew Principal Support Program 1,779,874 - 1,779,874 1,478,510
Experienced Coaching Program 1,515,671 - 1,515,671 1,745,333
National Initiative Program 1,219,298 - 1,219,298 1,382,022
Other programs 1,390,735 - 1,390,735 1,423,959
‘Total Program Services 6,805,673 - 6,805,673 6,907,444
Supporting services. _
Management and general 2,836,364 2,836,364 2,197,144
Fundraising ‘ 147,379 147,379 114,548
Total Supporting Services 2,983,743 - 2,983,743 2,311,692
Total Expenses 9. 789,416 2,789,416 9,219,136
. Change in Net Assets {316,890) 353,417 36,527 31,089
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 6,378,793 - 6,378,793 6,347,704
Net Assets, End of Year $6,061,903 $ 353,417 56,415,320  $6,378,793

See atcompanying notes to financial statements.
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The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc,

Statement of Cash Flows

{with comparative totals for 2011}

Year ended June 30,

2012 2011
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets S 36,527 S 31,089
Adiustments to reconcile change in net assets 1o net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 8,559 35,973
Provision for bad dety expense 17,444 16,667
(Increase) decrease in:
Assets whose use is limited {353,417} 184,986
Grants receivable ‘ {215,406} 185,200
Contracted services receivable {313,953 (311,622}
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 765 48,438
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other tiabilities (5,587} {143,071)
Accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities 31,600 49,793
Net Cash Provided By (Used in)
Operating Activitisag {793,468} 56,953
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets - {1,935)
Net increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {793,468} 95,018
Lash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,444,417 4,349,399
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year £3,650,949 §4,444 417

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



The NYC Leadership Academy, inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Organization

The NYC lLeadership Acaderny, Inc. (the “Leadership Academy”) recruits and trains new and

current principals for the New York City public schoot system through the distinct programs
described below. '

The following programs and supporting. services are included in the accompanying financial
statements;

*

Aspiring Principals Program (“APP”}: APP puts educational professionals on a rigorous and
accelerated track toward successfully feading New York City’s most challenging schools.
Aspiring principals complete a2 demanding 14-month leadership development program that
includes a six-week summer intensive using a problem-based curriculum that simulates the
principatship, a ten-month long residency in a school under the guidance of experienced

- mentor principals, and a planning summer that prepares the participants to transition

effectively into their new leadership roles. APP graduates commit to serve the New York
City Department of Education (“NYCDOE™) for 2 period of five years.

New School Intensive (“NSI”): NS provides leadership development and technical support to
all individuals selected to open new, small schools. NSI's pre- and in-service components

Jnclude targeted leadership development sessions, and technical support to help these new

principals address the unigue leadership challenges inherent in building a high-functioning
educational environment from scratch,

New Principal Support Program (“NP5”): NPS provides leadership development to first year
principals of existing and new schools, This program offers early-career principals & menu of
teadership development resources, including 1:1 coaching by former school leaders,
{eadership development sessions and peer networking opportunities,

Experienced Principals Coaching Program: Designed and delivered by recently retired expert
practitioners who stay abreast of and responsive to system reform efforts, these coaching
programs for experienced principals are aimed at helping principals improve student
learning outcomes. Coaches offer a range of support through a facilitative approach
grounded in clearly defined leadership competencies, including one to one coaching,
coaching for school teams and small groups of principals as well as targeted sessions and

- peer networking opportunities. '

National Initiative Program (“Ni”): Ni helps other school systems develop comprehensive
teadership preparation, coaching, and support programs for their principals. its service area
includes urban, suburban, and rural school systems, state education agencies, universities
and education-oriented nonprofits organizations.

Other Programs: In addition to the above described programs, the Leadership Academy also
designs and delivers workshops directed at principals, helps with the development of other

NYCDOE-ted leadership programs, and supports system-wide initiatives that address hroader
leadership needs of the NYCDOE,



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a)  Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
. accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(b} Financial Statement Presentation

The classification of the Leadership Academy’s net assets and its support, revenue and expenses is
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. it requires that the amounts for
each of three classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted and
unresiricted, be displayed in the statement of financial position and that the amounts of change
in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities.

- The classes of net assets are defined as follows:

Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Leadership Academy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire

by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Leadership
Academy,

Termporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
~ whose use by the Leadership Academy is timited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire
by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Leadership Academy pursuant
to those stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities,

Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted by

donor-imposed stipulations. They represent resources aver which the Leadership Acaderny has full
discretion with respect to its use.

{c}  Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Leadership Academy considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

{d} Tox Status

The Leadership Academy was incorporated in the State of New York and is exempt from Federal
state and local income taxes under Section 501{c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code {the “Code™),
and therefore has made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements.
I ‘addition, the Institute has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to he a

“private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no unrelated
business income for the year ended June 30, 2012,

2

The Leadership Academy hes not taken an unsubstantiated tax position that would require
provision of a liability under Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB™) Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC”) 740, “Income Taxes”. The Leadership Academy has filed for and received
incomie tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where it is required to do so. Additionally, The
Leadership Academy has filed IRS Form 990 information returns, as required, and all- other
appticable returns in jurisdictions where so required, For the year ended June 30, 2012, there was
ne interest or penalties recorded or included in the statement of activities.



The NY( %..éadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

fe}  Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited consists of donor-contributed funds that are required to be maintained
in separate accounts for specific purposes.

{(ft  Contributions and Grants

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions with purpose or time restrictions (defined by management as unrestricted amount
due in more than one year) are reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or purpose restriction is futfilled,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Restricted gifts and grants,
received and utilized in the current year, are reflected in the statement of activities in the
unrestricted class of net assets. -

Public grants from government agencies are recorded based on the terms of the grantor
allotment, which generally provides that revenue is earned when the allowable costs or units of
services of specific grant provisions have been incurred or provided.

(8) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets with an initial value of 52,500 or more are recorded at cost, if purchased, or
estimated fair value at date of receipt, if donated, less accumulated depreciation, Depreciation is
provided under the straight-line method over estimated useful tives of three to seven years,

(h)  Use of Estimates

in preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts, assels and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

revenues and expenses during the reporting period, Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

(i}  Donated Materials, Facilities and Services

Donated materials, facilities and services are valued at their fair market value. Donated services
are recognized if the services received (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or {b) require

specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to
be purchased if not donated. : :

{i) Concentration of Credit Risk -

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Leadership Academy to concentration of credit
risk consist primarily of temporary cash investments. Af various times during the year, the-
Leadership Acacemy had cash deposits at financial institutions which exceeded the EDIC insurance
tmit. _

{k) Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities, Accordingly, certain administrative costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services based on benefis received.

10




‘The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

{({} Comparative Financial Information

. The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information.

Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the prior year financial
" sratements from which the summarized information was derived. With respect to the statement of
activities, the prior year information is not presented by net assel class. With respect 1o the
statement of functional expenses, the prior year expenses by expense classification are presented
in total rather than by functional category, Such information does not include sufficient detall te

constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Unitad States.

3. Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets, net consists of the following:

June 30, 2012

Equipment ' § 728,170
Furniture and fixtures 27,596
Library books ' 59,479
Software ) ) 117,072

Total ' 932,267
Less: Accumulated depreciation {910,871)
Fixed assets, net $ 21,396

4., Donated Materials, Facilities and Services

The value of donated matérials, facilities and services included in support and revenues and

corresponding management, general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30,
2012 are as follows:

Utilities, phone and other S 58,657
Rent o ‘ 368,018
' 5426,670

These services were donated by the NYCDOE in accordance with the terms of the leadership
development contract awarded to the Leadership Academy.

11



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc,

Notes to Financial Statements

5, Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarity rés_tricted net assets were available for the following purposes at June 30, 2012:

. Wallace - Product Development . T $228,417

Wallace - Professional Learing Community 125,000
$353,417

6. Economic Dependency

The Leadership Academy was originally supported through private funding, The intent of these
private donors was to provide seed capital to launch the organization with the expectation that its
work would ultimately be primarily funded by public funds. While these donors continue to be
highly supportive of the Leadership Academy’s work and may fund small-scale projects in the
future, they expect the promised shift from private to public funding of its work. As such, the
NYCDOFE issued a request for proposal (“RFP") for leadership development services and the
Leadership Academy was selected to provide these services through a competitive bidding
process. The Leadership Academy was granted a contract of $53,828,873 with NYCDOE for a
period from July 1, 2008 to Jume 30, 2013, Approximately 66% of the Leadership Academy’s
revenue was funded under this NYCDOE contract in fiscal year 2012, The Leadership Academy has
received supplemental funding from a US Department of Education grant, foundation grants and
contracts for fee for service from various educational institutions {(all combined accounted for

over 34% of revenue in fiscal year 2012), which helped to mitigate service costs for most principals
of high need schools.

7. Subsequent Events

The Leadership Academy’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through
October 18, 20112, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued and there

were no subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures as
stated herein. _

12
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100 Park Avenoe
Fax: w312 New York, NY 10017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.
New York, New York

Report on the Financigf Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.
(the “Leadership Academy”}, which comprise the statement of financial positien as of June 30,
2613, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. '

Managernent’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control

relevant o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalements based on our audit. We .
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Ametica. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Leadership Academy’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Leadership Academy’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatengss of accounting poticies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements, : :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion,

dmited, & U¥ company Hmitad by guarsmes, 3nd forms pait of the

BIK 15 the hraad nawe for the BDO natwork and for sach of the 500 Member Fims,
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Opinion

Jin our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The NYC Leadership Acadery, Inc. as of June 30, 2013, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Surmmarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.’s 2012 financial statements, and
we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements i our report
dated October 18, 2012. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Bso ysa uwe

December 6, 2013



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

~ Statement of Financial Position
_ {with comparative totals for 2012)

June 30, - 2013 Mz
Assets '
Cash and cash equivalents {Note 2) $2,183,040 3,650,949
Assets whose use is {imited (Note 2) 600,288 353,417
Grants receivable , 452,579 343,745
Contracted services receivable 3,457,357 2,592,998
Prepaid expenses 182,243 84,604
Fixed assets, net (Note 3) 203,018 21,396
$7,078,525 $7,049,109
Liabilities and Net Assets
" Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other Uabilities S 411,587 S 409,212
- Accrued payroll and payroll related Uabilities 104,950 224 577
Total Liabilities 516,537 631,789
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 5,961,700 6,061,902
Temporarily restricted {Note 5} 600,288 353,417
Total Net Assels 6. 561,988 8,415,320
57,078,525 57,049,109

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

statement of Activities
{with comparative totals for 2012)

Year ended June 30,

Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2013 2012
Public Support and Revenue: -
Contracted services $ 8,343,154 § - $ 8,343,154 §7,922.11%
Donated materials, facilities and
services (Note 4) 344,219 - 344,219 426,670
Grant income 1,419,260 680,000 2,099,260 1,461,464
Miscellaneous income 3,10 - 3,040 834
interest income 8,562 8,562 14,859
Net assets {deficit) released from , o .
restriction (Note 6) 433,129 {433,129) .
Total Public Support and
Revenue 10,551,334 246,871 10,798,205 9,825,943
Expenses: '
Prograrm services;
Aspiring Principals Program 708,779 705,779 473,211
New School Intensive 453,778 453,778 426,884
New Principal Support Program 1,826,394 1,826,394 1,779,874
Experienced Coaching Program 1,482,041 1,482,041 1,515,671
National Inftiative Prograim 2,027,389 - 7,027,389 1,219,298
Other programs 1,826,147 - 1,826,147 1,390,735
Total Program Services 8,321,528 §,321,528 6,805,673
Suppoerting services;
Management and general 2,034,144 - 2,034,144 2,836,364
Fundraising 295,865 - 295,865 147,379
Total Supporting Services 2,330,009 2,330,009 2,983,743
Total Expenses 10,651,537 10,651,537 9,789,416
Change in Net Assats {100,203) 246,871 144,668 36,527
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 6,061,903 353,417 6,415,320 6,378,793
Net Assets, End of Year $ 5,961,700 $ 600,288 ¢ 6,561,988 $6,415,320

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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The NYC Leadership Academy, inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
{with comparative totals for 2012)

Year ended June 30, 2013 2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities;
Change in net assets : $ 146,668 S 36,527
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net :
cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7 ‘ 15,842 8,559
Provision for bad debt expense - 17,444
(Increase) decrease in: ‘
Assets whose use is limited {246,871} (353,417
Granis receivable {107,134) {215,406)
Contracted services receivable (864,059 {313,953)
Prepaid expenses and other receivables {97,639) 765
Increase {decrease) in: ‘
Accounts payable and other Habilities - 2,374 {5,587)
Accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities (119,627) 31,600
, Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,270,448} {793,468)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets ‘ {197,463) -
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents {1,467,90%) {793,468)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 3,650,949 4,444,417
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 2,183,040 $3,650,949

| 502 QrCompanying notes to fz‘hanc;‘a( statements.




The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Organization

The NYC Leadership Academy (the “Leadership Academy”) is a naticnal non-profit organization
committed to preparing and supporting school leaders who can transform the most challenging
schools and improve outcomes for all students, The Leadership Academy is the primary leadership
development partner to the NYC Department of Education {"NYCDOE") - the largest school system

in the country - and provides customized school leadership advisory services and technical
assistance to over 24 districts and states across the country.

The following programs and supporting services are included in the accompanying financial
statements: .

» Aspiring Principals Program (®APP”): APP puts educational professionals on a rigorous and
acceterated track toward successfully leading New York City’s most challenging schools,
Aspiring principals complete a demanding 14-month leadership development program that
inctudes a six-week summer intensive using a problem-based curriculum that stimuiates the
principalship, a ten-month long residency in a school under the guidance of experienced

mentor principals, and a planning summer that prepares the participants to transition
effectively into their new leadership roles.

. New Principal Support Program (“NPS™): NPS provides teadership development to first year
principals, This program offers these principals a menu of teadership development resources
including 1:1 coaching by former school leaders and leadership development sessions.

® Experienced Principals Coaching Program: Provided by recently retired expert practitioners

who stay abreast of and responsive to system reform efforts, the coaching support is aimed

- at helping principals improve student learning outcomes, Coaches offer a range of coaching
supports including 1:1 coaching, coaching for school teams and small group coaching,

= . New School Intensive (“NSI”); NS provides leadership development and technical support to
alt individuals selected to open new, small schools. NSUs pre and in-service components
include targeted leadership development sessions and technical sUppOrt to help these new

principals address the unigue leadership changes inherent in building a high-functioning
educational environment from scratch,

. National Initiatives Program (“NI"}: NI provides short and’ long-term consulting in school
leadership preparation, coaching/mentoring of aspiring and current school leaders, and
comprehensive leadership development systems. Iis service area includes urban, suburban,

and rural school systems, state education agencies, universities, and education-oriented
non-profit organizations.

® Other Programs: In addition to the above described programs, the Leadership Academy also
designs and delivers workshops for NYCDOE principals, helps with the development of other

NYCDOE-led leadership programs, and supports system-wide initiatives that address broader
leadership needs of the NYCDOE.



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a}  Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(b} Financial Statement Presentation

The classification of the Leadership Academy’s net assets and its support; revenue and expenses is
hased on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, It requires that the amounts for
each of three classes of net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted and
unrestricted, be displayed in the statement of financial position and that the amounts of change
in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities.

The classes of net assels are defined as follows:

Permanently Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
- whose use by the Leadership Academy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire

by. passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Leadership
Academy.

Temporarily Restricted - Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Leadership Academy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire
by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Leadership Acadermy pursuant
to those stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities.

Unrestricted - The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted by

donor-imposed stipulations. They represent resources over which the Leadership Academy has full
discretion with respect to its use. ‘

{¢} Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Leadership Academy considers all highty liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

{d} Tax Status

The Leadership Academy was incorporated in the State of New York and is exempt from Federal,
state and local income taxes under Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code {the “Code"),
and therefore has made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements.
in addition, the Leadership Academy has been determined by the Internat Revenue Service not to
be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. There was no
unrelated business income for the year ended June 30, 2013,

The Leadership Acadery has not taken an unsubstantiated tax position that would require
provision of a Uability under Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 740, “Income Taxes”. The Leadership Academy has filad for and received
income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where it s required to do so. Additionally, The
Leadership Academy has filed IRS Form 990 information returns, as reguired, and all other
applicable returns in jurisdictions where so required. For the year ended June 30, 2013, there was
no interest or penalties recorded or included in the statement of activities. As of June 30, 2013
management believes that the Leadership Academy is no longer subject to income tax
examinations for years prior to 2010.
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- The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

1

{ef Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is Limited consists of donor-contributed funds that are required to be maintained
in separate accounts for specific purposes. : ‘

(f)  Contributions and Grants

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions with purpose or time restrictions (defined by management as unrestricted amount
due in more than one year) are reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfitled,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Restricted gifts and grants,

received and utilized in the current year, are reflected in the statement of activities in the
unrestricted class of net assets. :

Public grants from government agencies are recorded based on the terms of the grantor
-atlotment, which generatly provides that revenue is earned when the allowable costs or units of
services of specific grant provisions have been incurred or provided.

{g}  Fixed Assets

Fixed assets with an initial: value of $2,500 or more are recorded at cost, if ourchased, or
estimated fair value at date of receipt, if donated, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
provided under the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of three to seven years.

{hy Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in . -
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts, assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. ' ‘ '

(i) . Donated Materials, Facilities and Services

Donated materials, facilities and services are valued at their fair market value, Donated services
are recognized if the services received {a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b} require

specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to
be purchased if not donated, ‘

{i}  Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Leadership Academy to concentration of credit
_Tisk consist primarily of temporary cash investments. At various times during the year, the

Leadership Academy had cash deposits at financial institutions which exceeded the EDIC insurance

limit. ' '

(k)  Functional Altocation of Expenses

The cost of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain administrative costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services based on benefits received.

11




The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

{(t} ~ Comparative Financial Information ,

The financial statemments include certain prior year summarized comparative information.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the prior year financial
statements from which the summarized information was derived, With respect to the statement of
activities, the prior year information is not presented by net asset class, With respect {o the
statement of functional expenses, the prior year expenses by expense classification are presented
in total rather than by functional category. Such information does not inciude sufficient detail to

constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

3 Fixed Assets; Net
Fixed assets, net consists of the following:

- June 30, 2013

Equipment - S 718,170
Furniture and fixtures , 27,596
Library books 39,429
Software _ 314,535

. Total 1,129,730
Less: Accumulated depreciation {526,712}
Fixed assets, net S 203,018

4. Donated Materials, Facilities and Services _

The value of donated materials, facilities and services included in support and revenues and

corresponding management, general and adménistrati_ve expenses for the year ended June 30,
2013 are as follows: '

Utilities, phone and other $ 58,652
Rent 285 567
$344,219

These services were donated by the NYCDOE in accordance with the terms of the leadership
development contract awarded to the Leadership Academy.

12



The NYC Leadership Academy, Inc.

Notes to Financial $Statements

5. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following purposes at June 30, 2012:

Wallace - Product Dévelopment $111,293
Wallace - PLC PP : 443,292
Wallace - Mentoring : 45,703

$600,288

Net assets released from restrictions amounted to $432,129 for the year ended June 30, 2013,

6. Economic Dependency

The Leadership Academy was originally supported through private funding. The intent of these
private donors was to provide seed capital to launch the organization with the expectation that its
work would ultimately be primarily funded by public funds. While these donors continue to be
highty supportive of the Leadership Academy’s work and may fund smali-scale projects in the
future, they expect the promised shift from private to public funding of s work. As such, the
NYCDOE issued a request for nroposal {“RFP™) for leadership development services and the
Leadership Academy was selected to provide these services through a competitive bidding
process. The Leadership Academy was granted a contract of $53,828,873 with NYCDOE for a
period from July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2013, The contract was extended for an additional one year

_ term for July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 in the amount of 56,600,000, Approximately 57% of
the Leadership Academy’s revenue was funded under this NYCDOE contract in fiscal year 2013,
The Leadership Academy has received supplemental funding from a US Department of Education
grant, foundation grants and contracts for fee for service from various educational institutions (ail
combined accounted for over 43% of revenue in fiscal year 2013}, which helped to mitigate service
costs for most principals of high need schools.

7. Sﬁbsequent Events

The Leadership Academy’s management has performed subsequent events procedures through
December 6; 2013, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued and

there were no subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures
as stated herein,

13



LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

Terminations, Litigation, Debarment

No, during the last five (5) years, NYC Leadership Academy has not had a contract for
services terminated for any reason. '

No, during the last five (5) years, NYC Leadership Academy has not had any damages or
penalties of anything of vaiue traded or given up by under any existing or past contracts

as it relates to services performed that are similar to the services outlined in this RFP.and
the resulting contract.

No, during the last five (5) years, NYC Leadership Academy has not received any order,
judgment or decree of any Federal or State authority barring, suspending or otherwise
limiting its right to engage in any business, practice or activity.

No, during the last five (5) years, NYC Leadership Academy has not been involved in any
pending or threatened litigation, administrative or regulatory proceedings, or similar
maﬁers that cou_ld affect its ability tb perform the required services. No owners, officers, or
primary partners of the NYC Leadership Academy have ever been convicted of a felony.

No, during the last five (5} years, no irregularities have been discovered in any of the
accounts maintained by the NYC Leadership Academy on behalf of others.

Acceplance of Terms and Condiﬁons

NYCLA accepts all terms and conditions stated in the RFP.

Firm Proposal Terms

NYCLA guarantees the availability of the services offered in this proposal and that all

Proposal terms, including price, will remain firm a minimum of ninety (90) days following
the deadline for submitting Proposals.

NYC Leadership Academy // lown Department of Educalion
- Copyright © NYC Leadership Academy 2014, All righis reserved,
85
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LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

Appendix
» Sample of NYCLA's Leadership Performance Planning Worksheet® {LPPW)

‘e Content map for proposed curriculum

e Sample summer institute curriculum

RYC Leadership Academy // lowa Deparfment of Education
Copyright © NYC leadership Academy 2014, All righis reserved. .
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Summer Institute: Soample Curriculum

Goals for 2013-2014 for Rhode Island’s Academy for Turnaround Leaders

1. Engage school leaders and their teams in relevant, engaging, and meaningful learning
experiences that support implementation of school reform plans.

2. Design and facilitate PD that complements and aligns with that of districts and local
professional crganizations. .

3.

Engage school leaders and their teams in building relevant content knowledge,
practice necessary skills in communication, teamwark, and capacity-building.

4. Create opportunities for school leaders from across Rl and their teams to learn from

and build relationships with colleagues from across the state.

Yearlong KBADs (what participants need to Know and Be Able to Do)

for School Leaders:

Sustain a clear and compeiling vision for high student achievement that continues to

include school and community stakeholders

Remain grounded in the values and moral imperative associated with the work and be

able to sustain oneself (physically, emotionally, etc.)
Effectively contribute to and werk o~ 2. 'earn

Facilitate and develop the school’s leadership team to effectively execute school
priorities

Build staff capacity and potential in order to effectively implemenf School Reform Plan
and school priorities

Analyze school data and use it to measure progress of School Reform Plan

implementation and student learning

Use feedback as a tool to change behavior (of self and others)

For School Leadership Teams:

Demonstrate ability to approach the school transformation work as a team
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* Demonstrate capacity to assess progress through the consistent use of data

» Identify mental models and their impact on how data is selected and anaiyzed in

relation to School Reform Plan

* Demonstrate capacity to consisténtiy communicate school pricrities to larger school
community

+ Demonstrate capacity to self-assess team functioning and utilize team functioning tools

PD SESSIONS

Session 1 - Principals only
Where are we, where do we need to go, and how do we get there?
Goals:
1. Using the June 2014 vision as a starting point
a. Assess effectiveness of data coliection and analysis process

b. Understand where the urgency and ambition of plan is potentiaily in conflict
with staff capacity

¢. Continued practice communication of June 2014 vision and building capacity
of others to do so

d. Assess effectiveness of leadership team in moving the school towards that
vision
Session 2 - Principals and Teams

What are the big bets in our strategy ? How are we Workxhg as ateam to determine if we
are moving in the right direction?

Goals:

1. The team will begin to articulate its positioning within the Data Wise process.

2. The team will collectively know and be able to articulate appropriate outcomes for at
least {1} strategy.

3. The team will be able to identify specific short and long term indicators of success for
at least (1) strategy.

NYC Leadership Academy // lowa Department of Education '
Copyright © NYC Leadership Academy 2014, All rights reserved.
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- 4. The team will be able to connect decision~making to data analysis, and propose new
. leverage points.

Session 3 - Principals and Teams

How do we engage other stakeholders in where we are in the improvement process and
in where we hope to be by June 201472

Goals:

1. Using a case study as a reflection tool to identify strengths and gaps in school's data
process

2. Articulate (1) action step the team will take to leverage strengths and address gaps in
that process

3. Identify ways to engage & empower stakeholders beyond this team:
4. Utilize expertise in room to problem-solve

Session 4 - Principals and Teams

How are we assessing our teamn in relation to our purpose and what are the implications
for both leadership and implementation to June 20147 How do we use what we have

learned about our team and the work of implementation to create short and long term
goals?

Facilitate and develop school leaders’ capacity to:
¢ Assess team capacity in relation to purpose of the team
¢ Support the team in effectively executing the schoal's priorities
» Identify implications for leadership
Facilitate teams' capacity to
e Assess team skill setin relétion to purpose of the team
+ identify implications for implementation to June
e Teams will backward plan for one strategy from March — September 2014

Session 5 - Principals only

RYC Leadership Academy // lows Depariment of Education
Copyright © NYC Leadership Academy 2014, Al righls reserved,
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How am | thinking abouit the leadership teamn’s capacity as we prepare for next year?
What are the implications for my own leadership?

Leaders will be introduced to:

= Distinctions between different types of operating contexts (routine, complex, and
innovative}

Leaders will be able to:
» Plan for team growth in relétion to September 2014 strategy plan
s |dentify critical conversatibns with team members and other staff
s Self-identify areas of leadership support

Session 6 - Principals and Teamns

How do we build on our team’s accomplishrments this year and plan for next years
implementation challenges?

Goals;

» Teams will be able to identify key initiatives and action steps for September 2014 and
have opportunities for feedbhack ’

* Teams will be able to reflect on team learning and growth and use this for more
effective planning next year

o Teams will discuss and identify ways to sustain this year's growth

» Asalarge group, identify 1-2 strategies for sustaining the group's learning and
continue 1o build our learning community

RYC lendership Academy // lowa Department of Fducafion
Copyright © NYC Leadership Academy 2014, AH righds reserved,
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Attachment #1

F]

Date: Mevember }7, Jﬂf‘f

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14" Street

Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW275-01
PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION

Dear Mr. Wise,

MNC Leadershp  Feademy

-t cartify that the contents of the Propesal submitted on behalf of {(Vendor) in response o the lowa Department of
Education Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01 are true and accurate. | also certify that
made any knowingly false statements in its proposal,

MCLA!Vendor) has not

" Furthermore, 1 acknowledge my understanding of the following:

Chapter 73.2 of the Code of lowa states that all requests for bids and proposals shall contain a paragraph reading as
follows, “by virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be‘ given to products and provisions grown and coal produced
within the state of lowa.”

Sincerely,

Name: |rna Zafdﬂ\[ﬂ..
Title: CEO

Page 24 of 28




Attachment #2

Date: Mov. 1T, Aoy

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14" Street

Des Moines, IA 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number £D-RW2758-01
CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENCE AND NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Dear Mr, Wise,
By submitting a Proposal in response to the lowa Department of Education Request for Proposal {RFP} Number ED-
RW279-01 for the services described in this RFP, the undersigned certifies the following:

1. The Proposal has been developed independently, without cons'uitatlon, communication or agreement with any

employee or consultant of the Department who has worked on the development of this RFP, or with any person
serving es a member of the Evaluation Committee.

2. The Proposal has been developed independently, without consultation, communication or agreement with any .
other Vendor or parties for the purpose of restricting competition.

3. Unless otherwise required by law, the information found in the Proposal has not been knowingly disclosed and
will not be knowingly disclosed pricr to the award of the contract, directly or indirectly, to any other Vendor.

4. No attempt has been made or will be made by N\l%endor) to induce any other Vendor to submit or not to
submit a Proposal for the purpose of restricting competition.

5. No refationship exists or will exist during the contract period between M {Vendor) and the Department that
interfergs with fair competition or as a conflict of interest, .

Sincerely,

JLM,W

Name: [¥ma 2ardoya
Tile: C40

Page 25 of 28




Att;ichment #3

~Date: Nev. f-?; 29[‘?[

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lows Department of Education
- Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14™ Street

Pes Moines, 1A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND ELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

Dear Mr. Wise,

By submitting a Proposal in response to the lowa Department of Education Request for Proposal (RFP} Number ED-
" RW279-01 for the services described in this RFP, the undersigned certifies the following:

1. | certify that, to the bast of my knowledge, MyC {Vendor} and all of its principles:

a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily exciuded
from covered transactions by a federal agency or agency;

b} have not within a three-year period preceding this Proposal been convicted of, or had a civil judgment
rendered against them from commission of fraud, or a eriminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attermpting to obtain, or performing a public {federal, state, or locat) transaction or contract under a public
transaction, violation of antitrust statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

¢) are not presently indicted for or criminally or civilly charged by a government entity {federal, state, or local)
with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in {b} of this certification;

d} have not within a three-year period preceding this Proposal had one or more public transactions (federal,
state, or local) terminated for cause.

2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which the Department has relied when this transaction
was entered into. if it is later determined that the undersigned knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in
addition to other remedies available, the Department may pursue avaitable remedies including suspension,
debarment, or termination of the contract,

Sincerely,

Name: lrma wdb?"’
Title: f.w

Page 26 of 28




Attachment #4
" pate: NS"’; ay, Aok

Ryan Wise, tssuing Officer

iowa Department of Education -
Grimes State Office Building

400 East 147 Street

Des Moihes, 1A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW275-01
AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION

Dear Mr. Wise,

{(Vendor] hereby authorizes the lowa Department of fducation to obtain information regarding its performance
on other contracts, agreements or other business arrangements, its business reputation, and any other matter pertinent
+6 svaluation and the selection of a successful Vendor in response to Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01.

“The Vendor acknowledges that it may not agree with the information and opiniors given by such person or entity in
response to a reference request. The Vendor acknowledges that the information and opinions given by such person or
entity may hurt its chances to receive contraci awards from the Department or may otherwise hurt its reputation or
operations. The Vendor is willing to take that risk.

The Vendor hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges the State of lowa, the Department, their officers, directors,
employees and agents from any and all lia bility whatsoaver, including all claims, demands and causes of action of every
nature and kind affecting the undersigned that it may have of ever claim to have relating o information, data, opinions,
and references obtained by the Department in the evaluation and selection of a successful Vendor in response to
Reduest far Proposal Number ED-RW279-01.

The Vendor authorizes representatives of the Department to contact any and all of the persons, entities, and references

which are, directly or indirectly, listed, submitted, or referenced in the undersigned's Proposal submitted in response to
Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01.

The Vendor further authorizes any and all persons and entities to provide information, data, and opinions with regard 1o
the undersigned's performance under any contract, agreement, of other business arrangement, the undersigned's
ability to perform, the undersigned’s business reputation, and any other matter pertinent to the evaluation of the
undersigned. The undersigned hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges any such person or entity and their

ofﬂcers, directors, employees and agents from any and all liability whatsoever, including all claims, demands and causes
of action of every nature and kind affecting the undersigned that it may have or ever claim to have relating to

information, data, opinions, and references supplied to the Department in the evaluation and selection of a successful
Vendor in response to Request for Proposal Number ED-RW278-01.

Sihcere!y,
MC Leadershy Awdcmy
Printed Name of Vendor Organization

Wma  Zardey A

Name of Authorized Representative

CEp

Title

itf29/ a0

Date

Page 27 of 23




Attachment #5

pate: Nov. [T, 2o1Y

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14" Street

Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW2735-01
CERTIFICATION REGARDING REG!STRATION, COLLECTION, AND REMISSION OF STATE SALES AND USE TAX

Dear Mr. Wise,

- Pursuant to lowa Code sections 423.2(10) & 423.5(8) (2005 Code Sup.) - a retailer in lowa or a retailer maintaining a
business in lowa that enters into a contract with a state agency must register, collect, remit lowa sales tax and lowa use
tax levied under lowa Code Chapter 423 on all sales of tangible personal property and enumerated services. The Act also

requires Vendors to certify their comphiance with sales tax registration, coliection, and remission requirements and
provides potentlai consequences if the certification Is faise or fraudulent,

By submitting a Proposal in response 1o the lowa Department of Education Request for Proposal (RFP) Number ED-
RW279-01 for the services described in this RFP, the undersigned certifies the following:

1] (Vendof} is registered with the lowa Department of Revenue, collects, and remits lowa sales and use
taxes as required by lowa Code Chapter 423,

E‘f {(Vendor} is not a "retailer” or a "retailer maintaining a place of business in this state” as those terms -
are defined in lowa Code subsections 423.1{42) & {43}

Ezr_ {Vendor} acknowledges that the Department may declare the (Vendor} bid or resulting contract

void if the above certification is false

M {Vendor) understands that fraudulent certification may result in the Department or its representative
filing for damages for breach of contract )

Sincerely,

O

Name: lyma ?'M"'UY"‘“
Tite: CLO
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STATE OF IOWA

Formal Competitive Bid
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
RFP# ED-RW279-01
Title Teacher Leadership Compensation Administrator Support

On Behalf of the lowa Department of Education

Proposal Due Date: November 25, 2014, by 3:30 p.m. Central Standard Time

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer

lowa Department of Education
Division of Policy and Communications

- Bureau of Communications & Information Services

“Grimes State Office Building

400 East 14" Street

Des Moines, |A 50319-0146
Email: ryan.wise@iowa.gov (preferred method of communication)
Fax: (515} 242-5988

- All questions should be in writing and directed to the Issuing Officer.

~ All available information concerning this Request for Proposal can be viewed and downloaded from the
following website: http://bidopportunities.iowa.gov/
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1.1 PURPOSE OF PROCUREMENT

This Request for Proposal (RFP) is issued by the lowa Department of Education (DE}). The purpose of this RFP is to seek
the services and solicit Proposals from quatified Vendors to develop a support system that will provide Principals with

- the skills they will need to support teacher leaders and provide central office administrators skills they will need to
support Principals as the district develops and implements its local Teacher Leadership Compensation (TLC) Plan.

The intent of this RFP is to award a contract to that responsible Vendor whose Proposal best meets the needs of the
Department, as determined by the Department. Any contract resulting from the RFP shall not be an exclusive contract.

1.2 DEFINITIONS

Contract means the RFP, and addenda thereto, the Vendor's Proposal, and the purchase. The contract constitutes the
entire agreement between the State of lowa and the Vendor.

Department means the lowa Department of Education.

- Evaluation Committee means a committee established by the Department to review and evaluate Proposals to
_determine the successful Vendor.

Invoice means bill submitted to the Department by the Vendor for services rendered under the contract.
Joint Venture means two (2) or more corporations or entities that form a temporary union for the purpose of an RFP.

Responsible Vendor means a Vendor that has the capability in all respects to perform the requirements of the Contract.
_In determining whether a Vendor is a Responsible Vendor, the Department may consider various factors including, but
not limited to, the Vendor's competence and qualifications to provide the goods or services requested, the Vendor's
integrity and reliability, the past performance of the Vendor and the best interest of the Department and the State.

Responsive Proposal means a Proposal that complies with the material provisions of this RFP.

Targeted Small Business means a small business which is fifty-one percent {51%) or more owned, operated and actively
managed by one (1) or more women, minority persons, or persons with a disability, as defined in lowa Code Section
15.102.

Vendor means a person, partnership, firm, corporation, or joint venture submitting a Proposal for the purpose of
" obtaining a contract.
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2.1 ISSUING OFFICER

The Issuing Officer, identified below, is the sole point of contact regarding this RFP from the date of issuance until
selection of the successful Vendor:

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Division of Policy and Communications
Bureau of Communications & Information Services
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14™ Street
Des Moines, lowa 50319-0146
Email: ryan.wise@iowa.gov
Fax: (515) 242-5988

2.2 PROCUREMENT TIMETABLE

The following dates are set forth for informational and planning purposes; however, the Department reserves the right
to change the dates: ‘

issue RFP No_ticé to Targeted Small Business website October 6, 2014
Issue RFP ‘ | October 8, 2014
Vendor’s Questions Due @ 3:30 PM Central Time October 31, 2014
Responses to Vendor’s Questions Issued November 7, 2014
Proposals Due @ 3:30 PM Central Time : November 25, 2014
Open and Evaluate Proposals ' November 26, 2014
Announce Successful Vendor December 22, 2014

23 RESTRICTION ON COMMUNICATION _
From the issue date of this RFP until announcement of the successful Vendor, Vendors may contact ONLY the Issuing
Officer. The Issuing Officer will respond cnly to questions regarding the procurement process. Vendors shall be
disqualified if they contact any State employee other than the Issuing Officer regarding this RFP.

Verbal questions related to the interpretation of this RFP will not be accepted. In NO CASE shall verbal communications
override written communications. Only written communications are hinding on the State.

2.4 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

Proposals must be received by the Department no later than 3:30 PM (Central Time) on November 25, 2014. Thisisa
mandatory requirement and will not be waived by the Department. Any Proposals received after this deadline will be
rejected and returned unopened to the Vendor. It is the Vendor’s responsibility to ensure their Proposal is received by
the Department prior to the deadline. Vendors mailing Proposals must allow delivery time to ensure timely receipt of
the Proposal. Postmarking by the due date will not substitute for actual receipt of the Proposal. Electronic mail and
faxed Proposals will NOT be accepted. Vendors must furnish all information necessary to evaluate the Proposal.
Proposals that fail to meet the mandatory requirements of this RFP will be disqualified. Verbal information provided by
the Vendor shall not be considered part of the Proposal.

2.5 DOWNLOADING THE RFP FROM THE INTERNET
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" All amendments will be posted on the State Bid Opportunities website at http://bidopportunities.iowa.gov/. The
Vendor is advised to check the State Bid Opportunities website periodically for amendments to this RFP, particularly if
 the Vendor downloaded this RFP from the Internet as the Vendor may not’ automatically receive amendments. [f the
Vendor received this RFP as a result of a written request to the Department, the Vendor will automaticaily receive
. amendments.

2.6 QUESTIONS, REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION AND SUGGESTED CHANGES
Vendors are invited to submit written guestions and requests for clarification regarding this RFP. Vendors may also
submit suggestions for changes to the requirements of this RFP. The questions, requests for clarification, or suggestions
" must be in writing, sent via U.S. mail, electronic mail, or fax and received by the Issuing Officer no later than 3:30 PM
{Central Time]) on October 31, 2014. Oral questions will NOT be permitted. If the questions, requests for clarification, or
Suggestions pertain to a specific section of this RFP, the page(s) and section number(s) must be referenced. Written
responses to questions, requests for clarification, or suggestions will be posted on or before November 7, 2014 on the
" State Bid Opportunities website htip://bidopportunities.iowa.gov/. The Department’s written responses will be
considered part of this RFP. If the Department decides to adopt a suggestion, the Departmént will issue an amendment
to this RFP. The Department assumes no responsibility for verbal representations made by its officers or employees
unless such representations are confirmed in writing and incorporated into this RFP.

2.7 AMENDMENT TO THE RFP AND PROPQOSAL, AND WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL
The Department reserves the right to amend this REP at any time. The Vendor shall acknowledge receipt of any
“amendments in its Proposal. i the amendment occurs after the closing date for receipt of Proposals, the Department

may, in its sole discretion, allow Vendors to amend their Proposals in response to the Department’s amendment if
necessary.

" The Vendor may amend its Proposal at any time prior to the due date of the Proposals. The amendment must be in
writing, signed by the Vendor and received prior to the deadline for the receipt of Proposals. Electronic mail and faxed
amendments will NOT be accepted. Vendors who submit Proposals in advance of the deadline may withdraw, modify,
and resubmit Proposals at any time prior to the deadline. Vendors must notify the Issuing Officer in writing if they wish
to withdraw their Proposal. Electronic mail and/or faxed requests to withdraw Proposals will NOT be accepted.

After the deadline, Vendors may make a written Eequest to withdraw their Proposal and must provide evidence that a
substantial mistake has been made. The Issuing Officer may permit withdrawal of the Proposal upon verification that a
substantial mistake has been made. '

2.8 JOINT VENTURES

" loint ventures are acceptable. If submitting a Proposal as a joint venture, the Vendor must submit a copy of the joint
venture agreement that identifies the principals involved and its rights and responsibilities regarding performance and
payment.

2.9 SUBCONTRACTORS

Subcontractors may be used to perform work under the contract. If a Vendor intends to use subcontractors, the Vendor
must identify in the Proposal the names of the subcontractors and the portions of the work the subcontractors will
perform. Assignment of subcontracted work under this project other than that identified in the Vendor's Proposal must
be approved in writing by the Department.

If a Proposal with subcontractors is selected, the Vendor must provide the following information concerning each
prospective subcontractor within five (5) working days from the date of the Department's reguest:
e Complete name of the subcontractor.
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e Complete address of the subcontractor.
s Type of work the subcontractor will be performing.
« Percentage of work the subcontractor will be providing.
_» A written statement, signed by each proposed subcontractor that clearly verifies that the subcontractor is
committed to render the services required by the contract.

A Vendor’s failure to provide this information within the set time shall cause the Department to consider the Proposal
non-responsive and reject the Proposal.

The substitution of one subcontractor for another may be made only at the sole discretion, and with prior written
approval, of the Departmenit’s Issuing Officer or Project Manager. o

2.10 COSTSTO PREPARE THE PROPOSAL

The costs of preparation and delivery of the Praposal to the Department are the sole responsibility of the Vendor,

2.11 PROPOSAL OPENING

The Déﬁartment will open Proposals on November 26, 2014. The Proposals will remain confidential until the Evaluation
. Lommittee has reviewed all Proposals submitted in response to this RFP, and the Department has announced a Notice

of Intent to Award the contract to the apparent successful Vendor.

2.12 DISQUALIFICATION
. The Department reserves the right to accept or reject any part of any Proposal and to accept or reject any and all
Proposals without penalty. Any Proposal may also be rejected outright and not be evaluated for any one of the
following reasons: '

1. The Vendor fails to deliver the Proposai by the due date and time.

2. The Vendor fails to deliver the Cost Proposal in a separate envelope.

3. The Vendor states that a service requirement cannot be met.

4. The Vendor's response materially changes a service requirement.

5. The Vendor's response limits the rights of the Department.

6. The Vendor fails to include information necessary to substantiate that it will be able to meet a service
requirement. A response of “will comply” or merely repeating the requirement is not sufficient. Responses
must indicate present capability; representations that future developments will satisfy the requirement are not
sufficient.

7. The Vendor fails to respond to the Department’s request for information, documents, or references.

8. The Vendor fails to include any signature, certification, authorization, stipulation, disclosure, or guarantee
requested in Section 4 of this RFP,

9. The Vendor presents the information requested by this RFP in a format inconsistent with the instructions in
Section 4 of this RFP.

10. The Vendor initiates unauthorized contact regarding the RFP with state employees other than the Issuing
Officer.

11. The Vendor provides misleading or inaccurate responses.

2.13 NONMATERIAL AND MATERIAL VARIANCES
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The Department reserves the right to waive or permit cure of nonmaterial variances in the Proposal if, in the judgment
of the Department, it is in the Department’s best interest to do so. Nonmaterial variances include minor informalities
that:

e Do not affect responsiveness.
Are merely matters of form or format.

Do not change the relative standing or otherwise prejudice other Vendors.

Do not change the meaning or scope of this RFP.

Do not reflect a material change in the services.

In the event the Department waives or permits cure of nonmaterial variances, such waiver or cure will not modify RFP
requirements or excuse the Vendor from full compliance with RFP specifications or other contract requirements if the
Vendor is awarded the contract. The determination of materiality is in the sole discretion of the Department.

- 2.14 REJECTION OF PROPOSALS

The Department reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals, in whole and in part, received in response to this RFP at
any time prior to the execution of a written contract. Issuance of this RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the
Department to award a contract. This RFP is designed to provide Vendors with the information necessary forthe
preparation of a competitive Proposal. This RFP process is for the Department’s benefit and is intended to provide the
Department with competiﬁve information to assist in the selection process. It is not intended to he comprehensive and
each Vendor is responsible for determining all factors necessary for submission of a comprehensive Proposal.

2.15 PUBLIC RECORDS AND REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT

Before the Notice of Intent to Award is issued, all details of the Proposals and scoring will remain confidential. Upon
issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award, all Proposals and scoring becoeme public information. The release of
information by the Department is subject to lowa Code Chapter 22 or other applicable laws. Vendors are encouraged to
familiarize themselves with Chapter 22 before submitling a Proposal. The Department will treat all information

~ submitted by a Vendor as public information unless the Vendor properly requests that information be treated as
confidential at the time of submission.

Any request for confidential treatment of information must be included in the transmittal/cover letter with the Vendor’s
Proposal. In addition, the Vendor must enumerate the specific grounds in lowa Code Chapter 22 or other applicable
Jaw, which support treatment of the material as confidential and must explain why disclosure is not in the best interest

~ of the public. The request must include: the name, the address, and telephone number of the person authorized by the
Vendor to respond to any inguiries by the Department concerning the confidential status of the materials.

Any Proposals submitted which contain confidential information must be clearly marked on the outside as containing
confidential information, and each page upon which confidential information appears must be clearly marked as
containing confidential information. The confidential information must be ciearly identifiable to the reader wherever it
appears. All copies of the Proposal submitted, as well as the original Proposal, must be marked in this manner.

In addition to marking the information as confidential where it appears, the Vendor must submit one (1) copy of the
Proposal, marked “Public Copy” from which the confidential information has been excised. This excised copy is in
addition to the number of copies requested in Section 4.1 of this RFP. The confidential infermation must be excised in
such a way as to allow the public to determine the general nature of the material removed and to retain as much of the
Proposal as possible. The “Public Copy” will be made available for public inspection.

An entire Proposal cannot be marked confidential. Only those sections that meet the criteria in lowa Code Chapter 22
or other applicable laws for confidentiality may be marked and treated as confidential information. Costs that will be
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incorporated into any resulting contract cannot be deemed confidential. Marking the entire Proposal as confidential
may be deemed non-responsive, resulting in disqualification of the Proposal.

In the event the Department receives a request for information marked confidential, written notice shall be given to the
Vendor seven (7) calendar days prior to the release of the information to allow the Vendor to seek injunctive relief
pursuant to Section 22.8 of the lowa Code.

The Vendor's failure to request confidential treatment of material pursuant to this sectien and the relevant laws and
administrative rules will be deemed by the Department as a waiver of any right to confidentiality, which the Vendor may
have had. i

2.16 PROPOSAL CLARIFICATION PROCESS

The Department reserves the right to contact a Vendor after the submission of a Proposal for the purpose of clarifying a
Proposal to ensure mutual understanding. This contact may include written questions, interviews, site visits, a review of
past performance if the Vendor has provided goods or services to the Department or any other political subdivision
wherever located, or requests for corrective pages in the Vendor’s Proposal. The Department will not consider
information received if the information materially alters the content of the Proposal or alters the type of goods and/or
services the Vendor is offering to the Department. An individual authorized to legally bind the Vendor shall sign
responses to any request for clarification. Responses shall be submitted to the Department within the time specified in
the Department’s reqUest. Failure to comply with requests for additional information may resuit in rejection of the
Proposal as non-responsive.

2.17 VERIFICATION OF PROPOSAL CONTENT

The contents of a Proposal submitted by a Vendor are subject to verification. Misleading or inaccurate responses shall
result in disqualification.

2.18 REFERENCE CHECKS

The Department reserves the right to contact any reference to assist in the evaluation of the Proposal, to verify
information contained in the Proposal, and to discuss the Vendor’s qualifications and the qualifications of any
subcontractor identified in the Proposal.

2.19 INFORMATION FROM OTHER SOURCES

The Department reserves the right to obtain and consider information from other sources concerning a Vendor, such as
the Vendor's capability and performance under other contracts; or the Vendor's authority and ability to conduct
business in the State.

2.20 SECURITY, CRIMINAL HISTORY AND BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION

It is the responsibility of the Vendor to ensure that all documentation, electronic files, and data are developed, used,
and maintained in a secure manner, protecting the confidentiality of all materials, records, and files

The Department reserves the right to conduct criminal history and other background investigations on the Vendor, its
officers, directors, shareholders, partners, managerial and supervisory personnel retained by the Vendor for
performance of services under the contract.

Z.21 EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS SUBMITTED

Proposals that are submitted timely and are not subject to disqualification will be reviewed in accordance with Section 5
of this RFP. The Department will not necessarily award a contract to the Vendor offering the lowest cost to the
Department or to the Vendor with the highest point total. Rather, the Department will award the contract to the
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compliant Vendor whose Proposal is judged to provide the greatest benefit to the State and that has the best
combination of attributes to perform the required services.

2.22 PRESENTATIONS

Selected Vendors may be required to make a presentation of their Proposal to discuss the content, scope of work,
deliverables, and procedures of this RFP. The determination as to the need for presentations, and the location, order,
and schedule of the presentations will be at the sole discretion of the Department. The Department shall bear no cost
for the time and travel of the Vendor for attendance at the presentation. The presentation may include slides, graphics,
- and other media selected by the Vendor to illustrate the Vendor’s Proposal. The presentation shall not materially

- _change the information contained in the Proposal

2.23 AWARD NOTICE AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD

A Notice of Intent to Award will be sent to all Vendors submitting a timely Proposal. The Notice of Intent to Award does
not constitute the formation of a contract between the Department and the apparent successful Vendor. After the
announcement of the apparent successful Vendor, negotiation and execution of the contract shall commence. If the
apparent successful Vendor fails to negotiate and execute a contract, the Department may, in its own discretion, cancel
the Award and award the contract to the next highest ranked Vendor or withdraw this RFP.

Vendors whose Proposal has been filed in accordance with the requirements of this RFP may appeal the decision by
filing a written notice of appeal (in accordance with Chapter 11-105.20, lowa Administrative Code) to:
Director
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 141" Street
Des Moines, lowa 50319-0146

A copy of the appeal shall aiso be submitted to the Issuing Officer. The notice of appeal must be filed within five (5)
calendar days of the date of the Notice of Intent to Award, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays, and legal State holidays. The
written appeal may be mailed, faxed, or delivered. The notice of appeal must clearly and fully identify all issues being
contested by referencing the page(s), section(s), line number{s) and/or the Notice of Intent to Award. A notice of appeal
may not stay the negotiations with the apparent successful Vendor.

2.24 DEFINITION OF CONTRACT
The full execution of a written contract shall constitute the making of a contract for services and no Vendor shall acquire

any legal or equitable rights relative to the contract services until the contract has been fully executed by the successful
Vendor and the Department.

2.25 DISPOSITION OF PROPQOSALS

All Proposals become the Property of the Department and shall not be returned to the Vendor, unless all Proposals are
rejected or this RFP is cancelied. In either event, Vendors will be asked to send prepaid shipping instruments to the
Department for return of the Proposals submitted. In the event the Department does not receive shipping instruments,
the Department will destroy the Proposals. At the conclusion of the selection process, the contents of all Proposals will
be placed in the public domain and be open to inspection by interested parties subject to exceptions provided in lowa
Code Chapter 22 or other applicable law.

2.26 COPYRIGHTS

By submitting a Proposal, the Vendor agrees that the Department may copy the Proposal for purposes of facilitating the
evaluation of the Proposal or to respond to requests for public records. The Vendor consents to such copying by
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submitting a Proposal and warrants that such copying will not violate the rights of any third party. The Department shall
have the right to use ideas or adaptations of ideas that are presented in the Proposal.

2.27 RELEASE OF CLAIMS

By submitting a Proposal, the Vendor agrees that it will not bring any claim or cause of action against the Department
based on-any misunderstanding concerning the information provided herein or concerning the Department's failure,
negligent or otherwise, to provide the Vendor with pertinent information as intended by this RFP.

2.28 RESTRICTIONS ON GIFTS AND ACTIVITIES _

lowa Code Chapter 68B restricts gifts which may be given or received by state employees and requires certain
~individuals to disclose information concerning their activities with State government. Vendors are responsible to
determine the applicability of this Chapter to their activities and to comply with the requirements. In addition, pursuant
to lowa Code Section 722.1, it is a felony offense to bribe or attempt to bribe a public official.

2.29 CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM
This RFP and the resulting contract are to be governed by the laws of the state of lowa.

Changes in applicable laws and rules may affect the award process or the resulting contract. Vendors are responsible for
“ascertaining pertinent legal requirements and restrictions. Any and all litigations or actions commenced in connection
with this RFP shall be brought in the appropriate lowa forum. '

2.30 NO MINIMUM GUARANTEE

i - The Department anticipates that the selected Vendor will provide services as requested by the Department. The

Department will not guarantee that any minimum compensation will be paid to the Vendor nor will the Department
guarantee the usage of a minimum amount of services performed by the Vendor.

2.31 CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS _
The contract that the Department expects to award as a result of this RFP will be based upon the Proposal submitted by
the apparent successful Vendor and this RFP. The contract between the Department and the apparent successful
B Vendor shall be a combination of the specifications, terms and conditions of this RFP, the offer of the Vendor contained
in their Technical and Costs Proposals, written clarifications or changes made in accordance with the provisions herein,
and any other terms deemed necessary by the Department. The governing order of precedence for documents shall be:
¢ The Executed Contract.
e The Request for Proposal {RFP).
s The Vendor Proposal.

By s'ubmitting a Proposal, each Vendor acknowledges its acceptance of these specifications, terms and conditions
without change, except as otherwise expressly stated in the Proposal. If a Vendor takes exception to a provision, it must
state the reason for the exception and set forth in the Proposal the specific contract language it proposes to include in
place of the provision. Exceptions that materially change the terms or the requirements of this RFP may be deemed
non-responsive by the Department, at its sole discretion, resulting in disqualification of the Proposal. The Department
reserves the right to either award a contract without further negotiation with the apparent successful Vendor or to
negotiate contract terms with the apparent successful Vendor if the best interest of the Department will be served.
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3.1 INTRODUCTION TGO THE PROGRAM

In the state of lowa, bipartisan legislation created a four-year process to fully develop the statewide Teacher Leadership
and Compensation {TLC) System, with the goal of all school districts voluntarily participating by the 2016-17 school year.
in the 2014 Legislative Session, $50 million in new funding was designated to launch the TLC System.

The TLC System rewards effective teachers with leadership opportunities and higher pay, attracts promising new

' ~teachers with competitive startmg salaries and more support, and fosters greater collaboration for all teachers to learn

from each other.

Through the system, teacher leaders take on extra responsibilities, including heiping colleagues analyze data and fine
tune instructional strategies as well as coaching and co-teaching.

The goals of the TLC System are:

o Attract able and promising new teachers by offering competitive starting salaries and offering short-term and
long-term professional development and leadership opportunities.

e Retain effective teachers by providing enhanced career opportunities.

= Promote collaboration by developing and supportmg opportumtles for teachers in schools and school districts
statewide to learn from each other.

¢ Reward professional growth and effective teaching by providing pathways for career opportunities that come
with increased leadership responsihilities and involve increased compensation.

* Improve student achievement by strengthening instruction.

Additional funding was appropriated during the 2014 legislative session to support administrators in districts
implementing a local TLC plan. Administrators have uhique learning needs as they develop and support a vision for
school improvement with teacher leadership as a primary point of leverage. This RFP calls for the development of a

-+ support system that will provide principals with the skills they will need to support teacher leaders and provide central
office administrators skills they will need to support principals as the district develops and implements its local TLC plan.
This professional development is defined by the TLC System - Framework for Learning Supports. Continued funding to
'sprort administrators in districts implementing TLC local plans in subsequent fiscal years is dependent upon additional
action by the State legislature.

3.2 SCOPE OF WORK
Proposals should describe how the Vendor will:

3.2.1 Support the TLC System — Framework for Leérning Supports in the context of administrator leadership,
including principals and other key central office staff such as superintendents.

The TLC System - Framewaork for Learning Supports describes seven (7) key focus areas for teacher leader and
principal professional development in the context of a teacher leadership system. An administrator support
system should include training and ongoing support dedicated to helping administrators develop.and implement a
vision for school improvement with teacher leadership as a primary point of leverage (as defined in the category
of Organizational Leadership in the Framework). [n addition, Proposals for the development of an administrator
support system shall describe opportunities for building administrator skills in the other six (6) areas of the
framework and emphasize the connectedness of the seven (7) focus areas of the Framework {see Appendix I).

3.2.2 Build state and local capacity to support administrators in TLC districts beyond the length of the grant.
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The lowa Department of Education has a one-year grant to develop and implement, in collaborati“on with
education stakeholders, a coaching and support system aligned with the beginning administrator mentoring and
induction program and focused on administrators in districts implementing a Teacher Leadership and
Compensation (TLC) plan. Proposals shall describe how the support system will build the fong-term capacity
locally and statewide to support administrators beyond the initial year. This includes, but is not limited to, training
and supporting local leaders who can continue the development and implementation of the administrator support
system over the fong-term.

3.2.3 Create shared opportunities for teacher leaders and administrators to develop collaborative leadership.
-Creating opportunities for teacher leaders and administrators to work together in leadership teams focused on
school improvement will be critical to the successful development of the TLC system. Principals” and
administrators’ ability to effectively facilitate a process of collaborative inquiry will be central in ensuring these
leadership teams are successful. Proposals for creating an administrator Support system shall describe shared
learning opportunities for administrators and teacher leaders.

~ 3.2.4 Tailor opportunities for administrator learning and growth to the local context {i.e. based upon the stage
. of development and implementation of a TLC plan).
Some lowa school districts have spent years developing a local approach toward fostering teacher leadership
while others have begun this work only recently. Proposals shall describe how the Vendor will tailor support for

administrators based upon local readiness. The Department and other stakeholders developed an “Entry Points
Framework” {see Appendix I} to illustrate the phases of implementing a local TLC plan.

3.2.5 Monitor the effectiveness and impact of the administrator support system.

Proposals shall describe how the organization will monitor and measure the success of the administrator support
system.

Appendix |

The Framework for Learning Supports for Administrators in a TLC System

Organizational Leadership for Administrators: Facilitation and enactment of a vision for school improvement with

teacher Iead'ership as a point of leverage.

» To cultivate coaching skills specific to administrators to support teacher leaders and other administrators who
work with teacher leaders.

e To develop the Professional Capital of an organization (http://www.michaelfullan.ca/wp-
content/uploads/2013/08/1SD-Power-of-Professional-Capital.pdf).

e To cultivate a mindset that supports empowerment of teacher leaders.

« To allocate resources and implement organizational structures and schedules that facilitate the
implementation of a system of teacher leadership.

¢ To create a climate and culture conducive to teacher leadership (e.g. how to engage, how to create a shared
vision, how to empower, how to delegate, how to navigate accountability issues, how to identify and establish
processes and protocols for decision-making/problem-seclving/situation analysis).

e To identify a change process and support teachers and teacher leaders as they experience change.

Adult Learning: Design and delivery of professional learning.
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e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to use knowledge and understanding of adult learning
styles and preferences; generational differences; and different backgrounds, ethnicities, cultures, and
languages to design and deliver professional learning or to support those who do. ‘

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to incorporate existing and emerging technologies in the
design and delivery of professional learning.

Collaborative Culture: Facilitation of group processes and development of necessary structures for professional

tearning environments to be effective.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to cultivate educator’s facilitation skills to create trust
among colleagues, develop collective wisdam, build ownership and action that supports student learning.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to utilize peer to peer processes {or to suppert those who
do) to help colleagues work collaboratively to solve problems, make decisions, manage conflict, and promote
meaningful change. '

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to cultivate effective skills in [istening, presenting ideas,
leading discussions, clarifying, mediating, and identifying the needs of self and others in order to advance
shared goals and professional learning.

Communication: Cultivation of skills associated with effective dialogue with colleagues.
s To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to give and elicit honest, open, and constructive feedback.

o To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to demonstrate deep listening skills, such as paraphrasing
and asking deep clarifying questions.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to seek and engage in non-evaluative, reflective dialogue
with colleagues.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to balance advocacy and inquiry.

Content/Pedagogy/Assessment: Implementation of research and best practice in content (lowa Core}, instruction,

and assessment.

« To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to engage in studying and applying current professional
literature and pursue professional learning opportunities focused on content, instruction and assessment.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to support implementation of instructional strategies that
ensure individual student learning needs remain the central focus of instruction.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to increase the capacity of colleagues to identify and use
multiple assessment tools aligned to state standards.

s To suppert Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to support colleagues in the alignment of content,
instruction, and assessment.

Systems Thinking: Integration and alignment of district and statewide educational improvement efforts.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to understand the processes of school improvement and
2nd order change.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to align teacher leadership efforts to implement including;
Multi-Tiered System of Support, lowa Core and Early Literacy.
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¢ To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC systém to understand the aligned and delineated roles and
responsibilities of the administrator and the teacher leader by following the professional learning standards.

bata: Facilitation of data analysis and data informed decision making.

e To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to collaborate with colleagues in the design,
implementation and scoring of assessments, and the subsequent interpretation of student data to improve
educational practice and student learning, or to support those who do.

» To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to use assessment and data findings to influence changes
in instructional practices and/or organizational structures to improve student learning.

» To support Teacher Leaders and/or the TLC system to facilitate program evaluation and impact in
collaboration with team.

Professional Development for School Leaders may include:

® Various modes of delivery including; large group delivery, modeling, coaching, feedback, virtual content and
communities.

¢ Connections to the lowa Professional Development Model.

e Connections to the lowa Standards for School Leaders.

Appendix 1l

Launching a System of Teacher Leadership
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4.1 INSTRUCTIONS

These instructions describe the format and content of the Proposal. Each Proposal shall be prepared simply and
economically, providing straightforward, concise delineation of Vendor's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this
RFP. Emphasis of each Proposal must be on completeness and clarity of content. To expedite the evaluation of
Proposals, it is essential that Vendors follow the format and instructions contained herein. Failure to adhere to the
Proposal format may result in the disqualification of the Proposal.

4.1.1 The Proposal shall be typed, on 8.5" x 11" paper, one-sided, and the font size of the body of text should be
comparable to Times New Roman point size 12.

4.1.2 The Proposal shall be divided into two parts: (1) the Technical Proposal; and (2} the Cost Proposal. The
Technical Proposal and the Cost Proposal shall be placed in separate envelopes, and clearly labeled as such. If
multiple envelopes for each Proposal are used, the envelopes shall be numbered in the following fashion: 1 of 4, 2
of 4, etc. The envelopes shall be labeled with the following information:

RFP Number
RFP Title
Issuing Officer’s Name
Department’s Address

Vendor’'s Name and Address

4.1.3 One (1} original and three (3) copies of the Proposal shall be submitted timely to the Issuing Officer. Each
envelope containing the original Proposal shall be labeled “Original” and each envelope containing a copy of the
Proposal shall be labeled “copy.” Each copy shall contain all attachments and be an exact copy of the original.

4.1.4 If the Vendor designates any information in its proposal as confidential pursuant to Section 2.15, the Vendor
must also submit one (1) copy of the Proposal from which confidential information has heen excised. The
confidential material must be excised in such a way as to allow the public to determine the general nature of the
material removed and to retain as much of the Proposal as possible.

4.1.5 Proposals shall not contain promotional or display materials.
4.1.6 Attachments shall be referenced in the Proposal.

4.1.7 If a Vendor proposes more than one method of meeting these requirements, each should be labeled and
submitted separately. Each will be evaluated separately.

- All answers that are given to the questions asked in this RFP are subject to verification. Misleading and/or inaccurate
information shall be grounds for disqualification at any stage in the procurement process.

Electronic mail and/or fax Proposals will NOT be accepted.

The content of the Proposal and any clarification thereto submitted by the successful Vendor shall become a part of the
contractual obligation and incorporated by as an exhibit into the ensuing contract.

By submission of a response to this RFP, the Vendor certifies that the Proposal was developed independently. The
Vendor also certifies that no relationship exists or will exist during the contract period between the Vendor and the
Department that interferes with fair competition or is a conflict of interest. The Department reserves the right to reject
a Proposal or cancel the award if, in its sole discretion, an§/ relationship exists that could interfere with fair competition
or confiict with the interests of the Department.
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4.2 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

The Vendor shall provide the following responses and documents in the Technical Propasal in the following order:

4.2.1 Transmittal/Cover Letter
The letter shall be signed by an individual that is authorized to legally bind the Vendor. The letter shall include the
Vendor’s:

1. Mailing Address

2. Electronic mail Address

3. Telephone Number

4. Fax Number

Any request for confidential information shall be included in the letter in addition to the specific statutory basis
supporting the request and an explanation why disclosure of the information is not in the best interest of the
public. The transmittal letter shall also contain the name, address and telephone number of the individual
authorized to respond to the Department about the confidential nature of the information.

The Vendor shall acknowledge in the letter the receipt of any amendments and receipt of the Department’s
responses to questions submitted by Vendors.

4.2.2 Table of Contents

The Vendor shall include a Table of Contents in the Proposal.

4,.2.3 Executive Summary
The Vendor shall submit an executive summary that briefly reviews the strengths of the Vendor and outlines the
services it is offering, including the following information:

1. Statements that demonstrate that the Vendor understands and agrees with the terms and conditions of
this RFP and the proposed contract.

2. Avision and mission statement for this program.
3. An overview of the Vendor's plans for the scope of work.

4. A demonstration of the Vendor’s knowledge related to the services to be performed.

4.2.4 Service Requirements

The Vendor shall address each service requirement in Section 3 of this RFP and explain how it plans to approach
each requirement. Proposals must be fully responsive to Service Requirements. Merely repeating the
requirements will be considered non-responsive and may disqualify the Vendor. Proposals must identify any
deviations from the requirements of this RFP or requirements the Vendor cannot satisfy. Any deviations from the
requirements of this RFP or any requirement of this RFP that the Vendor cannot satisfy may disqualify the Vendor.,

4.2.5 Background Information

The Vendor shall provide the following general background information:

1. Name, address, telephone number, fax number and electronic mail address of the Vendor. Please include
all d/b/a’s or assumed names or ather operating names of the Vendor.

2. Form of business entity {i.e. Corporation, Partnership, LLC, or Proprietorship)

3. State of incorporation, state of formation, or state of organization. The successful Vendor will also be
required to register to do business in the State of lowa. If already registered, provide the date of the
Vendor's registration to do business in lowa, and the name of the Vendor's registered agent. For Vendor
registration documents, go to hitp://das.gse.iowa.gov/procurement/vendor_reg.html,

Page 17 of 28



4. identify and specify the location(s) and telephone numbers of the major offices and other facilities that
relate to the Vendor's performance under the terms of this RFP.

5. Locat office address and telephone number {if any).
6. Number of employees.
7. Type of business.

8. Name, address, and telephone number of the Vendor's representative to contact regarding all contractual
and technical matters concerning this Proposal.

9. Name, address, and telephone number of the Vendor's representative to contact regarding scheduling and
other arrangements.

10. Name and qualifications of any subcontractors who will be involved with this project.
11. Identify the Vendor's accounting firm.
4.2.6 Experience -
The Vendor must provide the following information regarding its experience:
1. Number of years in business.
2. Number of years experience with providing the types of services sought by this RFP.
3. Describe the level of technical experience in providing the types of services sought by this RFP.

4. List all services similar to those sought by this RFP that the Vendor has provided to other businesses or
governmental entities.

5. Letters of reference from three {3} previous clients knowledgeable of the Vendor’s performance in
providing services similar to the services described in this RFP. Please provide a contact person and
telephone number for each reference.

4.2.7 Personnel

The Vender must provide résumés for all key personnel, including the Project Manager, who will be involved in
providing the services outlined in this RFP. The following information must be included in the résumés:

1. Full Name

2. Education

3. Years of experience and employment history particularly as it relates to the scope of work specified.
4.2.8 Financial Information
The Vendor shall provide the following financial information:

1. Audited financial statements (annual reports) for the last three (3) years. (Vendors who do not have
financial statements shall provide a detailed explanation of why they are not available and shall provide
alternatives that are acceptable to the Department}.

2. A minimum of three (3) financial references.
4.2.9 Terminations, Litigation, Debarment
The Vendor must provide the following information:

1. During the last five (5) years, has the Vendor had a contract for services terminated for any reason? If so,
provide full details related to the termination.

2. During the last five (5) years, describe any damages or penalties of anything of value traded or given up by
the Vendor under any of its existing or past contracts as it relates to services performed that are similar to
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the services outlined in this RFP and the resulting contract. If so, indicate the reason for the penalty or
exchange of property or services and estimated account of the cost of incident to the Vendor.

3. During the last five (5) years, describe any order, judgment or decree of any Federal or State authority
barring, suspending or otherwise [imiting the right of the Vendor to engage in any business, practice or
activity.

4, During the last five {5} years, list and summarize pending or threatened litigation, administrative or
regulatory proceedings, or similar matters that could affect the ability of the Vendor to perform the required
services. The Vendor must also state whether it or any owners, officers, or primary partners have ever been
convicted of a felony. Failure to disclose these matters may result in rejection of the Proposal or termination
of any subsequent contract. This is a continuing disclosure requirement. Any such matter commencing after
submission of a Proposal, and with respect to the successful Vendor after the execution of a contract, must
be disclosed in a timely manner in a written statement to the Department.

5. During the last five (5) years, have any irregularities been discovered in any of the accounts maintained by
the Vendor on behalf of others? If so, describe the circumstances of irregularities or variances and disposition
of resolving the irregularities or variances.

4.2.10 Proposal Certification

~ The Vendor shall sign and submit with the Proposal the document included as Attachment #1 in which the Vendor
shall certify that the contents of the Proposal are true and accurate.

4.2.11 Acceptance of Terms and Conditions

The Vendor shall specifically agree that the Proposal is predicated upon the acceptance of all terms and conditions
stated in this RFP. If the Vendor objects to.any term or condition, the Vendor must specifically refer to the page(s)
and section(s). Objections or responses that materially alter this RFP may be deemed non-responsive and
disqualify the Vendor.

4.2.12 Certification of independence and No Conflict of Interest ‘

The Vendor shall sign and submit with the Proposal the document included as Attachment #2 in which the Vendor
shall certify that it developed the Proposal independently. The Vendor shall also certify that no relationship exists
or will exist during the contract period between the Vendor and the Department that interferes with fair
competition or is a conflict of interest. The Department reserves the right to reject a Proposal or cancel the award
if, in its sole discretion, any relationship exists that could interfere with fair competition or conflict with the
interests of the Department. '

4.2.13 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered
Transactions

The Vendor shall sign and submit with the Proposal the document included as Attachment #3 in which the Vendor
shall certify that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal, department, or agency.

4.2.14 Authorization to Release Information

The Vendor shall sign and submit with the Proposal the document included as Attachment #4 in which the Vendor
authorizes the release of information to the Department.

4,2.15 Certification Regarding Sales and Use Tax

The Vendor shall sign and submit with the Proposal the document included as Attachment #5 regarding collection
of sales and use tax.
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4.2.16 Firm Proposal Terms

The Vendor shall guarantee in writing the availability of the services offered and that all Proposal terms, including
price, will remain firm a minimum of ninety {90) days following the deadline for submitting Proposals.

4.3 COST PROPOSAL
The Cost Proposal shall include all costs associated with performing the services described in the Scope of Work. The '
Cost Proposal shall be in the following format, and include the following information:

Focus area(s) and
outcomes(s) from the
Scope of Work

Meode of Professional
Development

Supperting Resources

Projected Cost

SxXX SxxX SXXX SXXX
Sxxx SXXX SXXX Sxxx
SXxX SxxX SXXX Sxxx
Sub-Total Sub-Total Sub-Total Total Projected Costs
for Support
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5.1 INTRODUCTION o
This section describes the evaluation process that will be used to determine which Propos'a! provides the greatest

benefit to the Bepartment. The Department will not necessarily award a contract to the Vendor offering the lowest cost

to the Department or to the Vendor with the highest point total. Rather, the Department will award the contract to the

compliant Vendor whose Proposal is judged to provide the greatest benefit to the State and that has the best

combination of attributes to perform the required services. The Department reserves the right to not award a contract.

5.2 EVALUATION COMMITTEE
The Department intends to conduct a comprehensive, fair, and impartial evaluation of Proposals received in response to

this RFP. The Department will use an Evaluation Committee to review, evaluate, and rank the Proposals.

5.3 EVALUATION CRITERIA

The Evaluation Committee will review and evaluate all Proposals and make an award using the following criteria

{Category: Maximum points}, which are listed in no particular order:

1. Demonstrated capacity to provide timely and quality deliverables: 20 points

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partially met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-19 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

The Proposal shows
fimited evidence of
timely and quality
deliverables.

The Proposal shows some
evidence of timely and
quality deliverables.

The Proposal shows
excellent ability to
provide timely and
quality deliverables.

The Proposal shows excellent
ability to provide timely and
quality deliverables. In
addition, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normaily
be expected.

2. Demonstrated appropriate proposed services to create the deliverables specific to supporting the TLC System
described in this RFP: 20 points '

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partially met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-19 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

Proposed services meet a
limited portion of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.1
specific to this RFP,

Proposed services meet
most, but not all, of the
Scope of Work as described
in Section 3.2.1 specific to
this RFP.

Proposed services meet
all desired areas of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.1
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet all
desired areas of the Scope of
Work as described in Section
3.2.1 specific to this RFP. In
addition, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normally
be expected.

3. Demonstrated approptiate proposed services to create the deliverables specific to building state and local capacity
to support administrators in TLC districts beyond the length of the grant: 20 points

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partiaily met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-19 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

Proposed services meet a
limited portion of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.2
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet
most, but not all, of the
Scope of Work as described
in Section 3.2.2 specific to
this RFP.

Proposed services meet
all desired areas of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.2
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet all
desired areas of the Scope of
Work as described in Section
3.2.2 specific to this RFP. In
additicn, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normally
be expected.
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4. Demonstrated appropriate proposed services to create the deliverables specific to creating shared opportunities for

teacher leaders and administrators to develop collaborative leadership: 20 points

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partially met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-19 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

Proposed services meet a
limited portion of the
Scope of Work as

" described in Section 3.2.2
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet
most, but not all, of the
Scope of Work as described
in Section 3.2.3 specific to
this RFP.

Proposed services meet
all desired areas of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.3
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet all
desired areas of the Scope of
Work as described in Section
3.2.3 specific to this RFP. In
addition, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normally
be expected.

5. Demonstrated appropriate proposed services to create the deliverables specific to the tailoring of opportunities for

administrator learning and growth to the local context: 20 points

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partially met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-19 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

Proposed services meet a
1 limited portion of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.4
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet
most, but not all, of the
Scope of Work as described
in Section 3.2.4 specific to
this RFP.

Proposed services meet
all desired areas of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.4
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet all
desired areas of the Scope of
Work as described in Section
3.2.4 specific to this RFP. In
addition, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normally
be expected.

6. Demonstrated appropriate proposed services to create the deliverables specific to monitoring the effectiveness and

impact of the administrator support system: 20 points

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partially met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-13 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

Proposed services meet a
limited portion of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.5
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet
most, but not all, of the
Scope of Work as described
in Section 3.2.5 specific to
this RFP.

Proposed services meet
all desired areas of the
Scope of Work as
described in Section 3.2.5
specific to this RFP.

Proposed services meet all
desired areas of the Scope of
Work as described in Section
3.2.5 specific to this RFP. In
addition, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normally
be expected.

7. Cost of Service: 20 points

This criterion is not met.
0-6 points

This criterion is partially met.
7-12 points

This criterion is met.
13-19 points

This criterion is exceeded.
20 points

The Proposal shows
limited services provided
for the cost.

The Proposal shows
satisfactory services provided
for the cost.

The Proposal shows
excellent services for the
cost,

The Proposal shows excellent
services for the cost. In
addition, the Proposal goes
beyond what would normally
be expected.

Total Possible Points: 140
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5.4 RECOMMENDATION OF THE EVALUATION COMMITTEE
The Evaluation Committee will rank the Proposals, and submit a recommendation based on the Proposals and
“evaluations. This recommendation may include, but is not limited to, the name of one or more Vendors recommended

for selection or a recommendation that no Vendor be selected.
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Attachment #1
Pate:

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
iowa Department of Education
'_ Grimes State Office Building

- 400 East 14" Street
~ Des Moines, |A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01
PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION

Dear Mr. Wise,
| certify that the contents of the Proposal submitted on behalf of (Vendor) in response to the lowa Department of
Education Request for Proposal Number ER-RW279-01 are true and accurate. 1 also certify that {Vendor} has not

made any knowingly false statements in its proposal.

Furthermore, | acknowledge my understanding of the following:

: Chap’ier 73.2 of the Code of lowa states that all requests for bids and proposals shall contain a paragraph reading as
- follows, “by virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given to products and provisions grown and coal produced
within the state of lowa.”

Sincerely,

Name:

Title:
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Aitachment #2
- Date:

Ryan Wise, issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
.Grimes State Office Building
400 East 147 Street

Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01
CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENCE AND NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Dear Mr. Wise,
By submitting a Proposal in response to the lowa Department of Education Request for Proposal (RFP} Number ED-
RW279-01 for the services described in this RFP, the undersigned certifies the following:

1. The Proposal has been developed independently, without consultation, communication or agreement with any
employee or consultant of the Department who has worked on the development of this RFP, or with any person
serving as a member of the Evaluation Committee.

2. The Proposal has been developed independently, without consultation, communication or agreement with any
other Vendor or parties for the purpose of restricting competition.

3. Unless otherwise required by law, the information found in the Proposal has not been knowingly disclosed and
will not be knowingly disclosed prior to the award of the contract, directly or indirectly, to any other Vendor.

4. No attempt has been made or will be made by (Vendor) to induce any other Vendor to submit or not to
submit a Proposal for the purpose of restricting competition.

5. No relationship exists or will exist during the contract period between (Vendor} and the Department that
interferes with fair competition or as a conflict of interest.

Sincerely,

Name:

Title:
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Attachment #3

Date:

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14™ Street

bDes Moines, 1A 50315-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND ELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

Dear Mr, Wise,

By submitting a Proposal in response to the lowa Department of Education Request for Proposal (RFP} Number ED-
RW279-01 for the services described in this RFP, the undersigned certifies the following:

1. | certify that, to the best of my knowledge, (Vendor) and all of its principles:

a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from covered transactions by a federal agency or agency;

b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Proposal been convicted of, or had a civil judgment
rendered against them from commission of fraud, or a criminal offense in connection with chtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public {federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public
transaction, violation of antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or

destruction of records, making faise statements, or receiving stolen property;

¢} are not presently indicted for or criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or local)
with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in (b} of this certification;

d) have not within a three-year period preceding this Proposal had one or more public transactions (federal,
state, or local) terminated for cause.

2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which the Department has relied when this transaction
was entered inta. If it is later determined that the undersigned knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in
addition to other remedies available, the Department may pursue available remedies including suspension,
debarment, or termination of the contract.

Sincerely,

Name:

Title:
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Attachment #4
Date:

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14™ Street

Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01
AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION

Dear Mr. Wise,

(Vendor) hereby authorizes the lowa Department of Education to obtain information regarding its performance
on other contracts, agreements or other business arrangements, its business reputation, and any other maiter pertinent
to evaluation and the selection of a successful Vendor in response to Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01.

The Vendor acknowledges that it may not agree with the information and opinions given by such person or entity in
response to a reference request. The Vendor acknowledges that the information and opinions given by such person or
entity may hurt its chances to receive contract awards from the Department or may otherwise hurt its reputation or
operations. The Vendor is willing to take that risk.

The Vendor hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges the State of lowa, the Department, their officers, directors,
employees and agents from any and all liability whatsoever, including all claims, demands and causes of action of every
nature and kind affecting the undersigned that it may have or ever claim to have relating to information, data, opinions,
and references obtained by the Department in the evaluation and selection of a successful Vendor in response to
Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01,

The Vendor authorizes representatives of the Department to contact any and all of the persons, entities, and references
which are, directly or indirectly, listed, submitted, or referenced in the undersigned's Proposal submitted in response to
Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01.

The Vendor further authorizes any and alf persons and entities to provide information, data, and opinions with regard to
the undersigned's performance under any contract, agfeement, or other business arrangement, the undersigned's
ability to perform, the undersigned’s business reputation, and any other matter pertinent to the evaluation of the
undersigned. The undersigned hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges any such person or entity and theijr
officers, directors, employees and agents from any and all liability whatsoever, including all claims, demands and causes
of action of every nature and kind affecting the undersigned that it may have or ever claim to have relating to

- information, data, opinions, and references supplied to the Department in the evaluation and selection of a successful
Vendor in response to Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01.

Sincerely,

Printed Name of Vendor Organization

Name of Authorized Reprasentative Title . Date
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Attachment #5
Date:

Ryan Wise, Issuing Officer
lowa Department of Education
Grimes State Office Building
400 East 14" Street

Des Moines, |A 50319-0146

Re: Request for Proposal Number ED-RW279-01
CERTIFICATION REGARDING REGISTRATION, COLLECTION, AND REMISSION OF STATE: SALES AND USE TAX

Dear Mr. Wise,

Pursuant to lowa Code sections 423.2(10) & 423.5(8) {2005 Code Sup.) - a retailer in fowa or a retailer maintaining a
business in lowa that enters into a contract with a state agency must register, collect, remit Jowa sales tax and lowa use
tax levied under lowa Code Chapter 423 on all sales of tangible personal property and enumerated services. The Act also
requires Vendors to certify their compliance with sales tax registration, collection, and remission requirements and
provides potential consequences if the certification is false or fraudulent.

By submitting a Proposal in response to the lowa Department of Education Request for Proposal {RFP} Number ED-
RW279-01 for the services described in this RFP, the undersigned certifies the following:

(] {Vendor) is registered with the lowa Department of Revenue, collects, and remits lowa sales and use
taxes as required by lowa Code Chapter 423.

{(Vendor} is not a "retailer” or a "retailer maintaining a place of business in this state" as those terms
are defined in lowa Code subsections 423.1(42) & (43)

void if the above certification is false

(] {Vendor) acknowledges that the Department may declare the {Vendor) bid or resulting contract
[] {Vendor) understands that fraudulent certification may result in the Department or its representative

filing for damages for breach of contract

Sincerely,

Name:

Title:
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Teacher Leadership Compensation Administrator Support
Questions and Answers from Vendors
November 19, 2014

Vendor Question

Answer

(1) What kind of oversight would the DE expect? s
the DE "monitoring the effectiveness” {3.2.5) of the
grant, or is that contracted out to someone else?
Would you want quarterly reports / reports to the
legistature / visits to or from DE committees?

This RFP asks that Proposals describe how the
organization will monitor and measure the success of
the administrator supporl system. The Department
does not have specific requirements for this at this
fime.

(2) Are the AEAs {(Area Education Agencies) involved in
this at all?

The AEAs are involved in the ongoing support to
ensure the effective implementation of the TLC

system, including both support for teachers and
administrators.

(3) What district-level administrators are you looking
to engage and support through this work, and what is
their relationship to the principals in the districts? Will
all the district administrators be of same/similar
position across participating districts?

This RFP calls for the development of a support system
that will provide principals with the skills they will
need to support teacher leaders and provide central
office administrators skills they will need to support
principals as the district develops and implements its
local TEC plan. Accordingly, the district-level
administrators that should be engaged and supported
should be those that work most closely in supporting
principals. In some school districts this may be the
superintendent while in others it may be other
administrative staff. The specific positions may vary
across districts but will have the common element of
supporting principals.

(4} Is there a target number of principals and/or
district staff that the department hopes to engage in
this work in the first year?

There are 39 school districts across lowa in the current

| academic year implementing a local TLC plan. The

Department has not set a target number of
administrators. We estimate that there are currently
more than 300 principals, plus additional assistant
principals and central office staff, who would be given
the opportunity to engage in this work during the first
year.

(5) will all principals and district staff in the 39 districts
‘1 that received funding to implement a TLC plan be
invited/required to participate in this program?

Alf administrators in the 39 school districts currently
implementing the plan will be invited to participate,
but they will not be required to participate.

' (6) What does the rollout of TLC across the state look
like, and how many schools are currently
-participating?

Bipartisan legislation created a four-year process to
fully develop the statewide Teacher Leadership and
Compensation System, with the goal of all school
districts voluntarily participating by the 2016-17
school year. The lowa General Assembly approved
$50 million for the first year of implementation. in
-each subsequent year through 2016-17, another $50




million will be added to the system for a total of $150
million per year, enabling all districts to participate in
the program if they choose.

The Department chose 39 school districts from around
the state to participate in the first year of
implementation (the 2014-15 school year).

The Department will announce on December 19, 2014
which district plans will be approved for the 2015-16
school year. In addition, the Department will also

approve additional plans for the 2016-17 school year.

{7) Approximately how many teacher leaders are in a
school?

The number of teacher leaders in a school can range
from one to dozens depending upon the size of the
school district. Each district must make a good faith
effort 1o place 25% of the district’s teachers in a
teacher leader role.

(8) Can you dlarify the Cost Proposal template (page
20 of the RFP) by giving an example of what that might
look like? {(We are unclear about the breakdown or
distinction between the first two columns).

The first column is for text to state the identified focus
area(s} in each row. The second column is also for text
to describe the maode of Professional Development for
the focus area(s). The third column is for text to
identify supporting resources (if applicable) for the
focus area(s). The fourth column is dollar amount for
the focus area(s).

{(9) Can you provide insight into the department’s
budget for the selected Vendor's work, or a dollar
range of what you expect to award for this work?

There is not a fixed amount set for this RFP. We have
included the programmatic parameters and are asking
organizations to write their Proposal based on those.

(10} Section 3.2.2 of the RFP describes the desired
outcome that the selected Vendor will build state and
local capacity to sustain the work beyond the term of
the engagement. Will the department or other
designated partners have staff who willbe
available/responsible for working alongside the
Vendor's team toward this end?

Designated partners may be available to build state
and local capacity.

{11) The Bid Number is ED-RW279-02. The associated
RFP document is ED-RW279-01. Please clarify. What
bid number do we place on cur submission?

Please use ED-RW279-01.

(12) If awarded the grant, would service begin in
January, 2015 or would it potentialty start in the Fall of
the next school year after the announcement of the
next TLC grant winners? '

The service woulkd begin in January 2015 or as soon as
possible following the finalization of the contract.

{13) Is there anything that excludes a university from
applying for the grant? Allowing for optional graduate
credits for program completion?

There are no provisions that would exclude
universities from applying for the grant or for allowing
optional graduate credits for participation or
completion.




{14) Is this a one year RFP? If yes, is there a possibility
that the contract can be extended beyond one year? If
yes, for how many years?

As stated in the RFP, the fuading is for the current
fiscal year, which will end on June 30, 2015 and
continued funding to support administrators in
districts implementing TLC local plans in subsequent
fiscal years is dependent upon additional action by the
State legislature.

(15} What is the projected start date for this RFP?

Please see the response to Question 12 above.

(16} What are the projected number of central
*{ administrators and school-based leaders that the
vendor will be asked to train?

Please see the response to Question 4 above.

{17) Can a portion of the training be offered via
webinars or on-ine modules?

Yes

{18) For in-person training, does the lowa Department
of Education envision a centralized approach for the
training {one location}, a regional approach or both?

The 39 school districts currently implementing a local
TLC plan are spread out across lowa. Accordingly, the
preference would be for regional trainings.

(19) Is there a set appropriation for this RFP?

Please see the response to Question 9 above.

(20} At project kick-off, what is the expected
distribution of districts in Phase 1 vs. Phase 2 of the
"Entry Points" model {and who are they)? Are there
districts that have planned Phase |, but not yet begun
implementation, and if so, what percent does this
represent?

39 school districts were awarded the grant for the
2014-2015 school year. Currently, most of these
school districts are engaging in Phase 2 activities;
however, many school districts would benefit from
Phase 1 support.

All 39 school districts have begun implementation.
Year 2 of the grant will identify approximately 100
additional school districts that will be beginning Phase
1 work in Spring, 2015 with implementation of TLC
program for school year 2015-16.

(21.)‘ Could the state choose to award this RFP to
muitiple vendors? And if so, will districts choose
among the winning options?

The state could choose multiple vendors. District
participation in the administrative support of TLC
program is not mandated by the state. The districts
will choose whether or not they participate in any of
the trainings offered through the TLC support system.

(22) will the winners of this Proposal be expected to
advise on the creation of a TLC plan or only to assist in
the implementation of an existing plan? For instance,
will the proposer be expected to provide consultation
or resources on the HR activities associated with
changes in teacher hiring and compensation practices?

The winners of the Proposal will not be expected to
advise on the creation of the TLC plan. The winning
providers will assist in the implementation of the plan
through the content identified in The Framework for
Learning Supports for Administrators in the TLC
system.

{23) In the introduction, the $50 million funding for
the TLC System is referenced along with additional
funding to support administrators. What funding
amount is allocated for the effort to support
administrators under this RFP?

Please see the response to Question 9 above.




(24} Can you please clarify, by section, when does the
word “administrator” refer to principals, district level
administration staff, or both? (Sections 3.2.1-3.2.5)

The term administrator refers to building level
principals as well as district level administration staff.

Please also see the response to Question 3 above.

{25) Does “the beginning administrator mentoring
and induction program” refer 1o a specific, existing
program, or to the various programs that may or may
hot be in place at various districts? (Section 3.2.2)

This is a specific program for beginning administrators.
Most of the beginning administrators receive their
support through School Administrators of lowa. The
TLC support system would align with this work

1 {(26) In Section 4.2.3 Bullet 2: Please clarify the subject |-

of the vision and mission statement for the program.
Is this for (a} the Vendor's organization, (b) the
individual programs we will utilize to meet the
outlined scope or (c) the comprehensive set of
programs and support to be provided, taken as a
whaole? '

The subject of the vision and mission statement for
the program should be the Vendor's vision and
mission for the specific program (s) utilized to meet
the outlined scope of work.

{27} In Section 4.2.3 Bullet 4: How does this
demonstration of knowledge differ from the content
to supplied In Section 4.2.6 “Experience”. Isita
summary of experience?

The demenstration of knowledge should provide
examples of Vendor knowledge of this specific content
while section 4.2.6 would be a list of experiences in
which the Vendor has provided services similar to
those requested in this RFP.

(28) What information needs to be included in the
financial references?

This would include a copy of the Vendor's year end
budget reports/financial statements (i.e. the types of
reports the Vendor would provide to stakeholders).

{29} How many districts and schools should be
budgeted for in the Cost Proposal? How many school
administrators should he budgeted for in the Cost
Proposal?

Please see the response to Question 4 above.

{30} In the form provided, the first column appears to
be where each focus areas should be listed, with costs
{ to appear to the right, but each row in the first column
seems to ask for a doliar amount instead. Can you
please clarify if this is column is to contain text instead
of dollar amounts, and if not, please advise what is to
be budgeted for in this column? (Section 4.3)

Please see the response to Question 8 above. .

{31) On page 18 of the RFP, a minimum of three
financial references are required. Do these have to he
letters of references or can the Vendor provide
contact information or documentation with regard to
financial references?

Contact information or documentation with regard to
financial references would be sufficient.

(32) I have received the notice about a change in the
Teacher Leadership Compensation Administrator
Support RFP; however, after tooking carefully through
the new RFP twice | am unable to identify the change.
Couid you assist in clarifying this by highlighting the

Other than this questions and responses document,
there have been no changes to this RFP




area(s) of change in the new RFP on the web site?

{33} Is it possible for an applicant to propose a specific
partnership as part of the Proposal, and if so, what is
the process for identifying and contacting the
Department’s “designated partners” in advance of
finalizing and submitting a Proposal? Or should a
Proposal just specify that part of the work will be
identification of a local partner to collaborate with?

Yes, it is possible to for an applicant to propose a
specific partnership as part of the Proposal. The
applicant could identify the potential partners and
processes it would initiate if selected as the vendor for
this RFP.

(34) In the response to the questions, the Department
of Education indicated that the next cohort of districts
participating in the TLC system will be announced on
December 19th and it is estimated that this will be 100
additional districts. Should the Vendor include the
administrators from these additional 100 districts into
their projection for training?

Vendors should consider the potential of adding
administrators from these districts in the

training. However, because these districts will not
begin implementation until July 2015 and will not yet
receive state funding, it is likely that the participation
rate from these districts will be lower than the 39

| districts currently participating in the TLC system.




Contract/MEA/Grant Number: 029715

~ lowa Department of Education
Amendment # 1

_ Contracting Agencyllndividua!: NYC Leadership Academy Inc

Current Operational Period:  Start Date: Jenu'ary 5,2015 End Date: Dacember 30, 2015

Current Budgeted

Arount: S 260,000.00

Reason for Amendment {check all that apply): Work Scope . Budget Amount End Date

Detalled description of any new activities being added to work scope: (attach additional pages if needed)

See attached Work Mod|f|catlon with new deliverables and additional funding request. New York City Leadership
Academy will provide program udates for the Leadership Coaching delivery twice du‘ring'the 2015-2016 program year.

New End Date-requested' June 30, 2016 . New Budget'Amou‘nt requested: $ 943,000.00

lustification for amendment request: {indicate any changes in funding source(s) attach new budget if needed attach
additional pages if needed)

Scope of Work Modification is attached.

COMPENSATION:
Qriginal Contract Amount: - -5$260,000.00
Amendment Amount: $ 683,000.00 7
Revised Contract TOTAL: © $943,000.00
~ Forinternal Purposes Only: . .
FUND DEPT . UNIT S/ORG . 0B PROG AMOUNT
0001 282 w020 S 2469 . $943,000.00
- 282 : ‘ s
282 : , - s

Total | % 943,000.00

Authorization for Amendment Request {Signature indicates agreement to carry out terms of agreerent as amended)'
: TITLE DATE .
,/ff/m. [ , 3 3 9 r¢
DE INISTRATIO 7 : : i DATE
; }é‘/ P %ﬁ ) . (? Pl /}Z {ZZ/ /
b AN B e . j’ - /L

CONTRACI'IN -RCY OR | 1DUAL : TITLE /
£, el ] " Chief, Internal Administrative Services 5" 5

DE AUTHOREINGSI@EAT | R THT . bame

"DE CONTACT

g

- Form 19: Amendment {7/14)



Contract/MEA/Grant Number: 029715

lowa Department of Education
Amendment # 1

Contracting Agency/Individual:  NYC Leadership Academy inc

Current Operational Period: Start Date: January 5, 2015 . End Date: December 30, 2015
Current Pudgeted $ 260,000.00

Amount: _

Reason for Amendment {check ali that apply):  [X] WorkScope [X] Budget Amount End Date

Detailed description of any new activities being added to work scope: (attach additional pages if needed)

See attached Work Modification with new deliverables and additional funding request. New York City Leadership
Academy will provide program udates for the Leadership Coaching delivery twice during the 2015-2016 program year.

New End Date requested: June 30, 2016 New Budget Amount requested:  $ 943,000.00

Justification for amendment request: (mdmate any changes in funding source(s), attach new budget if needed, attach
additional pages if needed)

Scope of Work Modification is attached.

COMPENSATION:
Original Contract Amount: -$ 260,000.00
Amendment Amount: : $ 683,000.00
Revised Contract TOTAL: $ 943,000.00
For Internal Purposes Only: o
FUND - DEPT UNIT S/ORG - OBJ PROG AMOUNT
0001 282 w020 - | R 2469 $ 943,000.00
282 ' ' ’ S
282 ' $

Total | $ 943,000.00

Authorization for Amendment Request (Signature indicates agreement to carry out terms of agreement as amended}:

DE CONTACT . b HITLE ) .,_ ) DATE .
DE AQM/INISTRATION TIT ! b DATE
CONTRACTING AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL TITLE DATE

Chief, Internal Administrative Services

DE AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE _ THTLE _ DATE

Form 19: Amendment (7/14)



LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

Proposed Scope of Work Modification/Contract Addendum
lowa Department of Education — TLC Administrator Support Program

February 26, 2015

I order to better support the lowa Department of Education {DE) and its partners in the deségh and
implementation of a TLC Administrator Support Program, NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) proposes the

following changes to our originally submitted 2nd accepted technical and cost proposals:

P.hase il Program Design _ _ _

in addut:on to the work previously outlined for this phase of work, NYCLA will lead the selaction process for up

{o nine !owa hased coaches who will help deliver the statew:de implementation of the TLC Administrator _ ‘
Support Program during the 2015-16 summer/school year. This will include working with DE staff to screen _
coach applications, schedule region.ai'interviews,. lead up to six regional, Eﬁ~p’erson interview sessions that will I

also include representatives from DE and from the AEAs, and lead the selection decision process. . B

Phase lil; Curriculum Design

Based on the initial program des‘sg'n discussions with DF and its TLC implementation partners, it has been

agreed that the Summer Institute component of the TLC Administrator Support program will be three days

{instead of the originally proposed five} and will involve district leadership teams for Day Cne, with school
leaders participating all three days. While this is a reduction in number of curriculum days, it will require
additional design time for the NYCLA team, particularly around Day One; net design time will be approximately

the same.

In addition, NYCLA recommends replacing the originally proposed in-person curricuium design time with

facilitators with up to two, half-day, remote sessions with the core DE/TLC team to \;'et curricuium and get

feedback. This will streamiine the curriculum design work and free up fime and funds that we can shift to
conduct an aéditionai training for all facilitators and coaches in June, to hetter prepare them for the

July/August delivery in their regions (see Phase 1V).

Phase IV: Training for Facilitators and Coaches
Based on the decision with DE and the core TLC team that new coaches will be hired/selected to do this work
{versus working with a cadre of coaching already working in lowa schools, which was an assumption embedded

in NYCLA's original proposal), NYCLA recommends that we not conduct either the FCB Il training or the NYC-
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based shadowmg and training for lowa coaches The vaiue of hoth of these training activities is pred;cated ona
coach actuai!y being able to draw on current coaching experience, se the originally proposed timing of these no

longer make sense.

Instead, NYCLA proposes designing and delivering a two-day training in lowa in June for all factlitators and
coaches who will ke implementing the TLC Administrator Support Program starting in summer 2015. The focus
of this training will be preparing the facilitator/coach t_eéms for delivery of the three-day Summer Institutes in
their respective regions/districts, as well as setting the stage fos". how the facilitators and coaches wilt |

collaborate during the school year.

 Phase V - Coach_ing Delivery _

As. part of helping DE faunch thé TLC Adminisﬁ:rator Support Program at a statewide level, NYCLA proposes
waorking with DE and its partners to identify and hire_u_p f0 nine lowa-hased leadership coach consultants, who
will provide Ieadership_ coaching support to a total of up to 108 schools across the state during the initial year

of program implementation.

The leadership coach consultants hired by NYCLA will participate in the ?CB | training and June Summer
Institute prepafat%on training alérzg with the other coaches identified by districis to parti.cipate in the delivery
of this program. In addition, NYCLA will provide ongoing techrnical assistance to these nine céaches. MNYCLA will
also provide DE with a 1.5-day FCB |l training for up to 30 lowa-based coaches, in which the NYCLA consultants

can participate, during fall 2015 {dates to be mutually determined by DE and NYCLA).

As overafl program implementation manager, the DE-based TLC Administrator Support Program coordinator
will work with the NYCLA leadership coach consultants to solve program logistical challenges, such as school
scheduling issues, and will assist in the validation of reports submitted by the leadership coach consultants

detailing their program time and related expenses that will be required to accompany their invoices to NYCLA.
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Proposed Budget Adjustments
Phase Criginal Deliverable{s} New Deliverable(s) Cost Adjustment
Phase Il - Program ' 2.5 (new) Upto 3 daysin | +$19,500
Design lowa in March/April 2015
to lead coach interviews
and selection process

Phase !l — Curricuium 3.1 - Design of 5-day 3.1 {revised) — Design of - 25,500
Design Summer Institute for 3-day Summer Institute '

principals and teacher - | for principals plus key

leadership teams centrat office staff {1 day}

3.4 Two-day curriculum | 3.4 (revised) Two half-day

design meeting with remote sessions with core

iocal fa(:i_iitators to adapt | DE team in April/May

sections of 2015 to vet and get input

curriculum, to be held in | on'curriculum '

lowa in March/April ‘

2015
Phase IV~ Training Local | 4.3 Two days of 4.3 {revised) Two-day +5$3,000

Facilitators and Coaches

shadowing experienced
NYCLA coaches in New
York City for 5 lowa
fead coaches.

4.4 One 1.5-day session
{FCB 11} facilitated by
NYCLA for up to 30
participants, to be

held in June 2015 in
lowa.

training in june 2015 in
lowa for all coaches and
facilitators who have
been selected to
implement this program
starting July/August 2015
io prepare them {o
defiver Summer Institute.

4.4 [deleted)
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V. {new} Leadershin
Coaching Delivery for
2015-16 Program Year

N/A

5.1 (new) Provision {Jf
leadership coaching for
up to 108 school leaders
and teams during first
vear of TLC Administrator
Support Program
implementation™®*

5.2 {new) Technical
support for [eadership

coaches —includes in-field

chservations/ feedback
sessions per NYCLA-
provided coach, monthly
check-ins, routine group
webinars, and
administrative fee
{5250/ coach)

5.3 FCB 2 Training — One
1.5-day session {FC8B {1}
facilitated by NYCLA for
up to 30 leadership
coaches, to be

held in fall 2015 in lowa

+ 5686,000**

** proposed coaching costs include the following agreed-upon assumgptions:

- Leadership coach consultants will be paid $50/hour for in-person/remote coaching time, related

preparation and administrative time, and prograrm training and delivery time. Estimates are based on

program defivery assumption of one day of coaching per month per schoo! leader, with each of nine

leadership coaching serving up to 12 school leaders sach.

- {Coaches will be compensated at a raté of £25/hour for travel time and reimbursed 39 cents per mile

for mileage for travel related to coachmg delivery; they will also be reimbursed up to $8 for !unch

expenses on days they are traveling for this program.
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LAgreement # 052416

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

STATE OF IOWA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION {DE), Division of Policy and Cormunications gi% g@ E Evg
Grimes State Office Building, 40C East 14 Street, Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146 - < e

Department Contact Person: Lora Rasey/Sendra Hockett  Phone: {515} 281-6719

N & 8 72018
AND
CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy Inc DEPARTMENT D&
PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES: Sarah Stevens EDUCATION
ADDRESS: 45-18 Court Square, 3 Floor CITY, STATE, ZIP: Long Island City, NY 11101
PHONE: 646-666-8171 EMAIL: sstevens@nycleadershipacademy.org
BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Bernadette Pizzurro BUSINESS CONTACT EMAIL: bpizzurro@nycleadershipacademy.org

THE DEPARTMENT WILL COMPENSATE FOR THE FOLLOWING SERVICES RENDERED BY THE CONTRACTING PARTY:

{DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES): Provide cngoing support of the statewide TLC Administrator Support Program through the provision
of coaching for school principals and ieadership teams participating in Year 2 of the program. See Aftached

THE DEPARTMENT WILL MONITOR AND REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTING PARTY USING THE FOLLOWING
MEASURES; (PERFORMANCE MEASURES): All services will be delivered in a timely manner, following program outcomes as
provided 10 NYCLA. See Aitached.

CONTRACT PERIOD; Service Begins: June 1, 2016 Service Ends: June 30, 2017

COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.
$952,000.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized below under the “Associated Costs” section.
50.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of ~{Number) (Units) at $ per (Unit}.
$952,000.00 CONTRACT IS NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN OMN THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Only the Hems designated are covered; required documentation is indicated under the "Other
Conditions/ Requirements” section. A budget shall be submitted. (Fstimated costs shown)

$0.00 TRAVEL: FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach § Auto § '($0.39/mile) Taxi & Parking
Cther S (ITEMIZE}

NOTE: ALL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL (from lowa 10 another state) MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.

50.00 MEALS; Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates:

' Breakfast: @S ea  Lunch: @S ea Dinner @ s ea

**Vendor must leave home before 6:00am to claim breakfast; ond must return home after 7:00pm to claim dinner.
Reimbursement shall be per state established guidelines unless otherwise noted obove: Breakfast 58/Lunch 512
{unless provided)/Dirner $23. Alcohol [s nat g reimbursable expense.

$0.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed § per night, plus tax of 5

$952,000.00  OTHER: {ITEMIZE) See Attached

CLAIMI/PAYMENT PROVISHONS:
1) UPON ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES (AS STATED)} BY THE DE; AND
2V ITEMIZER INVOICE FOR ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED.
3) ALLCLAIMS MUST BE SUBMITFED WITHIN THIRTY (30} DAYS OF PERFORMING SERVICES,

Payment requests should be submitted to the attention of: Sandra Hockett, Internal Administrative Services, lowa
Department of Education, Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14 Street, Des Maines, IA 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY*

FUND DEPT UNIT 5/0RG OB PROG AMOUNT VENDOR NUMBER
0001 282 WOZ0 2469 $952,000.00 00003078678
282 _ $0.00 VENDOR DUNS NUMBER
| 282 $0.00
282 $0.00 CFDA NUMBER
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $952,000.00
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OTHER CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS: Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements listed befow shall apply:

Reimbursement shall be limited {o the State of iowa reimbursement rates,

Mileage Reimbursement: $0.38 per mile,

Lodging and Meal Reimbursement ratas: as designated under “Associated Costs” sectian.

Receipts: Must be submitted with a signed claim when the contract is with an individual. Legible itemized receipts are
required for Travel, Lodging {must show a S0 balance), and other reimbursable expenses, excludmg meals, Credit
card receipts are not acceptable. :

The following expenses are specifically referenced:

TRAVEL: Air coach, taxi fares, related parking fees and car rental, _

MEALS: Detailed itemized expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted.

LODGEING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the designated meeting site. Lodging must
be outside the contracting party’s domicile.

OTHER: Registration fees and other items (as designated under “Associated Costs” section} requzre receipts
_unless specified otherwise,

The DF reserves the right to request receiots as necessary to: {1} validate any expense claim and (2) adjhst reimbursable rates
and policies for in-state and cut-otf-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accounting Policy and/or lowa
Code. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unilaterally to vendors.

ITEMIZED 1NVOICE Contracting Party must submit an eriginal, detailed invoice with origlnal s:gnature{ s).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS {iP): All Intellectual Property Rights to materials, documents, and data ar any other tanglble/
intangible designed and/or developed under direct funding from this project shall be the sole property of the DE.

GOVERNING LAWS: This contract shall be gaverned by the laws of the State of Iowa

MONITORING: Progress and performance will be momtored and reviewed by the DEon a schedule determmed by the DEin
collaboration with the Contracting Party.

TERNMINATION: This contract may be terminated by elther party upon ten {10} days' written notice.

NONTRANSFERENCE: Unless otherwise stipulated in this contract the Contracting Party shal! not transfer any interest in this
contract without prior written approval from the iowa Department of Education,

AMENDMENTS: Requests for an approval of amendments to this agreement must be mutuaity acceptable and in wrltlng

INDEMNIFICATION: The Contractlng Party agrees jointly and severally to mciemmfy and haold the State, its successors and
assigns harmless from and against ail liability, loss, damage, or expense, including reasonable counsel fees, which the State shall

incur by reason of the failure of the contracting party to perform fully and comply with the terms and obllgatlons of this
agreernent. .

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: This contract is subject to the antncnpated avaltab:hty of Federal and/or State fu nds under the program
from which it is supported.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW; NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT: The Contrac’nng Party, its employees, agents, and
subcontractors shalf not engage in discriminatory employment practices which are forbidden by federal or state law, executive
orders, and rules of the lowa Department of Administrative Services., The Contracting Party, its employees, agents , and
subcontractors shall comply with all appticable federal, state, and local laws, rules, ordinances, regulations, orders when
performing under this contract, including without fimitation, all laws applicable to the prevestion of discrimination in
employrnent (e.g., lowa Code Chapter 216 and Section 19B.7) and the use of targeted small businesses as subcontractors and
suppliers. Upon the State’s written reguest, the Contracting Party shall submit to the State a copy of its affirmative action plan,

containing goals and tirne specifications, and accessibility plans and policies as required under lowa Administrative Code Chapter
11--121,

The Contracting Party, its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall also camply with all federal, state, and iocal laws,
including any permitting and licensure requiraments, in carrying out the work performed under this contract.

In the event Contracting Party contracts with third parties for the performance of any of the Contracting Party obligations under

this contract, Contracting Party shall take such steps as necessary to ensure such third parties are bound by the terms and
conditions contained in this Secticn,

Notwithstanding anything in this contract to the contrary, Contracting Party’s failure to fulfill any requirament set forth in this -
Section shall be regarded as a material breach of this contract and the State may cancel, terminate, or suspend, in whole or in
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part, this contract. The State may further declare Contracting Party ineligible for future State contracts in accordance with
authorized procedures or the Contracting Party may be suhject to other sanctions as provided by law or rule.

If all or a portion of the funding used to pay for the deliverables is being provide through a grant from the Federal Government,
Cantracting Party acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to applicable federal laws, regulations, circulars, and bulletins, the
awarding agency of the Federal Government receives certain rights including, without limitation, a royaity-free, non-exclusive,
and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government
purposes, the deliverables developed under this contract and the copyright in and to such deliverables. .

ASSURANCE: THE CONTRACTING PARTY, BY SIGNATURE AFFIXED BELOW, ASSURES THE DEPARTMENT THAT SAID CONTRACTING
PARTY IS OPERATING IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL STATUTES, RULES AND REGULATIONS, i
INCLUDING CERTIFICATION THE CONTRACTING PARTY AND/OR TS PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS ARE NOT SUSPENDED OR DISBARRED.

REPRESENTATIONS: VERBAL OR WRITTEN, THAT MAY HAVE BEEN MADE PRICR TC THE SIGNING CF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE
NOT EXPRESSLY STATED IN THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, ARE NONBINDING, VOID AND OF NO EFFECT. NEITHER PARTY HAS
RELIED ON SUCH PRIOR REPRESENTATIONS WHEN ENTERING INTO THIS CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT.

O%g;?f‘ Q OO 4

PEC TACT(Requestm g\r\llce)

iy
DE AW INISTRATION.

Y - EC /. .
: . |
-_CONTRAC AGHLY OR INBIVIDUAL -~ TITLE . _ ~_DATE, > / )
/g d © 0 Chief, lnternaIAdmmlstratNe Services - C:”i / ¢ /:6

DE AUTH WW | o TIES : ' DATE "

CONTR KCTING PARTY: PLEASE SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN AN ORIGINAL COPY TO THE DEPARTIVIENT,: THIS CONTRACT WILL
BE VALID WHEN YOU RECEIVE A COPY WITH THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION'S AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE. -

LAgreement #052416 ?
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Agreement # 052416

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

STATE OF IOWA, IOWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DE), Division of Palicy and Communications
Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14" Street, Des Maines, 1A 50319-0146
Department Contact Person: Lora Rasey/Sandra Hockett  Phone: (515} 281-6719

JUNCG 8 208
AND “
CONTRACTING PARTY - AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL: NYC Leadership Academy tnc UEPARTMENT OF
PERSON TO PERFORM SERVICES: Sarah Stevens EDUCGATION
ADDRESS: 45-18 Court Square, 3™ Floor CITY, STATE, ZIP: Long Island City, NY 11101
PHONE: 646-666-8171 EMAIL: sstevens@nycleadershipacademy.org
BUSINESS CONTACT PERSON: Bernadette Pizzurro BUSINESS CONTACT EMAIL: bpizzurro@nycleadershipacademy.org

THE DEPARTMENT WILL COMPENSATE FOR THE FOLLOWING SERVICES RENDERED BY THE CONTRACTING PARTY:
(DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES): Provide ongoing support of the statewide TLC Administrator Support Program through the provision
of coaching for school principals and leadership teams participating in Year 2 of the program. See Attached

THE DEPARTMENT WiLL MONITOR AND REVIEW THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTING PARTY USING THE FOLLOWING

MEASURES: (PERFORMANCE MEASURES): All services will be delivered in a timely manner, following program cutcomes as
provided to NYCLA. See Attached.

CONTRACT PERIOD: Service Begins: lune 1, 2016 Service Ends: fune 30, 2017
COMPENSATION: As indicated and in accordance with the stated terms below.
$952,000.00 Contract is for actual costs estimated as itemized below under the “Associated Costs” section.
50.00 Contract is for a specified fee for a max of (Number) (Units) at $ per {Unit).

$952,000.00 CONTRACT IS NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS LINE

ASSOCIATED COSTS: Only the items designated are covered; required documentation is indicated under the “Other
Conditions/ Requirements” section. A budget shall be submitted. {Estimated costs shown)

S0.00 TRAVEL: FROM TO AND RETURN via means and for the amounts shown:
Air Coach $ Auto S (50.35/mile) Taxi $ Parking §
Other 5 {ITEMIZE)

NOTE: ALL OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL {from lowa to another state) MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT
PRIOR TO ANY TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS BEING MADE OR TRAVEL OCCURRING.
$0.00 MEALS: Actual and necessary; not to exceed the following amounts and rates:
Breakfast: @5 ea Lunch: @S ea Dinner: @5 ea
**Vendor must feave home before 6:00am to claim breakfast; and must return home after 7:00pm to claim dinner.

Reimbursement shall be per state established guidelines unless otherwise noted above: Breakfast 58/Lunch $12
{unless provided)/Dinner $23. Alcohol is not a reimbursable expense.

50.00 LODGING: Number of nights , not to exceed S per night, plus tax of S
$952,000.00 OTHER: (ITEMIZE) See Attached

CLAIM/PAYMENT PROVISIONS:
1) UPON ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES (AS STATED) BY THE DE; AND
2} ITEMIZED INVOICE FOR ACTUAL EXPENSES INCURRED.
3) ALL CLAIMS MUST BE SUBMITTED WITHIN THIRTY {30} DAYS OF PERFORMING SERVICES.

Payment requests should be submitted to the attention of: Sandra Hockett, Internal Administrative Services, lowa
Department of Education, Grimes State Office Building, 400 East 14™ Street, Des Moines, 1A 50319-0146

*FOR DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY*

FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OB! PROG AMOUNT VENDOR NUMBER
0001 282 W020 2469 5952,000.00 00003078678
282 $0.00 VENDOR DUNS NUMBER
282 £0.00
282 $0.00 CFDA NUMBER
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $952,000.00
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OTHER CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS: Unless otherwise stipulated, the rates and requirements listed below shali apply:
Reimbursement shall be limited to the State of lowa reimbursement rates.
Mileage Reimbursement: $0.39 per mile.
Lodging and Meal Reimbursement rates: as designated under “Associated Costs” section.
Receipts: Must be submitted with a signed claim when the contract is with an individual. Legible itemized receipts are
required for Travel, Lodging {must show a $0 balance), and other reimbursable expenses, excluding meals. Credit
card receipts are not acceptable. :

The following expenses are specifically referenced:
TRAVEL: Air coach, taxi fares, related parking fees and car rental.
MEALS: Detailed itemized expense log listing each meal with dates, times, and amounts noted.
LODGING: Reimbursement approved only for those residing outside the designated meeting site. Lodging must
be outside the contracting party’s domicile. :
OTHER: Registration fees and other items (as designated under “Associated Costs” sectmn) requrre recerpts
unless specified otherwise.

The DE reserves the right to request receipts as necessary to: (1) validate any expense claim and (2) adjust reimbursable rates
and policies for in-state and out-of-state travel in order to remain in compliance with DAS State Accounting Policy and/or lowa
Code. Proper notice of changes, if applicable, will be issued unilaterally to vendors.

ITEMIZED INVOICE: Contracting Party must submit an original, detailed invoice with original signature(s).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS (IP): All Intellectual Property Rights to materials, documents and data or any other tanglble/
" intangible designed and/or developed under direct funding from this project shall be the sole property of the DE.

~ GOVERNING LAWS: This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of lowa

MONITORING: Progress and performance will be monitored and re\newed by the DE ona schedule determmed by the DEin
collaboration with the Contracting Party,

TERMINATION: This contract may be terminated by either party upon ten {10} days written notice.

NONTRANSFERENCE: Unless otherwise stipulated in this contract, the Contracting Party shall not transfer any interest in this
contract without prror written approval from the lowa Department of Education.

AMENDMENTS: Requests for an approval of amendments to this agreement must be mutually acceptable and in writing.

ENDEMNIFICAT[ON. The Contracting Party agrees jointly and severally to indemnify and hold the State, its successors and
assigns harmless from and against all liability, loss, damage, or expense, including reasonable counse! fees, which the State shall

incur by reason of the failure of the contracting party to perform fully and comply with the terms and obllgatrons of this
agreement. : '

" AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: ThIS contract is subject to the antlcrpated availability of Federal and/or State funds under the program
- from which it is supported. :

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW; NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT: The Contracting Party, its employees, agents, and
subcontractors shall not engage in discriminatory employment practices which are forbidden by federal or state law, executive
orders, and rules of the lowa Department of Administrative Services. The Contracting Party, its employees, agents , and
subcontractors shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, ordinances, regulations, orders when
performing under this contract, including without limitation, all laws applicable to the prevention of discrimination in
employment {e.g., lowa Code Chapter 216 and Section 19B.7) and the use of targeted small businesses as subcontractors and
suppliers. Upon the State’s written request, the Contracting Party shall submit to the State a copy of its affirmative action plan, -

containing goals and time specifications, and accessibility plans and policies as required under fowa Administrative Code Chapter
11—121. : ' '

The Contracting Party, its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall also comply with all federal, state, and local laws,
including any permitting and licensure requirements, in carrying out the work performed under this contract.

In the event Contracting Party contracts with third parties for the performance of any of the Contracting Party obligations under
this contract, Contracting Party shall take such steps as necessary to ensure such third parties are bound by the terms and
conditions contained in this Section.

Notwithstanding anything in this contract to the contrary, Contracting Party’s failure to fulfill any requirement set forth in this
Section shall be regarded as a material breach of this contract and the State may cancel, terminate, or suspend, in whole or in
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part, this contract. The State may further declare Contracting Party ineligible for future State contracts in accordance with
authorized procedures or the Contracting Party may be subject to other sanctions as provided by law or rule.

If all or 2 portion of the funding used to pay for the deliverables is being provide through a grant from the Federal Government,
Contracting Party acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to applicable federal laws, regulations, circulars, and bulletins, the
awarding agency of the Federal Government receives certain rights including, without limitation, a royalty-free, non-exclusive,
and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government
purposes, the deliverables developed under this contract and the copyright in and to such deliverables. -

ASSURANCE: THE CONTRACTING PARTY, BY SIGNATURE AFFIXED BELOW, ASSURES THE DEPARTMENT THAT SAID CONTRACTING
PARTY IS OPERATING IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL STATUTES, RULES AND REGULATIONS,
INCLUDING CERTIFICATION THE CONTRACTING PARTY AND/ORITS PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS ARE NOT SUSPENDED OR DISBARRED.

REPRESENTATIONS: VERBAL OR WRITTEN, THAT MAY HAVE BEEN MADE PRIOR TO THE SIGNING OF THIS CONTRACT AND ARE
NOT EXPRESSLY STATED IN THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, ARE NONBINDING, VOID AND OF NO EFFECT. NEITHER PARTY HAS
RELIED ON SUCH PRIOR REPRESENTATIONS WHEN ENTERING INTO THIS CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT.

e Koo

DE CQ TACT(Requestm er\ilce

/f’/ﬂ——v/}

DE Agfﬁ INISTRATION

CONTRACTING AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL S TITLE _ . DATE

Chi’ef, Internal Administrative Services -

DE AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE : ' CTITLE N DATE

CONTRACTING PARTY: PLEASE SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN AN ORIGINAL COPY TO THE DEPARTMENT. THIS CONTRACT WILL
BE VALID WHEN YOU RECEIVE A COPY WITH THE IQWA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION'S AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE. .

Agreement # 052416
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Proposal: Coaching for lowa’s Slatewide Delivery of the
TLC Adminisirator Program

The NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) is pleased to submit this proposal to the lowa
Department of Education for ongoing support of the statewide TLC Administrator Support Program
through the provision of coaching for school principals and leadership teams participating in Year 2 of

the program.

Deliverables - June 2014 through lune 2017
1.0 Schbol Leadership Coaching
As in Year 1 of the program, NYCLA will hire lowa-based school leadership coach consuitants
who will serve the schools selected by IDE for Year 2 implementation. For the 2016-17 school year
NYCLA will field a cadre of coaching consultants who will provide leadership coaching support for up to
136 school leaders and their teams.
NYCLA will contract with the school feadership coach consultants and compensate them for time
and travel-related expenses at rates previously agreed to with IDE. As part of administering this support, !
NYCLA will collect and maintain records of all coaching-related expenses. |
Coaches will provide an average of 50 hours of coaching Support over the school year, with
approximately two in-school visits per principals per month. Coaches will also participate in the
facilitated professional learning sessions and other selected program meetings to ensure program

coherence.

2.0 Oversight and Support of the Leadership Coaching Program

As in Year 1 of the program, NYCLA will train and support the leadership coaching consultants.
This support will include: remote monthly check-in phone calls; 3-4 half-day sessions in lowa; 2-3 group
webinars for technical support; and in-person field observations and feedback for each coach to help

ensure program quality and consistency of delivery across the state.

NYC Leadership Academy // Proposal fo lowa Department of Educafion
May 4, 2014 Page | 1
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NYCLA will also facilitate a 1.5-day training (our Facilitative, Competency-Based Coach Training,

part 2) for the NYCLA-led coaching consultants and other coaches supporting the district delivery model

(up to 30 participants total as a maximum) in lowa in fall of 2016.

1.0 School Leadership Coaching for up to 136 school teaders

Leadership coach consultant time $514,000.00
(coaching delivery, training, prep/admin)

Leadership coach consultant travel time $310,936.37
and travel costs
NYCLA admin and finance support for 18 $16,498.73
leadership coach consultants

TOTAL 1.0 $842,000.00
2.0 Oversight and Support of Coaching Consultants

Coach program meetings and additional $47,000.00

FCB training
Coaching ebservations, feedback, and $63,000.00

support calls
TOTAL 2.0 $110,000.00
CONTRACT TOTAL $952,000

The costs quoted above include expected compensation of the leadership coaching consultants and
reimbursement for their travel-related expenses associated with training and coaching service delivery,
as well as NYCLA personnel time and travel expenses related to the training, support, and administration
of the leadership coaching. This quote does not include training or meeting space or any time or travel

costs associated with IDE, AEA, or district personnel participating in any of this work.

NYC Leadership Academy // Proposal to lowa Department of Education
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Contract/MEA/Grant Number: 052416

lowa Department of Education
~Amendment # 1

Contracting Agency/individual:  NYC Leadership Academy Inc.

Current Operational Period: Start Date: lune 1, 2016 End Date: June 30, 2017
Current Budgeted ¢ 952.000.00
Amount: .

Reason for Amendment {check all that apply}): Work Scope [X] BudgetAmount [ | EndDate

Detailed description of any new activities being added to work scope: (attach additional pages if needed)
tncrease support from 136 principals to 144 principals :

Addition of TLC Program Capcity Bui[ding and Cvaluation

See attached Scope cf Work

New End Date requested' . : New Budget Arnount requested: . $ 1,083,358.76

lustification for amendment request: (lndtcate any changes in funding source(s), attach new budget if needed attach
additional pages if needed) : .

See attached Scope of Work

COMPENSATION:
Original Contract Amount: £ 052,000.00
Amendment Amount: $131,358.76
Revised Contract TOTAL: $ 1,083,358.76 -
For Internal-Purposes Only: _ .
FUND J”__DEPT UNIT S/ORG OBl . PROG AMOURNT
0001 - 282 - w020 - 2469 ' | $1,083,358.76
282 ' . $
282 \ : ' S

Total | $1,083,358.76

Authorization for Amendment Request (Signature indicates agreement to carry out terms of agreement as. amended):

Lo WKano TLTOCE Prepuann Croadbnd11-23-1C

DE CONTacT e DATE
DE ADM ST ZA Mu | ﬂTOémm - //'N; : l/g
WSTRATION DATE
; ) TITLE ' DATE
iy Voo Director | _w//;?@_*/ {
DE AUTHOW NG SIGNATURE ‘ TITLE DATE

Form 19: Amendment {7/16}



Contracting Agency/Individual:

Current Operational Period:

Current Budgeted -
Amount:

-~ Start Date:

Contract/MEA/Grant Number: 052416

lowa Department of Education

Amendment #1

NYC Leadership Academy Inc. '

$ 952,000.00

- Reason for Amendment {check all that apply):

June 1, 2016

|X Work Scope

En_d Date:

BudgetAmount '

June 30, 2017

[] EndDate

See attached Scope of Work

Addition of TLC Program Capcity Building and Evaluatlon

Detailed description of any new activities being added to work scope (attach additional pages if needed)
Increase support from 136 principals to 144 princ:ipa[s

New End Date requested:

New Budget Amount requested:

$1,083,358.76

additional pages if needed)
See attached Scope of Work

Justification for amendment request: (mdacate any changes in fundmg source(s) attach new budget if needed, attach

COMPENSATION:

Original Contract Amount:
Amendment Amount:
Revised Contract TOTAL:

$ 952,000.00

$131,358.76 -

$1,083,358.76

For Internal Purposes Only:

DEPT

©UNIT

"AMOUNT

FUND 5/ORG ~ 0B) PROG
0001 282 w020 2469 -$1,083,358.76
282 . $
282 $
Total | $ 1,083,358.76

Authorization for Amendment Request (Signature mdlcates agreement to carry out terms of agreement as amended}:

K)//m /pﬁuﬁw

DE co%; A A/W

DE ADMM’STRATlON

CONTRACTING AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL

DE AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE

Form 19: Amendment (7/_16)

UL«L«»WT\( rfpﬁmf@km

DATE

\JJ{‘_ .

Rkl
nﬂl / [~ 23 / 4
TITLE DATE
TITLE " DATE
DATE

TITLE

[1-23-
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Proposed Scope of Work Modification/Contract Addendum
{Agreement 052414}

Coaching & Capacity Building for lowa’s Statewide Delivery of the
TLC Administrator Program, 2016-17

Based on discussions with the lowa Department of Education, the NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) is
pleased to submit this proposal for additional support and services we will provide related to the
delivery of the statewide TLC Administrator Support Program. Modifications to the original proposal are

highlighted in yellow.

Revised Deliverables ~ June 2014 through June 2017
1.0 School Leadership Coaching

As in Year 1 of the program, NYCLA will hire lowa-based school leadership coach consultants
who will serve the schools selected by IDE for Year 2 implementation. For the 2016-17 school year

NYCLA will field a cadre of coaching consultants who will provide leadership coaching support for

! and their teams.

NYCLA will contract with the school leadership coach consultants and compensate them for time
and travel-related expenses at rates previously agreed to with IDE. As part of administering this support,
NYCLA will collect and maintain records of all coaching-related expenses. | '

Coaches will provide an average of 50 hours of coaching support over the school year, with
approximately two in-school visits per principals per month. Coaches will also participate in the
.f'aci[itated professional learning sessions and other selected program meetings to ensure program

coherence.

2.0 Oversight and Support of the Leadership Coaching Program
As in Year 1 of the program, NYCLA will train and support the leadership coaching consultants.

This support will include: remote monthly check-in phone calls; 3-4 half-day sessions in lowa; 2-3 group

+Original proposal specified a maximum of 136 school leaders.



LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

webinars for technical support; and in-person field observations and feedback for each coach to help

ensure program gquality and consistency of delivery across the state.
NYCLA will also facilitate a 1.5-day training {our Facilitative, Competency-Based Coach Training,

part 2) for the NYCLA-led coaching consultants and other coaches supporting the district delivery model

{up to 30 participants total as a maximumy) in lowa in fall of 2016.

At the request of IDE and its TLC partner organizations, we propbse the following additional
activities during the 2016-17 school year t.o further extend in-state capacity to grow and sustain the TI.C
Administrator program over time.

3.1 Curriculum Design Support: Over the course of the 2016-17 school year, NYCLA staff

will work with a designated lowa-based Design Team to build team members’ capacity

around revising and redesigning the program’s professional development curriculum for

principals and teams. NYCLA staffwill work with the design team hoth remotely and
during two 1.5-day working sessions in Des Moines, to refresh the current curriculum
based on participant and facilitator feedback and to begin to design tools and/or a
scope and sequence for additional learning that can be used to deepen the work and/or
provide follow-up professional development for principals and teams who have already
gbne through the TLC Administrator program and want/need additional support.

3.2 360 Assessment Design: In respanse to feedback from program delivery personnel and
participants, we propose working with IDE and the school leadership coaches to design
a new tool that can be used in place of the Leadership Behaviors Survey to help
principals and coaches asses their leadership growth needs with respect to supporting

-effective work with teacher-leaders. This tool will be tailored for use in lowa and in
connection with the TLC Administrator program, and will include the option of gathering
360-degree feedback on the principal’s leadership. As part of developing this tool for
IDE, NYCLA staff will facilitate a full-day, in-person working session with coaches and

relevant brogram staff to get their input on tool design.

NYC Lecadership Academy // Proposed Conbroct Addendum o lowa Depariment of Education
August 19, 2014 :
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3.3 Program Evaluation: NYCLA proposes that we will also continue to support TLC

Administrator Program management by administering and providing analysis of the
following:

e  Summer Institute Feedback Surveys (for all 18 cohorts)

e Professional Development Session Feedb.'ack Surveys (for all 18 cohorts

e End-of-Year Principal Satisfaction Survey (including feedback on coaching impact)

e Coach/Facilitator Feedback Surveys

MYC ieédemf‘eip Academy // Proposed Confract Addendum fo lowa Deparbment of Educalion
August 19, 2014 Fage | 2
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Hevised Cosls

w.i.OS”hc“:-ol Leadershlp ééfw:hlngy fZJnr up to 144: school Iezagc:iersww -

Leadership coach consultant time $514,000.00
(coaching delivery, training,
prep/admin)
Leadership coach consultant iravel - $310,936.37
time and travel costs
NYCLA admin and finance support for $16,498.73
18 feadership coach consultants
TOTAL 1.0 $842,000.00
2.0 Oversight and Support of Coaching Consultants

Coach program meetings and $47,000:00
additional FCB training '
Coaching observations, feedback, and $63,000.00

support calls

TOTAL 2.0 $110,000.00
3.0 NEW: Program Capacity Building and Evaluation

Curriculum design support

Program evaluation

LBS revision/360 tool development
TOTAL 3.0

CONTRACT TOTAL $952,000.00

The costs quoted above include expected compensation of the leadership coaching consultants and
reimbursement for their travel-related expenses associated with training and coaching service delivery,
as well as NYCLA personnel time and travel expenses related to the training, support, and administration
of the leadership coaching. This quote does not include training or meeting space or any time or travel

costs associated with IDE, AEA, or district personnel participating in any of this work.

136 principals were to be served in original proposal

NYC Leadership Academy // Froposed Contract Addendum to lowa Depardment of Education
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Additional Addendum Language:

Based on amended language that was inserted into NYCLA’s original contract with IDE regarding

intellectual property, we request that the same language (as foliows) be inserted into this current

agreement:

CONFIDENTIALITY/OWNERSHIP. NYC Leadership Academy (VENDOR) agrees that all financial,
statistica[. or proprietary information provided by an lowa school district or the lowa Department of ‘
Education (IDOE) or any information that the VENDOR may acquire, directly or indirectly, if any,
which relates to an lowa school district or the IDOE will be kept confidential and not used by or '
released to any third party or parties without the prior written consent of the IDOE. The VENDOR

further agrees that any written material, {e.g., report, study, etc.), developed for the IDCE under this
| contract, excluding any materials previously developed and copyrighted by the VENDOR, shall be
property of the IDOE, and the IDOE shall be entitled to obtain copyrights or any similar such -
protection for any deliverables furnished by the VENDOR under the terms of this Agreement, and "
that any such materials be considered a “work-for-hire.” The VENDOR hefeby grants the IDOE a
nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide, royalty-free license to use the VENDOR’S IP in connection with

any work developed for and delivered to the IDOE.

In the course of VENDOR'S work pursuant to this Agreement, and in addition to the license to the
IDOE of VENDOR IP, VENDOR may provide the IDOE with certain custom content that supports or
is incorporated into the final version of any deliverable provided in this Agreement ("Custom
Content”). While VENDOR agrees not to make use of a final deliverable provided to the IDOE
without the IDOE prior approval, the IDOE hereby grants to VENDOR a non-exclusive, perpetual,
worldwide, rbyalty—free license to use, modify, copy, distribute, translate, create derivative works of,
make, sublicense and otherwise exploit the Custom Content, including information, materials, data,
research, curriculum, recommendations, analysis, proposals, ideas, suggestions, plans, creative
content, and copyrighted materials incorporated therein, in any form or medium.

NYC Lecdership Academy // Proposed Conbract Addendum fo lowa Deparbment of Education

August 19, 2014
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Contracting Agency/individual:

Current Operational Period:

Current Budgeted
Amount:

Contract/MEA/Grant Number: 052416

lowa Department of Education

Amendment & 2

NYC Leadership Academy Inc

Start Date:  July 1, 2016

$ 1,083,358.76

Reason for Amendmaent (check all that apply):

Worlk Scope

End Date:

[ 1 Budget Amount

June 30, 2017

i ] End Date

Detailed description of any new activities being added to work scope: (attach additional pages if needed)

SAl Coach Training — Provide two days of coach training for up to six coaches and program staff from SAtto heip promote
programmatic continuity as SAl takes over coaching delivery for principals participating inthe TLC Administrator Program

New End Date requested;

New Budget Amount reguested:

$1,083,358.76

lustification for amendment request: (indicate any changes in funding source(s), attach new budget if needed, attach
additional pages if needed)

Two days of additional coach training and work with lowa Department of Education and School Administrators of lowa
{SAl) in preparation for SAl to support delivery of the coaching component of the TLC Administrator Program in 2017-18.

COMPENSATION:

Original Contract Amount:

Amendment Amount;

Revised Contract TOTAL:

S 1,083,358.76
$0.00
$ 1,083,358.76

For internal Purposes Only:

FUND DERT UNIT $/ORG OBJ PROG AMOUNT
0001 282 w020 2469 $1,083,358.76
282 5
282 5

Total | $ 1,083,358.76

Authonzatmn for Amendment Request {Signature indicates agreement to carry out terms of agreement as amended):

@’?ﬂ fi@nc’u Ff

D CONTA
/éw' ﬂfuf

NISTRATION

AN adsNat

CONWNG AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL

//&é}

DE AUTHQAIZING SIGNATURE

Form 19: Amendment {7/16)

iTLE
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EXP - ow

TITLE
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TITLE




Contract/MEA/Grant Number: (052416

iowa Department of Education
Amendment # 2

Contracting Agency/individual:  NYC Leadership Academy Inc

Current Operational Period: Start Bate: July 1, 2016 End Date: June 30, 2017
Current Budgeted $ 1,083,358.76 o
Amount:

Reasan for Amendment {check all that apply): E Work Scope [ | Budget Amount D End Date

Detaiied description of any new activities being added to work scope: {attach additional pages if needed)

SAl Coach Training — Provide two days of coach training for up to six coaches and program staff from SAlto help promote
programmatic continuity as SAi takes over coaching delivery for principals participating in the TLC Administrator Program

New End Date requested: New Budget Amount requested: $ 1,083,358.76

Justification for amendment request: (indicate any changes in funding source(s), attach new budget if needed, attach
additional pages if needed)

Two days of additional coach training and work with lowa Department of Education and School Administrators of lowa
(SAl in preparation for SAl to support delivery of the coaching component of the TLC Administrator Program in 2017-18.

COMPENSATION:

Original Centract Amount: $1,083,358.76
Amendment Amount: $ 0.00
Revised Contract TOTAL: S 1,083,358.76

For internal Purposes Cnly:

FUND DEPT UNIT S/ORG OBl PROG AMOUNT
0001 282 w020 2469 $ 1,083,358.76
282 S
282 ' S
Total | $ 1,083,358.76

Authorlzat:on for Amendment Request (Signature indicates agreement to carry out terms of agreement as amended):

P (
V//?f % SN é?) W itV a L SA AN L“-é’é‘:;_u.fjf fn 13— 17
DE - CONTACT / TITLE < DATE

Aura (i [)irectr § =12
DE A%ﬂ NISTRATION TIHE DATE
CONTRACTING AGENCY OR INDIVIDUAL TITLE DATE
DE AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

Form 19: Amendment {7/16)



Proposed Scope of Work Modification/Confract Addendum
(Agreement 052414) -- June 12, 2017

Coach Capacity Building for lowa’s Statewide Delivery of the TLC
Administrator Program

Based on discussions with the lowa Department of Education, the NYC Leadership Academy (NYCLA) is
pleased to submit this proposal for two days of additional coach training and work with lowa
Department of Education {IDE) partner institution, School Administrators of lowa (SAl)-in preparation for

SAl to suppert delivery of the coaching component of the TLC Administrator Program in 2017-18.
New Deliverable —- June 2017

3.0 TLC Administrator Program Capacity Building and Evaluation
3.4 (NEW) SAl Coach Training — NYCLA will provide two days of coach training for up to six
coaches and program staff from SAl to help promote programmatic continuity as SAl takes over
coaching delivery for principals participating in the-TLC Administrator Program during 2017-18.
The training will inciude an introduction to the facilitative, competency-based (FCB} coaching
approach that is a core aspect of the Administrator Program suppoert, as well as support for the
SAl team in planning for program delivery and coaching oversight. The training will take place

June 26-27 in Des Moines.
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Revisad Costls

1.0 School Leadership Coaching for up to 144: school leaders

Leadership coach consultant time $531,600.00

{coaching delivery, training,

prep/admin)

Leadership coach consultant travel $339,339.96

time and travel cosis
NYCLA admin and finance support for $17,418.80
18 leadership coach consultants

TOTAL 1.0 $8388,358.76
2.0 Oversight and Support of Coaching Consultants

Coach program meetings and $47,000.00 $47,000.00
additional FCB training '
Coaching observations, feedback, and $53,000.00 $63,000.00

support calls

TOTAL 2.0 $110,000.00 $110,000.00
3.0 NEW: Program Capacity Building and Evaluation

Curricuium design support $37,000.00 $37,000.0C
Program evaluation $17,000.00 $17,000.00
LBS revision/350 tocl development $31,000.00 $31,000.00
SAl coach training ~ June 2017 31090000
TOTAL 3.0 $85,000.00 -+ +$95,900:00

CONTRACT TOTAL | $1,083,358.76 | $1,053,459.76

*Actual costs associated with 1.0 may be fower, NYCLA will provide reconciliation by July 15, 2017.

Costs quoted include expected compensation of the leadership coaching consultants and
reimbursement for travel-reiated expenses associated with training and coaching service delivery, as
well as NYCLA personnel time and travel expenses. Not inciuded: training or mesting space or any time

or travel costs associated with IDE, AEA, SAI, or district personnel participating in any of this work.

NYC Leadership Academy // Propased Confract Addendum o lowa Department of Education
June 12, 2017 2
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